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TELOCIN™

The Telocin ultrasound imaging system provides a unique feature set with a
number of transducer options, attention to ergonomics and a variety of data
handling choices that allows it to stand out in a crowded field of Ultrasound
providers. It is an ideal solution for the office practice or as a cost-effective
additional unit in a busy or expanding operating room or vascular lab.

NICOLETONE™

The NicoletOne neurodiagnostics system has extensive capabilities in cEEG, EMG, EP and
LTM testing, Its modular architecture offers practices a scalable approach beginning with
single or multiple modalities and is easily upgradeable as practices expand and new
modalities are needed. With its near universally understood Windows®-based user interface,
training time is greatly reduced.

VMAX® ENCORE

The Vmax pulmonary function station was re-engineered enhancing its laboratory
capabilities. The result is the new Vmax Encore workstation. The additon of Impulse
Oscillometry (10S), a near effortless method of testing, expands its testing range to include
more pediatric and geriatric patients. Workflow improvements were gained through user
friendly softwate, a high visibility screen layout and the ability to setve the entire range of
patients, from simple tests to the most complex maneuvers. Further, automated post-test
QA messaging, utilizing a wide variety of user selectable published standards, assists the
practitioner in ensuring the quality and integrity of patient test results.

VIKINGQUEST™ . - : - -

Version 8.0 of the VikingQuest neurodlagnosucs system represents an entire
redesign providing new software features and a simplified user interface that
enables the physician to concentrate on the patient and still provide a
comprehensive diagnostic exam. Workflow enhancements, like automated
monitoring protocols and digital recording of processed EEG segments,
triggered and averaged data and free run EMG data, optimize patient contact
time. Smaller and lighter, the base system streamlines control and operation.

a8
MASTEHSCREEN‘" e |2
The Wmnmg solution frot, ]AEGER®~15 the MasterScreen advanced =
pulmonary funcdain laboratory ‘Based on Microsoft® Windows®, the already
easy.user interface was made: even simpler to use even with many added new
features: ;It is not only fully‘ compliant with today's 32-bit processing, but is
already prepﬁre’d for ﬂ’lﬁ next generation of 64-bit computers.
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Global Leadership

VIASYS Healthcare Inc. has emerged as a global leader in
the Respiratory and Neurophysiology healthcare markets. Our
recently announced acquisitions of Taugagreining, Oxford
Instruments Medical and Micro Medical Ltd. complement our
existing product lines, health delivery systems and competitive
position. This establishes VIASYS as one of the most important
companies in the world, providing innovative solutions to the
hospital, physician office and alternate care matkets. These
businesses ate enhanced by our growth in medical disposables
and orthopedics, our worldwide customer service operations
and our global sales and distribution capability. When combined
with our strong cash flow generated from operations and the
strength of our balance sheet, we believe that VIASYS is
destined to become an even more formidable competitor in

global healthcare technology.

2004 was crucial for steering VIASYS into a position of
financial and organizational strength. Given our heritage as a
collecdon of many small companies, it was imperative that we
effectively implemented the announced mid-year restructuring,
Our redundant operations required consolidation in order to
improve our cost structure and to create more efficient and
streamlined businesses. As a result of our aggressive
restructuring, we emerged as a clear global leader in two of
healthcare's most important growth areas, Respiratory and
Neurophysiology. 1n addition VIASYS has become a far more
focused company with stronger operatons, a leaner
organization and one company with compelling global
business strategies.

2004 also marked a milestone year in the development of
new product platforms. At the time of our spin off in 2001,
virtually all of our products were aging and losing share in their
respective business segments. A substantial investment in both
internal development and acquisitions converged in 2004 and, as
a result, we launched new product platforms across all of our
businesses. To this end, we believe that VIASYS enters 2005 as
the best-in-class in each of our strategic businesses.

A major factor driving our prioritges has been the focus on
building our balance sheet. In three short years, we eliminated
all debt and built considerable cash reserves for a company our
size. We were determined to improve cash flow from existing
operations and have accomplished our goal. For a young
company, I believed that strengthening our balance sheet was
imperative before we ventured in other external strategies.
Having accomplished that, I would like to reiterate that our
strategy is to expand and consolidate our leading technological
positions in various global markets and to become a major
presence in the Respiratory and Neurophysiology segments of
healthcare technology.

Complementing our focus on Respiratory and
Neurophysiology ate several other profitable and growing
businesses within VIASYS, namely MedSystems' line of
disposable medical devices and access systems, Orthopedic

implants and worldwide
Customer Service. Fach
business is poised for growth.
For example, we have
demonstrated out
commitment to increasing
the overall percentage of our
revenues coming from
disposables with each of our
aforementioned acquisitons.
Oxfotd Instruments Medical, for instance, not only brings
unique systems in EMG but also significant revenues in EMG
disposable needles.

Randy H. Thurman
Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer

One of our greatest assets across all VIASYS companies is
our International organizadon. Through our international
structure and global distribution partners, we are able to bring
newly developed or acquired products to virtually all countries.
Our focus going forward will be to invest in regions of the
wotld whete we are under penetrated and perceive significant
opportunity for VIASYS. One such region is China, where in
2005 we will be increasing our resources. China is a great
example of our saying that "you cannot open a hospital
anywhere in the world without going through VIASYS
Healthcare." As China expands its healthcare infrastructure,
VIASYS intends to be a vital partner with their healthcare
decision makers.

We look to the future of VIASYS Healthcare Inc. with
continued enthusiasm and expect growth in each of our
business segments. Our Respiratory Care and NeuroCare
businesses are global leaders poised to grow with the aging
population, expanding global markets and increasing focus on
early diagnosis and disease management. Our global
infrastructure in sales, service and distribution makes us unique
even among larger companies. Our strong balance sheet and
profitable core businesses create an excellent foundation as we
pursue our strategies and aspirations.

The stakeholders in out company include the healthcate
providers and patents who rely on the quality and innovation of
our products as well as our employees and distribution partners
who have worked tirelessly to position VIASYS as a global
leader in healthcare technology. To shareholders who have
invested in our future, I pledge ¢ )m\d\comrmtment to
pursuing the VIASYS mission; aﬁd to deh\f“ g long term
shareholder value. // J// R

Sincerely,

Y24

Randy H. Thurman
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer




New Products (continued) |

MICROLAB™

MicroLab is cleatly the world's most versatile portable spirometet. Developed
specifically for the professional, the new generation MicroLab employs Micro
Medical's acclaimed precision Gold Standard Digital Volume Transducer
which is especially suited to measuring very low flow rates in patients with
COPD and asthma.

NICOLETONE™ MONITOR
The new NicoletOne Monitor fulfills the unique demands of high acuity

monitoring environments. The NicoletOne Monitor extracts critical
information for easy interpretation by ICU staff, while neurologists can
instantly access the underlying EEG. Innovative features such as the Trend
Overview and Automatic Burst Suppression make brain monitoring in the
ICU not only feasible, but a key factor in improving patient care.

MEDELEC® and TECA® SYNERGY

The 2, 5, or 10-channel Medelec / TECA Synergy EMG / EP systems provide
unrivalled flexibility in compact and scalable packages. The user interface reflects an
in-depth understanding of our customers’ needs. Features which include faster set-
up, color-coded connections and impedance check on the amplifier are appreciated
in the field. Efficiency improvements like rapid testing and review, dual SEP
stimulators, Autocompate function and unique EMG LivePlay function are widely
valued by those in practice management.

AVEA® o : :

The most capable platform in acute critical care ventilation, the AVEA ventilator
extended its clinical capabilities with the addition of tracheal and esophageal pressure
monitoring. Intra-thoracic pressures are quickly and accurately determined with the use
of our proptietary line of catheters providing physicians with valuable information.
Incorporated into the patient's care plan, this information has been proven in peer
reviewed studies to reduce the patent's length of stay in the hospital.

CORTRAK® | v/ DN
The CORTRAK system uses computer technology to guide clinicians in the placement of
nasoenteric feeding tubes into the alimentary tract. The system aids feeding tube placement
by showing the relative location of the feeding tube tip during placement. Clinicians can
respond immediately to placements that do not follow the expected path. The CORTRAK
system also helps avoid lung placements which may result in a pneumothorax and reduces

panent eXposure to X-rays.
TELOCIN™, NICOLETONE™, VMAX®, VIKINGQUEST™, JAEGER®, MASTERSCREEN™,
MICROLAB™, MEDELEC®, TECA®, AVEA® and CORTRAK® are trademarks of VIASYS
Healthcare Inc. or its subsidiaries in the United States and/or other countries.

MICROSOFT® and WINDOWS® are trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States
and/or other countries,
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Information Concerning Forward-Looking Statements

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the “Act™) provides a safe harbor for
forward-looking statements made by us or on our behalf. We and our representatives may from time to
time make written or oral statements that are “forward-looking,” including statements contained in this
report and other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, reports to our shareholders and
news releases. All statements that express expectations, estimates, forecasts or projections are forward-
looking statements within the meaning of the Act. In addition, other written or oral statements which
constitute forward-looking statements may be made by us or on our behalf. Words such as “expects,”
“anticipates,” “intends,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,” “projects,” “forecasts,” “may,”
“should,” variations of such words and similar expressions are intended to identify such forward-looking
statements. These statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve certain risks,
uncertainties and assumptions which are difficult to predict. Therefore, actual outcomes and results
may differ materially from what is expressed or forecasted in or suggested by such forward-looking
statements. The forward-looking statements contained in this report include but are not limited to
statements regarding our ability to find alternative suppliers for certain components, the effect of the
expiration of our patents on our business, the expected time for shipments of our products to
customers, the sufficiency of our facilities, our retention of all of our future earnings for use in our
business, the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates on our business, our ability to obtain a new
credit facility and the effect on our business of legal proceedings in which we are involved. We
undertake no obligation to update publicly any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise.

A wide range of factors could materially affect our future performance and financial and
competitive position, including the following:

* our projected growth of the neurocare market and the demand for respiratory technologies and
critical care equipment and disposables;

* our ability to capitalize on our existing installed equipment base in the respiratory technologies,
critical care, neurocare and medical and surgical product markets and our research, development
and marketing expertise to expand our business;

* our ability to obtain and maintain regulatory approvals for our products in development,
including 510(k) clearance under the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act;

* our ability to obtain a sufficient supply of raw materials from current suppliers, or, if necessary,
in developing alternative sources of supply, including internal capability to produce raw materials
or components, at prices competitive with our current sources;

* spending policies of our customers;
» government funding policies;

» reimbursement of patients’ medical expenses by government healthcare programs and private
health insurers;

* our ability to maintain a competitive position in our industry;
* our ability to increase our revenues and profits;

* our ability to realize the value of the goodwill and other intangible assets recorded on our
financial statements;

* our ability to adapt and respond to uncertain and difficult global market conditions, including
fluctuations in currency exchanges rates and unforeseen changes in foreign governmental rules
and regulations;

* our ability to develop brand recognition of our products and services;




* our ability to protect our intellectual property rights;

* our ability to maintain our rights to products and technology licensed from external sources;
~ ¢ our ability to integrate acquisitions;

* our ability to introduce new products as planned; and

* market acceptance of our new products.

This above list of factors is not exhaustive but merely illustrative of the many factors that may
affect our future performance, financial and competitive position and the accuracy of our forward-
looking statements. Accordingly, all forward-looking statements must be evaluated with the
understanding of their inherent uncertainty.

Item 1. Business
Overview

We are a healthcare technology company engaged in developing, manufacturing, marketing and
servicing a variety of medical devices, instruments and medical and surgical products for use in the
respiratory, critical care, neurocare and medical and surgical product markets. We were incorporated in
Delaware in August 1995 as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Thermo Electron Corporation (“Thermo
Electron” or “former parent company”). Our business was formed from the combination of a number
of enterprises separately acquired or originated by Thermo Electron, including Bird Medical
Technologies, Inc., Bear Medical Systems, Inc., SensorMedics Corporation, Erich Jaeger GmbH and
Nicolet Biomedical, Inc. On November 15, 2001 (“Spin-off Date™), as part of its reorganization plan,
Thermo Electron spun-off its equity interest in our Company by distribution of a dividend to its
stockholders of record as of November 7, 2001. References to our Company for periods before the
Spin-off Date are to the combined businesses of our former parent company from which we were
formed.

Our business is organized and operated through four segments:

Our Respiratory Technologies group, which develops, manufactures, markets and services
products for the diagnosis and treatment of pulmonary and sleep-related disorders, as well as
providing services to support pharmaceutical companies and clinical research organizations.

Our Critical Care group, which develops, manufactures, markets and services life support
products to treat respiratory insufficiency caused by illness, injury or premature birth.

Our NeuroCare group, which develops, manufactures, markets and services a comprehensive
line of neurodiagnostic, vascular diagnostic and audiology testing systems.

Our Medical and Surgical Products group, which develops, manufactures and markets
disposable medical products and specialty metal components for orthopedic products, medical-
imaging equipment and cardio-vascular implants.

We market our products in over 100 countries and our customers include hospitals, alternate care
sites, clinical laboratories, private physicians and original equipment manufacturers. Our global
revenues from continuing operations in 2004 totaled $393.2 million. Revenue, operating income and
total assets by segment are set forth in Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Recent Developments

On July 28, 2004, we acquired substantially all of the assets of Taugagreining, hf.
(“Taugagreining™), an Icelandic company that develops and markets electroencephalography (“EEG”)
technology for the diagnosis and monitoring of neurological function, for a cash purchase price of
$5.6 million. ‘




On January 24, 2005, we acquired substantially all of the assets of Navion Biomedical Corporation,
a company that develops, manufactures and markets a device used to facilitate the placement of
peripherally inserted central catheters (“PICCs”) and central venous catheters (“CVCs”), for a cash
purchase price of $3.5 million, of which $0.2 million will be paid in the first quarter of 2006.

On March 1, 2005, we acquired the medical division of Oxford Instruments plc (“Oxford Medical™)
for a cash purchase price of approximately $46 million subject to certain working capital adjustments.
Oxford Medical is based in the United Kingdom and manufactures, develops, designs and markets
medical diagnostic and monitoring products as well as related disposables and accessories.
Neurophysiclogy comprises the largest of Oxford Medical’s several business components.
Neurophysiology’s principal product lines include electromyography (“EMG”) equipment and EMG
needles and neurological disposables. The business also contains an obstetrics range of antenatal and
fetal monitors and an ambulatory cardiology range of products. Oxford Medical had 2004 global
revenues of approximately $57 million.

On March 15, 2005, we acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Micro Medical Limited
(“Micro Medical”), a company based in the United Kingdom that develops, manufactures and markets
a range of respiratory diagnostic products, for an aggregate purchase price of approximately
$40.4 million. The purchase price consisted of approximately $36.6 million in cash (net of cash
acquired) and approximately $3.8 million in assumed debt. In addition, we may also be required to pay
additional consideration upon the achievment of certain criteria. Micro Medical had 2004 global
revenues of approximately $16 million.

Our Strategy

We focus our development and marketing activities on growth segments of the healthcare industry.
We seek to capitalize on our research, development and marketing expertise, as well as our
relationships with physicians and other medical caregivers in these markets to expand our business into
high-value opportunities, including disposables, therapy and service-based products. We have
augmented our internal research by acquiring companies with strong research capabilities and
in-licensing technologies. In addition to acquisitions and new in-licensing opportunities, we are working
to enhance and extend our existing product lines into next-generation products and to develop new
products to broaden our existing respiratory technologies, critical care, neurocare and medical and
surgical product offerings. Products that we introduced and upgraded during 2004 include:

* VMAX® Encore (“VMAX”) with Impulse Oscillatory Spirometry (“I0S”) — an upgraded
version of our successful VMAX line that allows for complete pulmonary function testing under
normal breathing conditions;

* LYRA™ Nasal CPAP Interface — a proprietary nasal mask used as part of a continuous positive
airway pressure (“CPAP”) system for treating sleep apnea;

* AVEA® - significant hardware and software enhancements that provide a highly unique feature
set, including an advanced respiratory mechanics monitoring capability that has been proven in
clinical studies to reduce the patient’s length of stay in the intensive care unit (“ICU”);

* VELA® - significant hardware and software enhancements, including the addition of
non-invasive ventilation and improvements to battery function;

* FLOW SCREEN® II - a feature rich spirometry product targeted to the primary care market;

* MasterScope™ PC - a new modular device for the Master Screen family of pulmonary function
testing products that offers key diagnostic features;

* SiPAP™ - An enhanced version of our INFANT FLOW® product that uses bi-level nasal CPAP
for the non-invasive treatment of spontaneously breathing infants with hypoxemia;




* NicoletOne™ - a new multi-modality neurodiagnostic and monitoring system that combines
clinical EEG, EMG, Evoked Potential (“EP”) and Long-Term Monitoring (“LTM”) capabilities.
Other modules are being developed to add capabilities in Sleep, Vascular and other modalities;

* NICOLET® ENDEAVOR™ CR - a smaller and more portable version of our intra-operative
monitoring system that measures the integrity of nerve pathways during surgery and supports the
remote monitoring needs of today’s busy neurology practice;

* NicoletOne Monitor — a new product as a result of the Taugagreining acquisition specifically
developed to monitor neurological functioning of patients in neonatal ICUs, neurological ICUs
or any general acute care setting where neurological deficit or impairment could occur. With the
numerous neurological drugs and therapies now available, monitoring at-risk patients can guide
therapy and improve outcomes;

* NicoletOne Solutions — a new suite of NicVue database and V-Link connectivity solutions that
provide the ability to seamlessly review, archive, sort and search clinical data from multiple
locations. HL7, DICOM and other standard interfaces allow the NicoletOne systems (neuro and
vascular) to send and receive data from hospital information systems to improve caregiver
productivity;

* TELOCIN™ Ultrasound System — a compact, easy-to-use diagnostic vascular ultrasound system
that provides one of the most effective screening tests for at-risk stroke patients: the carotid
ultrasound scan; and

* VikingQuest™ - a new neurodiagnostic monitoring system that brings together Nerve
Conduction Studies, EMG, EP, Single Fiber Electromyography, Multiple Modality Programs and
Autonomic Nervous System testing capabilities.

Principal Businesses and Products

Commenced
Principal Businesses Principal Products ‘ Operations
Respiratory Technologies
Erich Jaeger........... Pulmonary function testing and metabolic equipment;
sleep diagnostic and therapy equipment 1954
SensorMedics . .. ....... Pulmonary function testing and metabolic equipment;
sleep diagnostic and therapy equipment 1983
VIASYS Clinical Services . Contract research services used in the investigation of
respiratory illness 1998
Micro Medical ......... Devices used to diagnose and monitor respiratory illnesses;
devices for cardiovascular assessment; CO monitors for use
in smoking cessation programs and quit smoking
campaigns 1983
Critical Care
Bear Medical .......... Adult, pediatric and infant mechanical ventilators 1972
Bird Medical .......... Adult, pediatric and infant mechanical ventilators 1954
EME................ Infant nasal CPAP 1978
SensorMedics Critical Care  Specialized high-frequency oscillatory ventilators 1983
NeuroCare
Grason-Stadler . .. ... ... Hearing screening and diagnostic equipment 1949
Nicolet Biomedical . . . ... Neurodiagnostic and monitoring equipment 1967
Nicolet Vascular .. ...... Peripheral vascular diagnostic systems; transcranial
Doppler systems; fetal and vascular small Doppler systems 1976




Commenced
Principal Businesses Principal Products . Operations

Medical and Surgical

Products

Corpak .............. Disposable enteral access and airway management devices 1980
Stackhouse . . .......... Surgical barrier control systems 1936
Tecomet.............. Orthopedic and spinal implants; X-ray grids for

mammography; left ventricular assist components 1964

Respiratory Technologies

Our Respiratory Technologies group develops, manufactures, markets and services products for the
diagnosis and treatment of respiratory, pulmonary and sleep-related disorders. These products are used
in a variety of settings, from intensive care to homecare, but generally share a common diagnostic focus
on breathing and the availability of oxygen throughout the body. We market our respiratory technology
products throughout the world to a variety of customers including hospitals, clinics, private physicians
and research centers under the brand names JAEGER™ and SENSORMEDICS®.

Our Respiratory Technologies business is comprised of the following product lines:
¢ Lung function testing, equipment used to diagnose pulmonary disorders;

* Sleep diagnostic and therapeutic, systems for the diagnosis and treatment of sleep-related
disorders; and

* VIASYS Clinical Services, products and services to support pharmaceutical and biotechnology
companies and clinical research organizations.

Lung Function Testing Equipment

Lung or pulmonary function testing equipment measures and analyzes breathing in order to
evaluate the condition of the heart, lungs and metabolism. These instruments assist in the diagnosis of
heart and lung disease and in the evaluation of a patient’s fitness and metabolic condition. In
pulmonary function testing, a patient typically breathes into a mouthpiece connected to a diagnostic
instrument. This instrument measures the gas concentration, air flow and air volume and collects data
on the level of exchange of oxygen and carbon dioxide in the patient’s lungs.

We market our lung function diagnostic equipment internationally under the SENSORMEDICS
and JAEGER brand names. We offer a broad line of pulmonary function testing equipment, from basic
spirometry products, which measure the rate and volume of breathing, to complete pulmonary function
and metabolic systems, which measure a wide range of heart, lung and metabolic functions. Our
principal pulmonary function testing products are:

* SENSORMEDICS VMAX Encore, a portable pulmonary function and metabolic diagnostic
system designed for use by healthcare providers. VMAX is a modular system that allows
end-users to configure a system to their specific needs and to add diagnostic functions as those
needs change. VMAX may be configured in a variety of ways, ranging from a simple spirometry
system to a full-featured pulmonary function and metabolic diagnostic lab. In 2004, we added
I0S, a proprietary technology that allows complete pulmonary function testing under normal
breathing conditions. This is especially useful in sick, young and elderly patients that have
difficulty with forced expiration;

* JAEGER MasterScreen, a full-function, pulmonary function and metabolic diagnostic system for
use primarily by healthcare providers. Our MasterScreen series of products are similar to the
VMAX system, but are constructed in a single configuration with fully integrated features; and




* Micro Medical Micro Series, respiratory measurement devices used to diagnose and monitor
Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease (“COPD”), asthma, bronchitis, emphysema, cystic
fibrosis, lung cancer and other respiratory system diseases.

We believe that through our combined SensorMedics, Micro Medical and Erich Jaeger businesses
we represent one of the largest global manufacturers of lung function testing equipment.

Sleep Diagnostic and Therapeutic Equipment

Sleep diagnostic and therapeutic equipment measures a variety of respiratory and neurological
functions to assist in the diagnosis, monitoring and treatment of sleep disorders, such as snoring and
obstructive sleep apnea, a condition that causes a person to stop breathing intermittently during sleep.

We market our sleep diagnostic and therapeutic testing systems under the SENSORMEDICS and
JAEGER brand names. Our sleep diagnostic products range from basic sleep diagnostic systems that
monitor one patient to networked, modular, expandable sleep labs that can monitor multiple patients
simultaneously. Our sleep therapy product line for homecare use includes CPAP systems that assist
breathing to allow for uninterrupted sleep. Our principal sleep diagnostic and therapeutic devices are:

* SOMNOTRAC®PRO, SOMNOSTAR®PRO and SLEEPSCREEN™, sleep diagnostic systems that
monitor respiratory and neurological functions to assist in the diagnosis of sleep disorders;

* ORION®, PEGASUS®, DORADO™ and DELPHINUS™ CFPAPs, sleep therapy products with
various monitoring capabilities which use a gentle stream of air to encourage a patient’s airway
to remain open while sleeping; and

* LYRA Nasal CPAP Interface, sleep therapy products that are worn to allow delivery of mild
positive pressure to treat sleep apnea.

We believe we hold a market leadership position in sleep diagnostics.

VIASYS Clinical Services (“VCS”)

Our clinical services business provides technology and services including VIAPAD™, our
proprietary electronic data capture device, to several major pharmaceutical and biotechnology
companies and clinical research organizations. We assist these companies and organizations in the
monitoring of subjects in clinical research studies which investigate treatments for respiratory illnesses.
VCS provides customers with high quality data during their clinical studies, which can result in the
need for fewer patients and accelerated data capture. VCS’ competence is true paperless data
collection in global clinical trials and reliable data capture with centralized data management and
reporting for diagnostic and home monitoring equipment (including electronic diaries).

We believe the clinical services market offers a significant opportunity for growth within our
Respiratory Technologies group, as well as in other segments of our Company, such as in our
NeuroCare group.

Critical Care

Our Critical Care group develops, manufactures, markets and services life support products to
treat respiratory insufficiencies caused by illness, injury or premature birth. These products are used in
a variety of settings, from intensive care units to homecare. We market our critical care products
throughout the world to a variety of customers including hospitals, clinics, private physicians, research
centers and original equipment manufacturers. Our Critical Care business is comprised of the following
product lines:

* Mechanical ventilators, products for patients who need assistance with breathing; and

* Other Products, such as specialized ventilators, treatment devices, blenders and monitoring
devices.




Mechanical Ventilators

Mechanical ventilators are used by patients who are unable to breathe adequately without
assistance due to disease or injury. These devices pump heated, humidified, oxygen-enriched air into
the lungs at regulated pressures, volumes and times in order to approximate normal breathing or to
modify breathing to treat disorders. They are typically configured either for adult, pediatric or neonatal
use and are marketed globally under the BIRD®, BEAR®, EME® and VIASYS™ Critical Care brand
names.

Our principal mechanical ventilators are:

Usage
Product Home Institutional Adult Pediatric Neonatal Portable
AVEA, a high-end volume/pressure ventilator ......... X X X X
VELA, a conventional volume/pressure ventilator . ... .. X X X X
TBIRD®, a full-feature ventilator that can be used in
both hospital and alternative care sites . . . ... ........ X X X X X
V.I.LE BIRD ® & BEAR CUB® 750, ventilators for
neonatal and pediatric intensive care units . .. ........ X X X
Other Products

In addition, we offer high-frequency oscillatory ventilators (“HFOV”’), which are specialized
ventilators designed to provide superior pulmonary gas exchange, while protecting the patient’s lungs
from damage that may be caused by the cyclic expansion and contraction characteristic of conventional
ventilators. Our HFOV products are listed by the U.S. Food and Drug Administration as Class III
devices, which require a higher level of “evidence of safety and efficacy” through successful prospective
randomized clinical trials, a standard not required of conventional ventilators. Our primary HFOV
products, which are marketed under the SENSORMEDICS brand name, are:

* 31004 HFOY, for use in children and premature infants who suffer acute respiratory failure; and

* 3100B HFOY for use in adults for the treatment of acute respiratory distress syndrome
(“ARDS”).

We also offer a variety of related products including:
* INFANT FLOW and SiPAP, proprietary forms of nasal CPAP;

* air/oxygen blenders, which regulate, in specific concentrations, the oxygen delivered by a
mechanical ventilator or oxygen delivery device;

* ventilator accessories, such as air compressors, heated humidifiers and mounting stands; and

* monitoring devices that measure the volume of gas entering and exiting a patient’s lungs during
mechanical ventilation.

We believe our Critical Care business is a market leader in the pediatric and neonatal conventional
ventilation markets, as well as the high-frequency ventilator market.

NeuroCare

Our NeuroCare group develops, manufactures, markets and services a comprehensive line of
neurological, vascular and audiology diagnostic systems that are used by physicians and medical
technologists to assist in the diagnosis and monitoring of neurological, vascular, brain and auditory
disorders. We market our portfolio of products globally to a variety of customers under brand names




such as GRASON-STADLER® (“GSI”), NICOLET Biomedical and NICOLET Vascular. Qur
NeuroCare business is comprised of the following product lines:

* Electromyography and Evoked Potential (“EP”), equipment that measures electrical activity in
nerves and muscles;

* Electroencephalography, equipment that monitors and visually displays the electrical activity
generated by nerve cells in the brain;

* Epilepsy Monitoring, equipment that enables a physician to assess the frequency and severity of
epileptic and non-epileptic seizures over long periods of time;

* Audiology, equipment that assesses hearing and balance disorders using a variety of testing
techniques and assists in the placement of digital hearing aids and cochlear implants;

* Intra-Operative Monitoring (“IOM”) and Transcranial Doppler, products that assist surgeons in
preserving the functional integrity of a patient’s circulatory and nervous systems during and after
complex surgical procedures;

* Physiologic peripheral vascular diagnostics, products that assist healthcare professionals to detect,
grade and track treatment of peripheral vascular disease; and

* Patient Management Software Solutions, systems that capture, communicate, archive and
summarize patient results for remote viewing, billing and improved productivity.

Electromyography and Evoked Potential

EMG is the measurement of electrical activity in the nerves and muscles. EP is the monitoring of
patient response to stimuli in order to evaluate the condition of specific nerve pathways. Physicians and
technicians in the fields of neurology, physical medicine and rehabilitation use EMG and EP data to
confirm the diagnosis of various diseases and disorders, including carpal tunnel syndrome, Lou Gehrig’s
(ALS) disease, multiple sclerosis and spinal cord injury. Our principal EMG and EP diagnostic
products are the VikingSelect™, VikingQuest and TOENNIES™ NEUROSCREEN® as well as the
newly acquired products of Oxford Medical, which are sold under the SYNERGY™ brand name.

Electroencephalography

An EEG is a visual display of electrical activity generated by nerve cells in the brain. Placing
electrodes on the scalp allows the brain’s activity to be amplified and displayed in rising and falling
potentials called brain waves. Traditionally, physicians use EEGs primarily for the diagnosis of epilepsy
and the monitoring of surgical and pharmaceutical treatments. Our principal EEG diagnostic product
line is the NicoletOne system, introduced in mid-2004, which allows screening of brain wave
abnormalities. Increasingly, clinicians are monitoring at-risk acute care patients (especially neonatal and
neurological patients) to guide therapies and improve outcomes. Our new NicotletOne Monitor is
specifically designed to work in an acute care team setting with its compact size and ease-of-use.

Epilepsy Monitoring

Our epilepsy monitoring system combines EEG data with digital video of a patient to enable a
physician to assess the frequency and severity of epileptic and non-epileptic seizures over a multiple day
period, typically three or four days. Our system helps the physician locate the site of epileptic seizures
in the brain for surgical intervention, to determine the proper dosage of drug therapies, or to
determine other courses of treatment for a particular patient.




Audiology

Audiology is the assessment of hearing, auditory performance and balance disorders using a variety
of testing techniques, including the evaluation of the function of the ear and the measurement of
neural responses to sound. We offer a broad range of audiology diagnostic instruments for middle ear
testing in adults and children that we market under the GSI and NICOLET Biomedical brand names.
Our primary audiology product is the GSI AUDERA™ device, which assists physicians in fitting
cochlear implants and hearing aids especially in children. In 2004, the GSI AUDERA system was
enhanced with important new diagnostic test features and a new software platform that allows for easy
integration of language capability.

Intra-Operative Monitoring and Transcranial Doppler

Our intra-operative monitoring products assist surgeons in preserving the functional integrity of a
patient’s circulatory and nervous systems during and after complex surgical procedures, such as vascular
reconstruction and tumor removal. NeuroCare’s primary products in this area are the ENDEAVOR
CR, a sophisticated intra-operative monitoring system that provides simultaneous EEG, EP and EMG
monitoring for use in the operating room and intensive care units, and the PIONEER™ and
COMPANION™ transcranial Doppler systems, which monitor blood flow to the brain in a non-invasive
manner.

Physiologic Peripheral Vascular Diagnostics

Our physiologic testing systems include the VasoGuard™ and MicroLite™, non-invasive products
that use a variety of technologies to detect, grade and follow various peripheral vascular diseases. Non-
invasive testing is more cost-effective and speeds identification and location of disease thus reducing
time spent on other more expensive and invasive tests. In addition, these systems assist in optimizing
other therapies, such as medication, surgery or vascular stent placement.

We also offer a variety of products related to our neurodiagnostic instruments, including:

* Medical pocket Dopplers, instruments that detect fetal heartbeats and blood flow in the
peripheral vasculature; and

* Transcranial Doppler sonographs, instruments that measure blood flow in the brain.

Patient Management Software Solutions

Our patient management software solutions are designed to improve clinical productivity by
providing data management and connectivity to hospital information systems. Our customers are able
to collect, archive, share and view patient information in local databases and networks. In addition,
they may use the solutions to reduce errors and improve productivity by seamlessly sharing patient
results across the hospital’s clinical network.

We believe we are market leaders in the neurodiagnostic, peripheral vascular diagnostic and
audiologist-focused audio diagnostic markets. In the most recent customer surveys conducted by
MDBuyline, VIASYS NeuroCare ranked first in six out of seven customer attribute ratings and had the
highest composite score in the industry.

Medical and Surgical Products

Our Medical and Surgical group develops, manufactures and markets disposable products and
specialty medical products. The Medical and Surgical group is focused on medical disposable products,
orthopedic and spinal implants as well as a number of components for various medical devices. We
market our disposable products, such as our feeding tube systems, disposable airway management
devices, medical access systems and surgical barrier control systems, to hospitals and homecare,
long-term care and, in some cases, to industrial customers. We market our specialty products and
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materials, such as our surgical implant components, to original equipment manufacturers for inclusion
in their products. Our Medical and Surgical Products business is comprised of the following businesses:

* MedSystems Disposables, medical disposable products for enteral feeding and respiratory therapy.

* Orthopedics, Specialty Products and Materials, a variety of high-tech metal components and
materials for inclusion by original equipment manufacturers in their products. These components
include titanium knee and steel hip implants as well as surface textures for orthopedic implants.

MedSystems Disposables

In 2002, we created a strategic business unit called MedSystems through the combination of our
Corpak and Stackhouse businesses. This strategic business unit develops, manufactures and markets a
variety of disposable products, including:

* Specialty feeding tubes that supply nutrition to critically ill or compromised patients. These tubes
run from the nose into either the stomach or small bowel and allow easily-digested nutrients to
be delivered into a patient’s digestive tract rather than into the blood stream. Our specially
designed tubes can be placed into the small bowel at the patient’s bedside resulting in reduced
patient transport costs and quicker caloric goal achievement. We market this group of products
under the CORFLO® brand name and, according to IMS, a global provider of business
intelligence and strategic consulting services for the healthcare and pharmaceutical industries, we
are the market leader in specialty long-term naso-gastric feeding tubes.

* Neonatal/Pediatric devices, such as:

* Closed suctioning systems that assist infants requiring mechanical ventilation by maintaining
an open airway and ensuring that the lungs remain inflated. We market this product under
the NeoLink™ brand name.

* Farrell Gastric Relief Systems that eliminate the gas and fluid buildup that is common in
infants suffering from digestive complications, thereby allowing the delivery of nutrients into
the stomach. We market this product under the CORFLO brand name.

* Disposable respiratory accessories that assist a patient’s breathing during surgery or trauma,
which we market under the PULMANEX® brand name.

* Surgical barrier control systems that we market to hospitals globally under the Stackhouse brand
name. Our principal surgical barrier control systems are:

* FREEDOMAIRE® Surgical Helmets and ACS Surgical Face Shields that protect surgeons
from contamination introduced into the operating room,;

* VitalVac® Surgical Smoke Evacuation Systems, which are air filtration systems that collect
the smoke plume created from vaporizing tissue during laser surgery or electrosurgery; and

* Gowns, masks and caps used in industrial environments.

On January 24, 2005, we acquired substantially all of the assets of Navion Biomedical Corporation,
a company that developed, manufactured and marketed the NAVIGATOR® BIONAVIGATION®
(“NAVIGATOR”) system. The NAVIGATOR system is used to facilitate the placement of PICCs and
CVCs. PICCs are used by clinicians to deliver intravenous fluids, medications, and nutrition directly
into the blood stream for faster dissemination throughout the body, especially the heart. The placement
of PICCs must be verified by X-ray. PICC lines frequently need to be repositioned before proceeding
with the administration of the drug or nutrition therapy. Repositioning and the additional confirmatory
X-rays add significant cost to patient care and increase the time the patient is without the therapy. The
NAVIGATOR system permits bedside determination of the position and direction of the catheter tip
and reduces the need for repositioning and additional confirmatory X-rays.

1



In early 2005, we received U.S. Food and Drug Administration clearance to market the
CORTRAK™ system, a device designed to aid in the placement of enteral feeding tubes. The
CORTRAK system consists of a computer monitor, a receiver and a specially designed transmitter
stylet attached to our feeding tube. As the feeding tube is advanced, the monitor provides a real time
representation of the feeding tube’s relative position within the alimentary canal. Feeding tube
placements, gastric or small bowel, follow a distinct “track”. Any deviation from the expected track can
be resolved by the clinician, thus preventing accidental lung placements or the tube coiling in the
stomach. Clinical studies indicate an extremely high rate of successful bedside placement of small bowel
feeding tubes on the first attempt when CORTRAK is used.

Orthopedic, Specialty Products and Materials

We develop, manufacture and market a variety of specialty products and materials for inclusion by
original equipment manufacturers in their products, including:

* Surgical implant components, which are used in reconstructive, spinal and trauma surgery, which
we market to original equipment manufacturers that design and distribute orthopedic implants
globally;

* Key components for a left ventricular assist device which is used to bridge the gap to heart
transplant in cardio-vascular surgery; and

* Medical imaging components that reduce X-ray scatter, which allows for high resolution images
in mammography and early detection of tumors.

VIASYS Customer Care

VIASYS Customer Care provides warranty, technical support and long-term service contract
options for our products. In addition, our customer care professionals provide the training, installation,
contract administration, parts and product upgrades to support both our direct customers and our
worldwide distributor network. We provide these services through an organization of approximately 220
experienced biomedical engineers and technicians.

New Products, Research and Development

We seek to combine research and development spending with our significant knowledge base and
key industry relationships to develop a robust pipeline of new products. We have a very active product
development portfolio that is now substantially more productive than in the past due to the
introduction of a disciplined process for managing research and development throughout the Company.
All projects are closely monitored through each step of development and the basic assumptions about
the market, costs and competition are systematically reviewed to continually validate the viability of the
project.

Our Respiratory Technologies group has broad initiatives to continue the growth of VCS, our
clinical services business, improve our sleep diagnostic and therapy franchise, and develop applications
for nitric oxide, a therapeutic gas with broad clinical efficacy. VCS leverages our competencies in
respiratory medicine, pulmonary mechanics and telemedicine to assist in the management of
pharmaceutical trials. We are adding both software and hardware engineering capabilities to the group
in order to improve our value to the pharmaceutical and biotechnology industries and assist them in
bringing better documented and better understood products to market faster than in the past. We are
also conducting research into potentially significant areas for utilization of nitric oxide. While we are in
the early phases, clinical results on a relatively small number of patients have been promising and we
intend to increase our focus in this area. VMAX and MasterScreen are two competitive but highly
complementary product lines that have given us market leadership in both the U.S. and Europe. In
2005, research and development efforts will begin for the next generation hardware platform that will
capitalize on the strengths of both the MasterScreen and VMAX product lines.
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Our Ciritical Care group is working on a number of initiatives to enhance and expand the
capabilities of our flagship mechanical ventilator platforms, AVEA and VELA. We will continue to
develop these product platforms as long term projects. We are also expanding the use of Heliox
medical gas on our AVEA ventilator. AVEA is the only ventilator approved for use with Heliox gas in
the United States. Heliox is a mixture of medical grade air and helium and its’ lighter than air qualities
make the work of breathing easier for patients with obstructive breathing disorders such as asthma or
COPD. In 2004, we introduced SiPAP, the next generation of our patented INFANT FLOW non-
invasive ventilation product.

Our NeuroCare group launched a number of new products in 2004, including the ENDEAVOR
CR, a much lighter and smaller IOM system. IOM systems are used to monitor the integrity of nerve
pathways during an increasing number of surgical procedures. The use of this equipment requires an
experienced technician; therefore it is not uncommon to move both the technician and equipment into
numerous surgical suites. The new IOM system meets this emerging need with a full-featured, rugged
and durable solution that is one-third lighter and smaller than conventional systems. In addition, we
launched an entire suite of core EEG, EMG, LTM and information technologies in the new
NicoletOne multi-modality system that supports the new dynamic workflow requirements of diagnostic
clinicians. Advanced signal processing, clinical reporting, database and interfacing tools were also
launched (NicVue and V-Link) now improving quality and access of patient information, reducing costs
and improving productivity and quality of care. The AUDERA system was enhanced in 2004 with
important new diagnostic test features and a new software platform that allows for easy integration of
language capability. The vascular technologies group continued to advance with new state-of-the-art
operating system platforms and signal processing advances such as Continuous SoundTrack for
transcranial Doppler monitoring.

Our Medical and Surgical group has recently launched products to establish a new market based
on technologies that determine the position of catheters placed into the body such as feeding tubes and
CVCs. Generally, these catheters are placed “blindly” at the bedside and their position is confirmed by
X-ray. Significant healthcare dollars are spent repositioning these catheters to the optimal position
within the body. These new “medical access” technologies will drastically reduce the dollars spent on
repositioning these catheters. MedSystems also expects to introduce several products to revitalize our
barrier protection systems, including a new helmet system for protecting physicians and patients in the
surgical suite. '

Raw Materials

We believe we have a readily available supply of raw materials for all of our significant products
from various sources and do not anticipate any difficulties in obtaining raw materials essential to our
business. However, some components and raw materials are purchased from sole-source suppliers. We
believe that we have the ability to locate, over time, alternative sources of supply at prices competitive
with our current supplies or to develop the internal capability to produce such components, if
necessary. We have not had a significant production delay that was primarily attributable to an outside
supplier.

Government Regulation
United States

U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”)

In the United States, the testing, manufacture and sale of our products is subject to regulation by
numerous governmental authorities, principally the FDA and corresponding state agencies. Pursuant to
the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act and related regulations, the FDA regulates preclinical and
clinical testing, development, manufacture, labeling, distribution and promotion of medical devices in
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the United States. If we do not comply with applicable requirements, we can be subject to, among
other things:

* FDA warning letters;
* injunctions;

* fines;

* civil penalties;

* recall or seizure of products;

total or partial suspension of production;

operating restrictions/limitations on marketing;

* refusal of the government to grant premarket clearance or premarket approval for devices;
» withdrawal of marketing clearances or approvals; and

* criminal prosecution.

Further, if our suppliers or companies we supply products to do not meet their regulatory
requirements, we could also be materially adversely affected.

A medical device may be marketed in the United States only if: (1) the FDA gives prior
authorization; (2) the device is subject to a specific exemption; or (3) the device was marketed prior to
May 28, 1976, the effective date of the Medical Device Amendments to the Federal Food, Drug and
Cosmetic Act. Depending on the type of medical device, FDA authorization typically takes one of the
following two forms:

» Premarket clearance pursuant to section 510(k) of the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act.
Generally speaking, 510(k) premarket clearance requires that an applicant submit information
which establishes that a proposed device is substantially equivalent to a legally marketed device.
For any devices that are cleared through the 510(k) process, modifications or enhancements that
could significantly affect safety or effectiveness or constitute a major change in the intended use
of the device, require new 510(k) clearances. We believe that it now usually takes from
approximately three to six months from the date of submission to obtain 510(k) clearance,
although it can take substantially longer, depending on the device and its proposed use.

* Premarket approval (“PMA”). For devices that are not exempt or eligible for 510(k) clearance,
the PMA process may be utilized. A PMA application requires an applicant to prove the safety
and effectiveness of the device to the FDA through clinical trials. The process of obtaining PMA
approval is expensive and uncertain. We believe that FDA approval usually takes from one to
three years after filing, but it can take longer, depending on the device.

The FDA classifies medical devices in the following three categories, according to the level of
patient risk associated with a device.

* Class I devices are non-critical products for which general regulatory controls are sufficient to
provide reasonable assurance of safety and effectiveness. Most Class I devices are exempt from
the requirement of 510(k) premarket clearance. The FDA must grant 510(k) premarket
clearance prior to marketing a non-exempt Class I device in the United States.

* Class II devices are products for which general regulatory controls are insufficient to provide
reasonable assurance of safety and effectiveness and which therefore need special regulatory
controls such as compliance with FDA prescribed standards. The FDA must grant 510(k)
premarket clearance prior to marketing a Class II device in the United States.

*» Class III devices are products classified by the FDA as posing the greatest risk, such as
life-sustaining, life-supporting or implantable devices, or devices that are not substantially
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equivalent to a legally marketed Class I or Class II device. The FDA generally must approve a
PMA application prior to marketing a Class III device in the United States. Two of our principal
products, the 3100A and 3100B HFOYV, are Class III devices. The FDA has approved a PMA for
use of the 3100A HFOV product in children in acute respiratory failure with no upper weight
limit. The 3100B HFOV has been approved by the FDA for use in adults with ARDS.

If human clinical trials of a device are required, whether to support a 510(k) or a PMA
application, the sponsor of the trial, which is usually the manufacturer of the distributor of the device,
must have an investigational device exemption (“IDE”), before beginning human clinical trials. If a
device presents a significant risk to the patient, the FDA must approve the sponsor’s IDE application
before the clinical trial may start. An IDE application for a significant risk device must be supported by
data, typically including the results of animal and laboratory testing. If the IDE application is approved
by the FDA and one or more appropriate Institutional Review Boards (“IRB”), human clinical trials
may begin at a specific number of investigational sites with a specific number of patients, as approved
by the FDA. If the device presents a non-significant risk to the patient a sponsor may begin a clinical
trial after obtaining approval for the study by the IRB at each clinical site without the need for FDA
approval of an IDE application.

The Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act regulates our quality control and manufacturing
procedures by requiring us to demonstrate and maintain compliance with the Quality System
Regulation (“QSR”). The QSR sets forth the FDA’s current good manufacturing practices
requirements, which cover the methods used in, and the facilities and controls used for, the design,
manufacture, packaging, labeling, storage, installation and servicing of all finished devices intended for
human use. The QSR covers quality management and organization, device design, buildings,
equipment, purchase and handling of components, production and process controls, packaging and
labeling control, device evaluation, distribution, installation, complaint handling, servicing and records.
These requirements include, among other things, that:

* We use written procedures to control all aspects of our product development, manufacturing
processes, labeling, packaging, handling, storage, distribution, installation and servicing of
medical devices;

* We validate, by extensive and detailed testing, every aspect of each process, and our ability to
produce devices which meet our manufacturing specifications;

» We investigate any deficiencies in the manufacturing process or in the products produced; and

* We maintain detailed recordkeeping relating to all personnel, processes and aspects of the
operation.

The FDA monitors compliance with the QSR and current good manufacturing practice
requirements by conducting periodic inspections of manufacturing facilities. Violations of applicable
regulations noted by the FDA during inspections of our manufacturing facilities could materially
adversely affect the continued marketing of our products.

The FDA enforces post-marketing controls that include the requirement to file medical device
reports (“MDRs”) when we become aware of information suggesting that any of our marketed
products may have caused or contributed to a death, serious injury or serious illness. The FDA also
requires the filing of an MDR when we become aware that any of our products has malfunctioned and
that a recurrence of that malfunction would likely cause or contribute to a death, serious injury or
serious illness. The FDA relies on MDRs to identify product problems and utilizes MDRs as one
mechanism to determine whether it should exercise its enforcement powers.

Other post-marketing requirements are applicable to our devices including, but not limited to,
tracking for certain devices, as well as complaint handling, reporting of corrections and removals and
repair, replacement or refund. Companies can also voluntarily conduct a recall of a problem product.
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Other FDA requirements govern product labeling and promotion and prohibit a manufacturer
from marketing an approved device for unapproved indications, among other things. If the FDA
believes that a manufacturer is not in compliance with the law, it can institute an enforcement action
against the manufacturer, its officers and employees.

Other Regulations

We are also subject to numerous federal, state and local laws relating to safe working conditions,
manufacturing practices, environmental protection, fire hazard control and disposal of hazardous or
potentially hazardous substances.

International

We derive 44% of our revenues from sales of products outside the United States. Sales of medical
devices outside the United States are subject to foreign regulatory requirements that vary widely from
country to country. These laws and regulations range from simple product registration requirements in
some countries to complex clearance and production controls in others. As a result, the processes and
time periods required to obtain foreign marketing approval may be longer or shorter than those
necessary to obtain FDA approval or marketing clearance. These differences may affect the efficiency
and timeliness of international market introduction of new products.

A medical device may only be marketed in the European Union (“EU”) if it complies with the
Medical Devices Directive (“MDD”) and bears the CE mark as evidence of that compliance. To
achieve this the medical devices in question must meet the “essential requirements” defined under the
MDD relating to safety and performance and we, as manufacturer of the devices, must undergo a
verification of our regulatory compliance by a third-party standards certification provider, a so-called
“Notified Body”. The nature of the assessment depends upon the regulatory class of products
concerned, which in turn determines the precise form of testing undertaken by the Notified Body.
Similar to the system in the United States, medical devices in the EU are classified according to the
risks posed by their use, with Class I being low risk devices, Class IIa being medium risk devices,
Class IIb being medium/high risk devices and Class III being high risk devices. Our devices fall into the
medium and high risk categories and as such require a higher level of regulatory assessment. As of
January 1, 2005, our key respiratory technologies, critical care and neurocare products bore the CE
mark.

The requirements of the MDD must be complied with by the “manufacturer of the device” which
is defined as the party responsible for the design, manufacture, packaging and labeling of the device
before it is placed in the EU market, regardless of whether these operations are carried out by this
entity or on its behalf. Therefore, where our specialty products and materials are incorporated by
original equipment manufacturers into their products, compliance with the MDD is their responsibility.

Geographic information is discussed in Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Third-Party Reimbursement

In the United States, health care providers that purchase medical devices generally rely on third-
party payors to reimburse all or a portion of the cost of the devices either directly or bundled as a
component of a reimbursement for health care services. Examples of third-party payors are Medicare,
Medicaid, private health insurance plans and health maintenance organizations. Medicare is a federally
funded program managed by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”), through local
fiscal intermediaries and carriers that administer coverage and reimbursement for certain health care
items and services furnished to the elderly and disabled. Medicaid is an insurance program for the poor
that is both federally and state funded and managed by each state. The federal government sets general
guidelines for Medicaid and each state creates specific regulations that govern their individual program.
Each payer has its own process and standards for determining whether it will cover and reimburse a
procedure or particular product. Private payers often rely on the lead of the governmental payers in

16




rendering coverage and reimbursement determinations. Therefore, achieving favorable Medicare
coverage and reimbursement is usually a significant gating issue for successful introduction of a new
product. The competitive position of some of our products will depend, in part, upon the extent of
coverage and adequate reimbursement for such products and for the procedures in which such products
are used. Prices at which we or our customers seek reimbursement for our products can be subject to
challenge, reduction or denial by the government and other payors.

The federal government and various state governments are currently considering proposals to
reform the Medicare and Medicaid systems. We are unable to evaluate what legislation may be drafted
and whether or when any such legislation will be enacted and implemented. Some of these proposals, if
adopted, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

During the past several years, the major third-party payors have substantially revised their
reimbursement methodologies in an attempt to contain their health care reimbursement costs.
Medicare reimbursement for inpatient hospital services is based on a fixed amount per admission based
on the patient’s specific diagnosis. As a result, any illness to be treated or procedure to be performed
will be reimbursed only at a prescribed rate set by the government that is known in advance to the
health care provider. If the treatment costs less, the provider keeps the overage; if it costs more, the
provider cannot bill the patient for the difference. No separate payment is made in most cases for
products such as our medical devices when they are furnished or used in connection with inpatient
care. Many private third-party payors and some state Medicaid programs have also adopted similar
prospective payment systems.

Third-party payors have recently increased their emphasis on managed care, which has led to an
increased emphasis on the use of cost-effective medical devices by health care providers. In addition,
through their purchasing power, these payors often seek discounts, price reductions or other incentives
from medical product suppliers.

Reimbursement and health care payment systems in international markets vary significantly by
country and include both government sponsored healthcare and private insurance. We have received
international reimbursement approvals for many of our products and plan to seek international
reimbursement approvals for other products. In contrast to the United States, Europe is a highly
fragmented market, with a large number of distinct and uniquely structured healthcare delivery and
payment systems. European health care systems are beginning to confront the same fiscal pressures and
limitations that characterize the United States health care system and are increasingly adopting many of
the same cost and utilization control mechanisms. To the extent that any of our products are not
entitled to reimbursement in any international market, market acceptance of such products would be
materially adversely affected.

In addition to the foregoing Medicare coverage and reimbursement limitations, other aspects of
the Medicare and Medicaid programs may negatively affect the Company. In 1977, Congress adopted
the Medicare and Medicaid Anti-Fraud and Abuse Amendments of 1977, which have been
strengthened by subsequent amendments and the creation of the Office of Inspector General (“OIG”)
to enforce compliance with the statute, as amended (the “Anti-Fraud and Abuse Law”). The
Anti-Fraud and Abuse Law prohibits the knowing and willful offer, payment, solicitation, or receipt of
any remuneration in any form as an inducement or reward for either the referral of patients or the
arranging for reimbursable services. A violation of the statute is a felony and could result in civil
penalties, including exclusion from the Medicare program, even if no criminal prosecution is initiated.

The United States Department of Health and Human Services has issued regulations from time to
time setting forth so-called “safe harbors,” which would protect certain limited types of arrangements
from prosecution under the statute. Failure to comply with each element of a particular safe harbor
does not mean that an arrangement is per se in violation of the Anti-Fraud and Abuse Law. As the
comments to the safe harbors indicate, the purpose of the safe harbors is not to describe all illegal
conduct, but to set forth standards for certain non-violative arrangements. Nevertheless, if an
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arrangement implicates the Anti-Fraud and Abuse Law and full compliance with a safe harbor cannot
be achieved, the Company risks greater scrutiny by the OIG and, potentially, civil and/or criminal
sanctions. The Company believes its arrangements are in compliance with the Anti-Fraud and Abuse
Law; however, no assurance can be given that regulatory authorities will not take a contrary position.

Moreover, the Civil False Claims Act prohibits knowingly presenting (including “causing” the
presentation of) a false, fictitious or fraudulent claim for payment to the United States federal
government. Actions under the Civil False Claims Act may be brought by the Attorney General or as a
qui tam action by a private individual in the name of the government. Violations of the False Claims
Act can result in very significant monetary penalties and treble damages. The federal government is
using the Civil False Claims Act, and the threat of significant liability, in its investigations of health
care providers, suppliers and manufacturers throughout the country for a wide variety of Medicare
billing practices, and has obtained multi-million dollar settlements. Given the significant size of actual
and potential settlements, it is expected that the government will continue to devote substantial
resources in investigating healthcare providers’, suppliers’ and manufacturers’ compliance with health
care billing, coverage and reimbursement rules and fraud and abuse laws.

In addition, federal law includes other provisions that specifically prohibit certain types of
manipulative Medicare billing practices. Federal law also provides for minimum periods of exclusion
from federal and state health care programs for certain offenses and frauds. Many states also have false
claims and other health care fraud and abuse laws, which also may include civil and criminal penalties.

Patents, Licenses and Trademarks

We pursue patent protection of our technology, products and product improvements both in the
United States and in selected foreign countries. We also rely on trade secrets and technological
innovations to develop and maintain our competitive position. In an effort to protect our trade secrets,
we generally require our employees, consultants and advisors to execute confidentiality and invention
assignment agreements upon commencement of employment or consulting relationships with us.

We have entered into a number of license and other arrangements under which we have obtained
rights to manufacture and market some products or potential products. For instance, a number of the
therapeutic-based products that we are developing incorporate proprietary technologies that we have
licensed from third parties. Under our existing licenses, we are subject to commercialization,
development, sublicensing, royalty, insurance and other obligations. If we fail to comply with any of
these requirements, or otherwise breach a license agreement, the licensor may have the right to
terminate the license in whole or to terminate the exclusive nature of the license. In addition, upon the
termination of the license, we may be required to license to the licensor any related intellectual
property that we developed.

We do not consider any patent or related group of patents to be of such importance that its
expiration or termination would materially affect our business.

Competition

The respiratory technologies, critical care, neurocare and medical and surgical product markets are
highly competitive. We compete with many companies ranging from small start-up enterprises to
companies that are larger and more established than us, with access to significant financial resources
and greater name recognition, research and development experience and regulatory, manufacturing,
and marketing capabilities. We believe that we compete in each of our markets primarily on the basis
of reputation, product reliability and performance, product features and benefits, price and post-sale
service and support.

Our Respiratory Technologies and Critical Care segments compete with products from firms such
as Maquet AG, Drager Medical AG, General Electric Company, Tyco Healthcare Group, Ferraris
Group PLC and Respironics, Inc. The principal competitors of our NeuroCare segment include
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Bio-logic Systems Corporation, Nihon Kohden Corporation and XLTEK (Excel Tech Ltd). The
principal competitors of our Medical and Surgical Products segment include the Ross Products Division
of Abbott Laboratories, Tyco Healthcare Group, Vital Signs, Inc., The Dow Chemical Company and

J. P. Stevens Company.

Employees

As of January 1, 2005, we had approximately 1,750 full-time employees, of which approximately
1,400 were employed in the United States. None of our employees based in the United States are
unionized or subject to collective bargaining agreements. Some of our international employees are
represented by either a labor union or a statutory work council arrangement. In countries with labor
unions or work councils, our ability to reduce our workforce or wage rates is subject to agreement or
consultation with the appropriate labor union or works council. We consider our employee relations to
be good.

Available Information

Our website address is www.viasyshealthcare.com. Through a link on the Investors Section of our
website, we make available, free of charge, our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports, and our proxy statements
as soon as reasonably practicable after those reports are electronically filed with or furnished to the
Securities and Exchange Commission. Our Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors, Code of
Conduct, Corporate Governance Guidelines and the charters of the Audit Committee, Compensation
Committee and Nominating and Governance Committee of our Board of Directors are also available
on the Investor Section of our website. Additionally, printed copies of these documents may be
obtained, without charge, by calling our Investor Relations Department at (610) 862-0799 or by
contacting: Investor Relations, VIASYS Healthcare Inc., 227 Washington Street, Suite 200,
Conshohocken, PA 19428.

Risk Factors

Demand for some of our products depends on the capital spending policies of our customers and on
government funding policies. Changes in these policies could negatively affect our business.

A majority of our customers are hospitals. We also sell to laboratories, universities, healthcare
providers and public and private research institutions. Many factors, including public policy spending
provisions, available resources and economic cycles have a significant effect on the capital spending
policies of these entities. These factors can have a significant effect on the demand for our products.
For example, a reduction in funding to major government research supported agencies, such as the
National Institutes of Health or the National Science Foundation, could materially adversely affect sales
of our sleep diagnostic testing equipment.

We depend on third-party reimbursement to our customers for market acceptance of our products.
Our profitability would suffer if third-party payors failed to provide appropriate levels of
reimbursement for the purchase or use of eur products or if any governmental or third-party payor
were to issue an adverse determination or restrictive coverage policy.

Sales of medical products largely depend on the reimbursement of patients’ medical expenses by
government healthcare programs and private health insurers. The cost of some of our products,
particularly our VMAX and MasterScreen pulmonary function and metabolic diagnostic systems, our
epilepsy monitoring systems and our intra-operative monitoring systems is substantial. Without both
favorable coverage determinations by, and the financial support of, government and third-party
insurers, the market for some of our products could be limited.
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Governments and private insurers in many countries closely examine medical products and devices
incorporating new technologies to determine whether to cover and reimburse for the purchase or use
of such products and devices and, if so, the appropriate level of reimbursement. We cannot be sure that
third-party payors will cover and reimburse customers for purchases of future products or that any such
reimbursement will enable us to sell these products at profitable prices. We also cannot be sure that
third-party payors will maintain the current level of reimbursement to physicians and medical centers
for use of our existing products. Adverse coverage determinations or any reduction in the amount of
this reimbursement could harm our business.

During the past several years, major third-party payors have substantially revised their
reimbursement methodologies in an attempt to contain their healthcare reimbursement costs. Third-
party payors have recently increased their emphasis on managed care, which has led to an increased
emphasis on the use of cost-effective medical devices by healthcare providers. In addition, through their
purchasing power, these payors often seek discounts, price reductions or other incentives from medical
products suppliers.

The federal government and private insurers continue to consider ways to change the manner in
which healthcare services are provided and paid for in the United States. In the future, it is possible
that the government may institute price controls and further limits on Medicare and Medicaid
spending. These controls and limits could materially affect the payments we receive from sales of our
products. Internationally, medical reimbursement systems vary significantly, with some medical centers
having fixed budgets, regardless of the level of patient treatment and other countries requiring
application for, and approval of, government or third-party reimbursement. Even if we succeed in
bringing new products to market, uncertainties regarding future healthcare policy, legislation and
regulations, as well as private market practices, could materially affect our ability to sell our products in
commercially acceptable quantities at profitable prices.

‘We may need additional capital to sustain and expand our business, including the development of new
products,

As of January 1, 2005, we had cash and cash equivalents of $122.3 million and a $60.0 million
revolving credit facility under which $58.4 million was available to borrow. On January 24, 2005, we
acquired substantially all of the assets of Navion Biomedical Corporation for a cash purchase price of
$3.5 million, of which $0.2 million will be paid in the first quarter of 2006. On March 1, 2005, we
acquired the global medical business of Oxford Instruments plc for a cash purchase price of
approximately $46.0 million. On March 15, 2005, we acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of
Micro Medical, for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $40.4 million. The purchase price
consisted of approximately $36.6 million in cash (net of cash acquired) and approximately $3.8 million
in assumed debt. The purchase price for these acquisitions was paid from our cash available at year
end. The remaining cash and the credit facility are available to expand our business, either through
acquisitions or development of new products.

Our current credit facility will expire on May 31, 2005. We are currently in the process of
obtaining a new credit facility and anticipate that a new facility will be in place on or before the
expiration date of the current facility. The amount and other terms of the new credit facility have not
yet been finalized. While we anticipate that we will be able to obtain a new credit facility and that the
terms of such facility will be at least as favorable as the current credit facility, there is no guarantee
that we will be able to obtain a new credit facility or that the terms will be attractive to us in financing
our business plans.

Our ability to access the current or new credit facility will depend on complying with the debt
covenants that are part of those agreements. The covenants of our current credit facility include a
maximum ratio of debt to earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation and amortization
(“EBITDA”) of 2.5, a minimum ratio of EBITDA to interest expense of 4.0, maximum annual capital
expenditures of $20 million and a minimum level of stockholders’ equity. We expect the new debt
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covenants to be similar in nature but anticipate that changes, such as the maximum capital expenditure
limit, will be made in order to consider our needs over the term of the new credit facility.

While we are in compliance with the debt covenants of our current credit facility and expect to be
able to meet the requirements of the current credit facility through the expiration date and the
requirements of any new credit facility in the future, failure to satisfy any of the conditions would
require us to renegotiate either facility on terms that may not be as favorable or could require us to
repay any outstanding balance. While we would attempt to find alternative sources to fund our
operations from other financial institutions, we cannot assure you that we would be successful, or if we
were successful, that the new credit facility would be on terms that would be attractive to us in
financing our business plans.

In addition, we may need to seek capital beyond that available under a credit facility. Adequate
funds for these purposes on terms favorable to us, whether through additional equity financing, debt
financing or other sources, may not be available when needed and, if consummated, may result in
significant dilution to existing stockholders. If we are unable to secure additional funding when
required, we may be required to delay, scale back, and/or abandon some or all of our product
development programs or acquisitions.

We face aggressive competition in many areas of our business and our business will be harmed if we
fail to compete effectively.

We encounter aggressive competition from numerous companies in many areas of our business.
Although we believe that our products currently compete favorably with respect to these factors, we
cannot give assurance that we can maintain our competitive position against our current and potential
competitors. Many of our current and potential competitors have longer operating histories, greater
name recognition and substantially greater financial, technical and marketing resources than we have.
We may not be able to compete effectively with these competitors. To remain competitive, we must
develop new products and periodically enhance our existing products. We anticipate that we may have
to adjust the prices of many of our products to stay competitive. In addition, new competitors may
emerge and entire product lines may be threatened by new technologies or market trends that reduce
the value of these product lines.

A significant percentage of our total assets consist of goodwill from acquired companies and we may
be unable to realize the value of this asset.

VIASYS and its former parent company have paid substantial premiums over the net assets of
some of the companies that comprise our business. We have acquired significant intangible assets,
including approximately $190.2 million of cost in excess of net assets of acquired companies, or
goodwill, recorded on our balance sheet as of January 1, 2005. This represents approximately 35% of
our total assets as of that date. Our ability to realize the value of this asset will depend on future cash
flows of the acquired businesses. Cash flow, in turn, depends on how well we have identified these
acquired businesses as desirable acquisition candidates and how well we can integrate these acquired
businesses.

The complexity presented by international operations could have a material adverse effect on our
business.

International revenues account for a substantial portion of our revenues. International revenues,
including export revenues from the United States, accounted for 44% of our total revenues in 2004 and
2003. While we plan to continue expanding our presence in international markets, our international
operations present a number of risks, including the following:

* Foreign laws in a number of countries may limit our ability to properly maintain our distribution
channels. For example, a number of foreign laws restrict our ability to terminate a distributor for
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taking actions that materially adversely affect our business, such as manufacturing and selling
competing products.

* The successful marketing of our products in some countries, including many European countries,
may require us to establish a local presence. The revenues generated in these countries may not
justify the expense of establishing and maintaining such a local presence.

* Fluctuations in currency exchange rates have, on occasion, forced us to lower our prices, thereby
reducing our margins for some of our respiratory and neurodiagnostic products.

Our competitive position is partially dependent on protecting our intellectual property, which can be
difficult and expensive.

We believe that the success of our business depends, in part, on obtaining patent protection for
our products, defending our patents once obtained and preserving our trade secrets. Patent and trade
secret protection is important to us because developing and marketing new technologies and products is
time consuming and expensive. We own many U.S. and foreign patents and intend to apply for
additional patents to cover our products. We may not receive enforceable patents from any pending or
future patent applications owned by or licensed to us. The claims allowed under any issued patents may
not be broad enough to protect our technology.

Our competitive position is also dependent upon unpatented trade secrets. Trade secrets are
difficult to protect. Our competitors may independently develop proprietary information and techniques
that are substantially equivalent to ours or otherwise gain access to our trade secrets, such as through
unauthorized or inadvertent disclosure of our trade secrets. Litigation may be necessary to enforce our
intellectual property rights, to protect our trade secrets and to determine the validity and scope of our
proprietary rights. Any litigation could result in substantial expense and diversion of attention from our
business and may not adequately protect our intellectual property rights.

In addition, we may be sued by third parties claiming that our products infringe on the intellectual
property rights of others. This risk is exacerbated by the fact that the validity and breadth of claims
covered in medical technology patents involve complex legal and factual questions for which important
legal principles are unresolved. Any litigation or claims against us, whether or not valid, could result in
substantial costs, place a significant strain on our financial resources, divert management resources and
harm our reputation. Such claims could result in awards of substantial damages, which could have a
material adverse impact on our operating results. In addition, intellectual property litigation or claims
could force us to:

* cease selling, incorporating or using any of our products that incorporate the challenged
intellectual property, which would materially adversely affect our revenue;

* obtain a license from the holder of the infringed intellectual property right, which license may
not be available on reasonable terms, if at all; or

* redesign our products, which would be costly and time-consuming.

If we breach any of the agreements under which we license commercialization rights to products or
technology from others, we could lose license rights that are important to our business.

We license rights to products and technology that are important to our business and we expect to
enter into additional licenses in the future. Although the products and technology that we currently
license account for less than 5% of our total annual revenues, we expect that this percentage will
increase as we develop and introduce additional licensed products to the market. For instance, a
number of the therapy-based products that we are developing incorporate proprietary technologies that
we have licensed from third parties. Under these licenses, we are subject to commercialization,
development, sublicensing, royalty, insurance and other obligations. If we fail to comply with any of
these requirements, or otherwise breach a license agreement, the licensor may have the right to
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terminate the license in whole or to terminate the exclusive nature of the license. In addition, upon the
termination of the license, we may be required to license to the licensor any related intellectual
property that we developed.

Our ability to market and sell our products depends upon receipt of domestic and foreign regulatory
approval of our products and manufacturing operations. Our failure to obtain or maintain regulatory
approvals and compliance could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Our products and manufacturing operations are subject to extensive regulation in the United
States by the FDA and by similar regulatory agencies in many other countries in which we do business.
The principal risks that we face in obtaining and maintaining the regulatory approvals necessary to
market our products include:

» The approval process for medical devices in the United States and abroad can be lengthy,
expensive and require extensive preclinical and clinical trials. As a result, we may expend
substantial resources in developing and testing a new product but fail to obtain the necessary
approvals or clearances to market or manufacture the product on a timely basis or at all.

* When we modify a medical device for which we have received marketing approval, we must
determine whether the modification requires us to seek new regulatory approvals. If the FDA or
other regulatory agency does not agree with our determination, we may be prohibited from
marketing the modified device until we receive the requisite regulatory approval or clearance. In
addition, the FDA actively enforces regulations prohibiting marketing of devices for indications
or uses that have not been cleared or approved by the FDA.

* The FDA and foreign regulatory agencies require us to comply with an array of manufacturing
and design controls and testing, quality control, storage and documentation procedures. Because
our business is geographically dispersed in the United States and abroad, compliance with these
procedures is difficult and costly.

If we fail to comply with applicable regulations, we could be subject to a number of enforcement
actions, including warning letters, fines, product seizures, recalls, injunctions, total or partial suspension
of production, operating restrictions or limitations on marketing, refusal of the government to grant
new clearances or approvals, withdrawal of marketing clearances or approvals and civil and criminal
penalties. Companies may also voluntarily conduct a recall of a problem product. For a summary of
government regulations applicable to our business, see “Business—Government Regulation.”

We may be unable to successfully develop and/or commercialize our new and existing products.

We have undertaken a substantial internal development strategy under which we anticipate
developing a number of therapy and service-based products. This strategy represents a departure from
our traditional business model and we may not have sufficient expertise and experience necessary to
successfully implement this new strategy and develop these new products. Furthermore, the successful
development and commercialization of these new products will depend upon our ability to obtain
regulatory approvals, as discussed above. If we are unable to obtain these regulatory approvals, we will
be unable to market and sell our products, which will negatively affect our business. Even if we are
able to obtain regulatory approval for our products we may have difficulty in bringing these products to
market. In addition, once our new products are brought to market, their shipment may be delayed or
the products may have to be discontinued based on design, mechanical, software, regulatory or other
issues. These matters may materially adversely affect our business and reputation.

Our dependence on suppliers for materials could impair our ability to manufacture our products.

Outside vendors, some of which are sole-source suppliers, provide key components and raw
materials that we use in the manufacture of our products. Although we believe that alternative sources
for these components and raw materials are available, any supply interruption in a limited or
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sole-source component or raw material could harm our ability to manufacture the affected product
until we identify and qualify a new source of supply. In addition, an uncorrected defect or supplier’s
variation in a component or raw material, either unknown to us or incompatible with our
manufacturing process, could harm our ability to manufacture the affected product. We may not be
able to find a qualified alternative supplier in a reasonable time period, or on commercially reasonable
terms, if at all, which could impair our ability to produce and supply our products. If we cannot obtain
a necessary component, we may need to find, test and obtain regulatory approval for a replacement
component, which would cause significant delays that could have a material adverse effect on our
business and operating results.

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents and under Delaware law could prevent or delay
transactions that our stockholders may favor.

Provisions of our charter and by-laws may discourage, delay or prevent a merger or acquisition
that our stockholders may consider favorable, including transactions in which our stockholders might
otherwise receive a premium for their shares. For example, these provisions:

+ authorize the issuance of “blank check” preferred stock without any need for action by
stockholders;

* provide for a classified board of directors with staggered three-year terms;

* require supermajority stockholder approval to effect various amendments to our charter and
by-laws;

* eliminate the ability of stockholders to call special meetings of stockholders;

* prohibit stockholder action by written consent; and

* establish advance notice requirements for nominations for election to the board of directors or
for proposing matters that can be acted on by stockholders at stockholder meetings.

In addition, our board of directors has adopted a stockholder rights plan intended to protect
stockholders in the event of an unfair or coercive offer to acquire our Company and to provide our
board of directors with adequate time to evaluate unsolicited offers. This rights plan may have
anti-takeover effects. The rights plan would cause substantial dilution to a person or group that
attempts to acquire us on terms that our board of directors does not believe are in the best interests of
us and our stockholders and may discourage, delay or prevent a merger or acquisition that stockholders
may consider favorable, including transactions in which our stockholders might otherwise receive a
premium for their shares.

Item 2. Properties

The following is a summary of the properties we owned or leased at January 1, 2005:

Leased/

Location Owned  Purpose Business Segment

Yorba Linda, CA . ... ... Leased Manufacturing, research and development, sales and Respiratory Technologies
administration

Hoechberg, Germany . ... Leased Manufacturing, research and development, sales and Respiratory Technologies
administration

Bilthoven, the Netherlands . Leased Sales and warehousing Respiratory Technologies

Paris, France . .. ... .... Leased Sales offices Respiratory Technologies

Palm Springs, CA. ... ... Owned Manufacturing, research and development, sales and Critical Care
administration

Palm Springs, CA. ... ... Leased Warehousing facility Critical Care

Brighton, United Kingdom . Leased Property is vacant Critical Care
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Location

Brighton, United Kingdom .
Coventry, United Kingdom .

Market Harborough, United
Kingdom...........

Madison, WI. ... ......

Fitchburg, WL . ... ... ..
Fitchburg, WI .. ... .. ..
Golden, CO .. ........
Reykjavik, Iceland
Bristol, United Kingdom . .

Bristol, United Kingdom . .
Bristol, United Kingdom . .
Warwick, United Kingdom .
Osaka, Japan
Tokyo, Japan. .........
Woburn, MA
Woburn, MA . ... ... ..
Wilmington, MA . ......
Wheeling, IL. . . . ......

Conshohocken, PA . ... ..

Leased/
Owned

Leased
Leased
Leased

Leased

Leased

Purpose

Property is vacant
Subleased to a third-party tenant
Subleased to a third-party tenant

Manufacturing, research and development, sales and
administration

Manufacturing and research and development
Warehousing facility

Sales and administration

Research and development and administration

Manufacturing, research and development, sales and
administration

Administration and warehousing

Warehousing facility

Sales, administration and warehousing

Sales and administration

Sales and administration

Manufacturing, research and development and sales
Subleased to a third-party tenant

Manufacturing and administration

Manufacturing, research and development, sales and
administration

Executive offices

Business Segment
Critical Care
Critical Care
Critical Care

NeuroCare

NeuroCare
NeuroCare
NeuroCare
NeuroCare
NeuroCare

NeuroCare
NeuroCare
NeuroCare
NeuroCare
NeuroCare
Medical and Surgical Products
Medical and Surgical Products
Medical and Surgical Products
Medical and Surgical Products

Corporate

In connection with our acquisition of EME in 2002, we developed a plan to close two facilities
located in Brighton, United Kingdom. These leases expire in March 2005 and April 2007.

As a result of our restructuring activities, there are a number of properties that are leased by us
that we do not currently use or occupy. These vacant properties include a facility located in Coventry,
United Kingdom, and a facility located in Market Harborough, United Kingdom. These leases expire in
September 2010 and December 2014, respectively, and are currently being subleased to a third-party.

In connection with the divestment of our polyurethane business in 2003, we closed a facility in
Woburn, MA. This lease expires in September 2005 and is currently being subleased to a third-party

through April 2005.

During the first quarter of 2005, all manufacturing operations previously performed in the
Company’s leased facility in Yorba Linda, California, were relocated to the Company’s owned facility in
Palm Springs, California. During the first quarter of 2005, all sales and administration functions
previously conducted in the Company’s owned facility in Palm Springs and the leased facility in Yorba

Linda were relocated to a newly leased facility in Yorba Linda, California.

We believe our facilities to be in good condition, ate suitable and adequate to accommodate our
needs for the foreseeable future, and are, with minor exceptions, fully utilized and operating at normal

capacity.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

There are no material pending legal proceedings or threatened claims to which we or any of our
subsidiaries is a party or of which any of our properties are subject.

However, Tecomet Inc. (“Tecomet”), a subsidiary of VIASYS Healthcare Inc., has been advised by
Smith & Nephew, Inc. (“S&N”) that S&N may file a claim against Tecomet for indemnity and/or
contribution in connection with more than 400 claims settled by S&N with patients who allegedly
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required revision surgeries resulting from S&N knee implants. Tecomet supplied knee components and
a surface texture to S&N that were allegedly used in the S&N knee implants. Tecomet learned in 2003
that S&N had advised the FDA that S&N was voluntarily withdrawing certain of its knee systems from
the market due to unspecified problems that required revision surgery in some patients. Tecomet is
investigating the claims made by S&N. At this stage, it is not possible to predict the likelihood or
amount of any liability on the part of Tecomet nor the amount, if any, that would be covered under the
Company’s product liability insurance policies. If a suit is filed against Tecomet, Tecomet intends to
defend it vigorously. In 2004, Tecomet was named as a defendant in two lawsuits in Texas brought by
plaintiffs alleging that they had to undergo revision surgeries when their S&N implants failed. The
amount of damages sought in these two cases is immaterial to the Company. These two cases were
dismissed without prejudice in 2004.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matter was submitted to a vote of security holders through the solicitation of proxies or
otherwise during the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2004.
Item 4A. Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following is a list or our executive officers, their ages and positions as of March 9, 2005:

Name Age Positions and Offices Presently Held

Randy H. Thurman. .. ... 55 Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer

Matthew M. Bennett. . . .. 33 Senior Vice President, Legal and Corporate Development, and
Secretary

LoriJ.Cross .......... 44  Group President, NeuroCare

Martin P. Galvan ....... 52 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Director of Investor
Relations

John F Imperato ....... 47 Corporate Vice President, Finance

Thomas I. Kuhn . .. ... .. 51 Group President, MedSystems

Gregory G. Martin ... ... 49 Division President, Customer Care

Frank J. McCaney ...... 50  Senior Vice President, Business Development

Giulio A. Perillo . . .. ... 58 Group President, VIASYS Orthopedics

Edward Pulwer . ........ 58 Executive Vice President and Group President, Respiratory Care

Mahboob H. Raja....... 45 Group President, International

Wesley N. Riemer....... 47  Vice President and Corporate Treasurer

Set forth below are biographical summaries, including positions and offices held during the past
five years, of our executive officers as of March 9, 2005. There are no family relationships among the
executive officers. The executive officers are elected or appointed by the Board of Directors of the
Company or by an appropriate subsidiary board of directors to serve until the election or appointment
and qualification of their successors or their earlier death, resignation or removal.

Randy H. Thurman; Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Thurman has served as Chief Executive Officer since April 2001 and became Chairman of the
Board upon our spin-off in November 2001. Since July 2004, Mr. Thurman has also served as
President. From 1996 to April 2001, Mr. Thurman served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
Strategic Reserves LLC, a privately held company providing funding and strategic direction to
healthcare technology companies. From 1993 to 1996, Mr. Thurman was Chairman and CEO of
Corning Life Sciences, Inc., which was a global leader in clinical laboratory testing, pharmaceutical
research and esoteric reference testing. Concurrent with the aforementioned positions, Mr. Thurman
served as Chairman of the Board of Enzon Pharmaceuticals, Inc. from 1994 to 2001 (Nasdaq: ENZN).
From 1984 to 1993, Mr. Thurman held various positions at Rhone-Poulenc Rorer Pharmaceuticals, Inc.,
a global pharmaceutical company, ultimately as its President. Mr. Thurman also serves as Lead
Director of Valeant Pharmaceuticals International (NYSE: VRX) and as a director of Closure Medical
Corporation (Nasdaq: CLSR).




Matthew M. Bennett; Senior Vice President, Legal and Corporate Development, and Secretary

Mr. Bennett has served as Senior Vice President, Legal and Corporate Development, and
Secretary since September 2004. From October 2003 to September 2004, Mr. Bennett served as
Corporate Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary. Prior to joining the Company, from
August 1997 to October 2003, Mr. Bennett was a transactional attorney at Morgan, Lewis and Bockius
LLP. While at Morgan, Lewis and Bockius LLF, Mr. Bennett represented the Company since our
spin-off in 2001. From September 1996 to August 1997, Mr. Bennett was a litigator at Stradley, Ronon,
Stevens & Young LLP and was previously a clerk for the Superior Court of New Jersey.

Lori J. Cross; Group President, NeuroCare

Ms. Cross has served as Group President, NeuroCare since November 2003. Ms. Cross joined the
Company from General Electric-Datex-Ohmeda, Inc. where from 1998 to November 2003 she was
President of Datex-Ohmeda U.S., responsible for the Anesthesia and Drug Delivery and Ventilation
business areas and the U.S. Anesthesia Care selling organization. From 1997 to 1998, Ms. Cross was
General Manager, Global Information Solutions Business of Datex-Engstrom in Karlsruhe, Germany.
Prior to 1997, Ms. Cross held various positions with Smith & Nephew Dyonics, Inc. and Baxter
Edwards, Inc.

Martin P. Galvan; Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Director of Investor Relations

Mr. Galvan has served as Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Director of Investor
Relations since June 2001. From June 2001 to October 2003, Mr. Galvan was also Secretary. Prior to
joining the Company, from 1999 to 2001, Mr. Galvan was Chief Financial Officer of Rodel, Inc. From
1979 to 1998, Mr. Galvan held several positions with Rhone-Poulenc Rorer Pharmaceuticals, Inc.,
including Vice President, Finance Worldwide; President & General Manager, RPR Mexico & Central
America; Vice President, Finance, Europe/Asia Pacific and Chief Financial Officer, United Kingdom &
Ireland.

John F. Imperato; Corporate Vice President, Finance

Mr. Imperato has served as Corporate Vice President, Finance since October 2001. Prior to joining
the Company, from 2000 to 2001, Mr. Imperato was Chief Financial Officer of Auxilium A2, Inc., a
start-up pharmaceutical company engaged in development and marketing of ethical pharmaceutical
products. From 1999 to 2000, Mr. Imperato was Chief Financial Officer of Omnicare Clinical Services,
Inc., a contract research organization. From 1984 to 1998, Mr. Imperato held several positions with
Rhone-Poulenc Rorer Pharmaceuticals, Inc., including Vice President, Finance, Worldwide Industrial
Operations.

Thomas I. Kuhn; Group President, MedSystems

Mr. Kuhn has served as Group President, MedSystems since 2002. Mr. Kuhn served as President
of Corpak from 1992 to 2002. From 1983 to 1992, Mr. Kuhn held the following positions at Corpak:
Senior Vice President from 1989 to 1992, Vice President, Operations from 1987 to 1989, Vice President
Finance and Administration from 1985 to 1987 and Controller from 1983 to 1985.

Gregory G. Martin; Division President, Customer Care

Mr. Martin has served as Division President, Customer Care since November 2003. Prior to joining
the Company, from 1997 to November 2003, Mr. Martin held the following positions with DecisionOne:
Senior Vice President, Field Operations from November 1999 to November 2003, Senior Vice
President, Major Account Operations for DecisionOne’s top 200 Customers from January 1999 to
November 1999, and Vice President and General Manager of DecisionOne Canada from 1997 to
January 1999.
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Frank J. McCaney; Senior Vice President, Business Development

Mr. McCaney has served as Senior Vice President, Business Development since April 2001. From
October 1998 to April 2001, Mr. McCaney served as Vice President, Global Marketing and Business
Development. Prior to joining the Company, from 1995 to 1998, Mr. McCaney was Vice President of
Business Development at Diametrics Medical, Inc. From 1990 to 1995, Mr. McCaney held a number of
management positions at the Lab Systems Division of Boehringer Mannheim Corporation, a clinical
diagnostics business, principally as Area Business Manager.

Giulio A. Perillo; Group President, VIASYS Orthopedics

Mr. Perillo has served as Group President, VIASYS Orthopedics since September 2004, Mr. Perillo
served as Group President, Operations and Corporate Quality from October 2003 to September 2004
and Corporate Vice President, Operations Management and Systems from March 2003 to
October 2003. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Perillo worked for Cardinal Health, Inc. as Vice
President and General Manager of Cardinal Health’s contract pharmaceutical and development
business. From 1998 to 2000, Mr. Perillo was President of Omnicare Pharmaceutics, Inc. From 1997 to
1998, Mr. Perillo was President and Chief Operating Officer of USA Detergents, Inc. From 1994 to
1997, Mr. Perillo was Vice President and General Manager of Centeon Bio-Services, Inc., a global
plasma collection company. From 1990 to 1994, Mr. Perillo was Vice President, Worldwide
Manufacturing of Rhone-Poulenc Rorer Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Edward Pulwer; Executive Vice President, Group President, Respiratory Care

Mr. Pulwer has served as Executive Vice President, Group President, Respiratory Care since
July 2004. Mr. Pulwer served as Group President, Critical Care from November 2002 to July 2004,
Group President, Respiratory Technologies from July 2001 to November 2002, General Manager of
SensorMedics from 1999 to July 2001 and Vice President of Sales of SensorMedics from 1996 to 1999.
Mr. Pulwer held various sales and marketing positions at SensorMedics from 1983 to 1996. Prior to
joining the Company, from 1977 to 1983, Mr. Pulwer was Group Product Manager for Respiratory
Care Products of American Hospital Supply Corporation, Scientific Products Division, which is
currently a division of Cardinal Health, Inc.

Mahboob H. Raja; Group President, International

Mr. Raja has served as Group President, International since April 2003. Mr. Raja served as Vice
President, European Sales from October 2001 to April 2003, Vice President Worldwide Sales and
Marketing from 2000 to October 2001, Vice President, International Sales from 1999 to 2000 and
Managing Director, International Sales from 1997 to 1999. Mr. Raja held various sales and marketing
positions with Nicolet Biomedical from 1992 to 1997. Prior to the acquisition by Nicolet Biomedical of
BMSI Holdings, Inc., from 1985 to 1992 Mr. Raja held the post of General Manager and also served as
Head of Engineering and Customer Service with BMSI/Neuroscience Ltd. in the United Kingdom.

Wesley N. Riemer; Vice President and Corporate Treasurer

Mr. Riemer has served as Vice President and Corporate Treasurer since December 2001. Prior to
joining the Company, from August 1998 to December 2001, Mr. Riemer was Assistant Vice President,
International Tax at CIGNA Corporation. From June 1991 to August 1998, Mr. Riemer held several
positions within Rhone-Poulenc Rorer Pharmaceuticals, Inc.’s tax department, most recently as
Director, International Tax Planning.
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PART 11
Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchase of
Equity Securities

Our common stock is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange (the “NYSE”) under the
symbol “VAS”. The following table sets forth the high and low closing sale prices of our common stock
as reported by the NYSE for each quarter period during the last two fiscal years.

High Low

Fiscal Year Ended January 1, 2005

Quarter ended April 3, 2004 . . . ... L. e $24.80 $20.38
Quarter ended July 3, 2004 . . . .. ... e $24.00 $19.00
Quarter ended October 2,2004 . . .. ... .. it e e $20.11 $13.88
Quarter ended January 1, 2005 . ... ... .. e $19.40 $16.76
Fiscal Year Ended January 3, 2004

Quarter ended March 29,2003 . ... ... .. ...t $15.51  $12.00
Quarter ended June 28, 2003 . .. ... .. $21.14 $14.00
Quarter ended September 27, 2003 . . ... ..t e $23.15 $19.74
Quarter ended January 3, 2004 . . ... ... e $21.16 $18.05

On March 9, 2005, there were approximately 7,200 holders of record of our common stock. On
March 9, 2005, the closing sale price of our common stock on the NYSE was $20.16.

Since our spin-off, we have not paid any cash dividends on our common stock and do not
anticipate paying cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future. We currently intend to
retain any current and future earnings to finance the growth and development of our business. Further,
our senior revolving credit facility contains provisions that indirectly limit our ability to pay cash
dividends.

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction with our
Consolidated Financial Statements and the accompanying notes and “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” included elsewhere in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K. The consolidated statements of income data for the years ended January 1, 2005,
January 3, 2004 and December 28, 2002, and the consolidated balance sheet data as of January 1, 2005
and January 3, 2004, are derived from our audited consolidated financial statements included in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K. The consolidated statements of income data for the years ended
December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000 and the consolidated balance sheet data as of
December 28, 2002, December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000 are derived from our audited
consolidated financial statements not included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The historical
results presented here are not necessarily indicative of future results.
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Year Ended

Jan. 1, Jan, 3, Dec. 28, Dec. 29, Dec. 30,
2005(1) 2004(2) 2002(3) 2001(3)(4)  2000(3)(4)

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Consolidated Statements of Income Data:

REVEIUES . . o v oo ot ettt $393,202 $394,947 $342,452 $322,503 $310,279
Costof Revenues . ..................... 218,870 212,787 181,625 169,799 160,677
Gross Marginn. . ........... ... . oL 174,332 182,160 160,827 152,704 149,602
Operating Expenses:
Selling, general and administrative expense.. 124,847 112,856 95,384 93,116 92,197
Research and development expense . ...... 23,452 26,455 26,459 29,116 23,266
Restructuring charges . ................ 9,044 1,797 5,731 5,748 1,908
Purchased in-process research and
development ...................... 386 — 900 — —
Legal settlement . .. .................. (6,000) — — — —
Total operating expenses . ............ 151,729 141,108 128,474 127,980 117,371
Operating Income . .................... 22,603 41,052 32,353 24,724 32,231
Other Income (Expense), net ............. 908 (1,908) (2,020 (1,742)  (2,661)
Income from Continuing Operations Before
Income TAXES . . ..o, 23,511 39,144 30,333 22,982 29,570
Provision for Income Taxes . . ............. (8,475) (13,306) (11,485)  (9,751) (12,936)
Minority Interest Expense. ............... — — — — (191)
Income from Continuing Operations . . ... ... 15,036 25,838 18,848 13,231 16,443

Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations
(net of income tax expense (benefit) of

($128), ($665), (37,821), $2,006 and $1,753) . (205)  (4,252) (13,524) 3,031 2,450
NetIncome . .......... .o, $ 14,831 $ 21586 $ 5324 $ 16,262 $ 18,893
Earnings (Loss) per Share:

Basic:
Continuing Operations ................ $ 49 $ 91 ¢ 72§ 51 %8 .63
Discontinued Operations . . .. ........... (.01) (.15) (52) 12 .10
$ 48 $ 76 $ 20 § 63 § 73
Diluted:
Continuing Operations . ............... $§ 48 % 8 $ 71§ 51 % .63
Discontinued Operations . . .. ........... (.01 (14) (.51) q1 .10

$ 47 8 75 8 20 8 62 8 73

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding:
Basic ......... ... i i, 30,809 28,284 26,080 26,002 26,000

Diluted ......... ... ... it 31,403 28,905 26,603 26,076 26,000

Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Total ASSets . . ... o i e $547,836 $504,325 $441,500 $405,153 $390,351

Long-Term Debt Obligations . . . . .......... — — — — —

Other Financial Data:
Cash Dividends Declared Per Common Share . —
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(1) In the second quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company settled its litigation with ING Therapeutics,
LLC and received a payment of $6,000 in connection with the dismissal of the litigation (See
Note 15 of our Consolidated Financial Statements).

(2) In June 2003, we issued 3,450 shares of common stock in a follow-on public offering. The net
proceeds generated by the offering were $62,689.

(3) The results of operation data for the years ended December 28, 2002, December 29, 2001 and
December 30, 2000 have been adjusted to reflect certain businesses as discontinued operations
(See Note 14 of our Consolidated Financial Statements).

(4) We adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets” (“SFAS No.142”), effective December 30, 2001. In connection with adopting
SFAS No. 142, we no longer amortize goodwill or intangible assets with indefinite lives.
Amortization of these assets for the years ended December 29, 2001 and December 30, 2000 was
$4,114 and $3,900, respectively, net of tax.

Item 7. Mapagement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Results of Operations

Comparison of Results for the Year Ended January 1, 2005 to the Year Ended January 3, 2004
Revenues

Revenues decreased $1.7 million to $393.2 million in 2004 from $394.9 million in 2003. This
decrease was due to lower sales of $6.9 million in NeuroCare and $0.6 million in Critical Care, partially
offset by increases of $4.0 million in Medical and Surgical Products and $1.8 million in Respiratory
Technologies. The decrease was driven primarily by lower sales of our older products in NeuroCare,
while Critical Care experienced lower international sales in 2004 as a result of unusually high sales in
2003 due to the SARS epidemic and $7.5 million of government tenders. These decreases were partially
offset by the favorable impact of foreign currency translation of $7.3 million as well as increased sales
in our orthopedics business and enteral feeding tube product lines.

Cost of Revenues and Gross Margin

Cost of revenues increased $6.1 million to $218.9 million in 2004 from $212.8 million in 2003.
Gross margin decreased $7.9 million to $174.3 million in 2004 from $182.2 million in 2003. Gross
margin as a percentage of revenues decreased 1.8 percentage points to 44.3% in 2004 from 46.1% in
2003. The decrease in gross margin was primarily due to lower sales, a non-recurring high margin sale
to a foreign government agency in the first quarter of 2003, higher warranty costs and inventory
write-offs partially offset by the favorable impact of foreign currency translation of $3.4 million.

Selling, General and Administrative Expense

Selling, general and administrative expense increased $11.9 million to $124.8 million in 2004 from
$112.9 million in 2003. This increase was primarily due to the following factors: higher expenses related
to the expansion of our field sales, service and marketing organizations; $2.9 million from the impact of
foreign currency translation; compliance costs associated with the provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002; and higher legal expenses related to defending our intellectual property and the litigation
involving the commercialization of nitric oxide gas. Partially offsetting these increases were savings
related to the restructuring plan initiated in the third quarter of 2004 and lower incentive
compensation.

Research and Development Expense

Research and development expense decreased $3.0 million to $23.5 million in 2004 from
$26.5 million in 2003. This decrease is largely attributable to the continued streamlining and refocusing
of the Company’s research and development programs as well as the movement of several projects out
of research and development into commercialization partially offset by new development projects.
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Restructuring Charges

Restructuring charges were $9.0 million in 2004, compared to $1.8 million in 2003.

In the third quarter of 2004, we initiated a company-wide restructuring plan to lower our cost
structure. The principal components of the plan include reducing worldwide headcount by
approximately 220 employees, transitioning the Respiratory Technologies’ U.S. manufacturing
operations from Yorba Linda, California to our Critical Care facility in Palm Springs, California,
combining Critical Care’s U.S. commercial operations with Respiratory Technologies’ U.S. commercial
operations in a newly leased facility in Yorba Linda, California, and the closure of a facility in
Bilthoven, the Netherlands. The plan involves the termination of employees in Germany, the
Netherlands, the United Kingdom and the United States. The total amount of restructuring expense
expected to be incurred in connection with this plan is between $9.5 million and $11.0 million. In 2004,
we recorded a restructuring charge relating to this plan of approximately $8.6 million, including
$8.3 million for severance, $0.2 million for employee retention and $0.1 million for other costs. As of
January 1, 2005, 200 of the targeted employees had been severed and $4.3 million of severance had
been paid. We expect all components of the plan to be substantially completed by the end of 2005. We
estimate that as a result of this plan we will achieve annual operating expense savings of approximately
$12.0 million in fiscal 2005,

In the fourth quarter of 2003, we initiated a plan to close a machine shop and reduce the number
of customer service positions at a Respiratory Technologies’ facility in Germany. Due to German labor
regulations, certain positions cannot be eliminated immediately. As a result of this plan, 24 positions
are being eliminated over a period of five years. As of January 1, 2005, 14 of these positions had been
eliminated. Severance expense for the remaining 10 employees will continue to be recorded ratably
over their remaining employment term. The total amount of restructuring expense expected to be
incurred in connection with this plan is approximately $2.0 million. As of January 1, 2005, a total of
$1.2 million of expense had been incurred related to this plan, of which $0.9 million was recognized in
2004. Once this plan is complete, the annual savings from this plan are expected to total approximately
$1.3 million, which will be realized over the next four years as the positions are eliminated.

On August 6, 2003, we commenced a plan to restructure our NeuroCare segment. The
restructuring plan included the termination of 55 general and .administrative, service and manufacturing
positions. The plan was carried out in the third and fourth quarters of 2003. The total amount of
restructuring expense incurred in connection with this plan was approximately $0.6 million, all of which
was expensed and paid in 2003. Beginning in 2004, this plan resulted in annual cost savings of
approximately $3.5 million, much of which was reinvested into other areas in NeuroCare, such as sales
and research and development.

In 2003, as a result of the acquisition of EME, the Company initiated a restructuring plan related
to its Critical Care segment, which resulted in the elimination of 48 positions in the areas of sales,
finance, service and research and development. The total amount of restructuring expense incurred in
connection with this plan was approximately $0.9 million, most of which was expensed and paid in
2003. Beginning in 2004, this plan resulted in annual cost savings of approximately $2.0 million.

Purchased in-process research and development

During 2004, we recorded a $0.4 million non-recurring charge to write-off in-process research and
development costs attributed to the acquisition of substantially all of the assets of Taugagreining. There
were no in-process research and development charges incurred in 2003.

Legal Settlement

In the second quarter of 2004, we settled the litigation with INO Therapeutics, LLC (“INO
Therapeutics”), AGA AB, and The General Hospital Corporation regarding the use and sale of nitric
oxide gas and devices and received a payment of $6.0 million in connection with the dismissal of the
litigation.
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Provision for Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate was 36.0% in 2004 compared to 34.0% in 2003. The effective tax rate in
2004 was more than the statutory federal income tax rate of 35.0% primarily because of the impact of
state income taxes, lower tax rates on net foreign losses and purchased in-process research and
development charges that are not deductible for tax purposes. The 2004 effective tax rate impact of
nondeductible purchased in-process research and development was an increase of 0.5 percentage points.
These increases in the effective tax rate were partially offset by the tax benefit attributable to U.S.
export sales. The effective tax rate in 2003 was less than the statutory federal income tax rate of 35.0%
primarily because of the tax benefit attributable to U.S. export sales and U.S. research and
development tax credits.

Discontinued Operations

The net loss from discontinued operations was $0.2 million in 2004, compared to $4.3 million in
2003. In 2003, we sold Medical Data Electronics (“MDE”) and our Thermedics Polymer business
(“Thermedics™). The results of operations of MDE and Thermedics have been reclassified as
discontinued operations for all periods presented. During 2004, we incurred an additional charge of
$0.2 million, net of taxes of $0.1 million, related to the divestiture of Thermedics. The net loss from
discontinued operations incurred in 2003 included a net loss from Thermedics and MDE of $2.4 million
and $1.9 million, respectively. The net loss from Thermedics included an after-tax loss on disposal,
including expenses, of approximately $2.6 million. The net loss from MDE included an after-tax loss on
disposal, including expenses, of $1.0 million.

Segment Information
Respiratory Technologies

Revenues increased $1.8 million to $115.9 million in 2004 from $114.1 million in 2003. This
increase was primarily attributable to the favorable impact of foreign currency translation of
$4.9 million, an increase in service revenue of $3.1 million including $1.5 million received from INO
Therapeutics based on our submission of a research and development plan in connection with a
co-development agreement in the pulmonary infection/inflammation field. These increases were
partially offset by lower revenues in our Clinical Services business due to delays in the initiation of
several clinical trials and lower domestic sales of sleep therapy systems due to a legal dispute, which
was settled favorably in early 2005.

Operating income decreased $7.1 million to $7.3 million in 2004 from $14.4 million in 2003. This
decrease was mainly due to the following: costs of $7.1 million related to the restructuring plan
initiated in the third quarter of 2004; increases in selling, general and administration expense; lower
gross margin attributable to a change in product mix caused by the reduced revenues in our Clinical
Services business; and costs related to the German restructuring plan initiated in the fourth quarter of
2003 of $0.9 million in 2004 compared to $0.3 million in 2003. Selling, general and administrative
expense increased primarily due to the establishment of the infrastructure of our Clinical Services
business, higher expenses related to the expansion of our field sales and service organizations, and
higher legal expenses incurred to defend certain intellectual property. These reductions in operating
income were partially offset by the $6.0 million legal settlement from INO Therapeutics received in the
second quarter of 2004 and a reduction in incentive pay.

Cnitical Care

Revenues decreased $0.6 million to $132.3 million in 2004 from $132.9 million in 2003. This
decrease was primarily due to lower international sales as a result of $7.5 million of government
tenders in 2003 and sales of $3.1 million related to the SARS epidemic in 2003 partially offset by
increased sales of the new AVEA and VELA ventilators and an increase in service revenue of
$1.7 million.

Operating income decreased $8.0 million to $16.8 million in 2004 from $24.8 million in 2003. The
decrease in operating income was primarily due to an increase in selling, general and administrative
expense related to the expansion of our sales, service and marketing organizations, costs incurred to
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consolidate our California manufacturing operations, inventory write-offs and costs of $0.5 million
related to the restructuring plan initiated in the third quarter of 2004. These decreases in operating
income were partially offset by spending reductions in research and development and costs in 2003 of
$0.9 million related to the EME restructuring plan initiated in 2003.

NeuroCare

Revenues decreased $6.9 million to $85.1 million in 2004 from $92.0 million in 2003. The sales
decrease was primarily due to lower sales of our peripheral vascular high-end systems and older
neurodiagnostic EEG and IOM products partially offset by higher sales of our audio diagnostic
products, sales from our new neurodiagnostic EEG and EMG products and an increase in service
revenue of $1.4 million.

We had an operating loss of $0.2 million in 2004 compared to operating income of $5.3 million in
2003. This decrease was primarily due to the following: lower sales volume and pricing pressures on
older product lines, both of which reduced gross margin; higher selling, general and administrative
expense primarily related to higher legal and international operating expenses; higher amortization
expense related to our recent acquisition of the AUDIOSCREENER® hearing screening device; costs
of $0.8 million related to the restructuring plan initiated in the third quarter of 2004; inventory
write-offs of obsolete inventory related to discontinued products; and the write-off of purchased
in-process research and development costs in the fourth quarter of 2004 related to the acquisition of
Taugagreining. Offsetting these decreases was a reduction in research and development expense related
to the movement of several projects out of research and development into commercialization and costs
in 2003 of $0.6 million related to the NeuroCare restructuring plan initiated in the third quarter of
2003.

Medical and Surgical Products

Revenues increased $3.9 million to $59.9 million in 2004 from $56.0 million in 2003. This increase
was primarily driven by increased sales in our orthopedic business as well as higher sales of our enteral
feeding tube product line. These increases were partially offset by lower sales of our medical imaging
products.

Operating income increased $0.7 million to $10.0 million in 2004 from $9.3 million in 2003. The
increase was primarily due to increased gross margin resulting from the higher sales as well as
manufacturing efficiencies and lower research and development expense. These increases were partially
offset by higher expenses mainly to expand our medical disposables sales force to pursue opportunities
in targeted markets and costs of $0.2 million related to the restructuring plan initiated in the third
quarter of 2004.

Comparison of Results for the Year Ended January 3, 2004 to the Year Ended December 28, 2002

Revenues

Revenues increased $52.4 million to $394.9 million in 2003 from $342.5 million in 2002. Of this
increase, $16.9 million was contributed by Respiratory Technologies, $35.6 million by Critical Care and
$1.9 million by Medical and Surgical Products. These increases were partially offset by a decrease of
$1.9 million in NeuroCare. The revenue increase resulted primarily from $57.3 million in sales of new
products, principally in the Critical Care segment. Our clinical services business contributed $4.6 million
of increased revenue, while the weakening of the dollar against the euro contributed $13.4 million.
Partially offsetting these increases was a reduction in sales in our base business primarily due to the
replacement of mature products by new products.

Cost of Revenues and Gross Margin

Cost of revenues increased $31.2 million to $212.8 million in 2003 from $181.6 million in 2002.
Gross margin percentage decreased 0.9 percentage points to 46.1% in 2003 from 47.0% in 2002, This
decrease was due to several factors, including reengineering costs related to AVEA. In addition, market
conditions in 2003 lead to the write-off of inventory we acquired as a result of the spin-off from our
former parent company. Also contributing to the decrease were increased sales of lower margin
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products and higher installation and warranty expense. Partially offsetting the decreases in gross margin
percentage were increased sales of new higher margin products.

Selling, General and Administrative Expense

Selling, general and administrative expense increased $17.5 million to $112.9 million in 2003 from
$95.4 million in 2002. As a percentage of revenues, selling, general and administrative expense was
28.6% in 2003 compared with 27.9% in 2002. The increase was due to negative currency impacts as a
resuit of the weakening of the dollar against the euro, incremental investment in NeuroCare’s sales
force and marketing, higher incentive compensation and increased legal expenses, mainly due to the
litigation with INO Therapeutics. Selling, general and administrative expenses also increased due to the
inclusion of a full year of expenses for EME and SciMed Limited (“SciMed”), which were companies
acquired in the fourth quarter of 2002.

Research and Development Expense

Research and development expense was $26.5 million in both 2003 and 2002. As a percentage of
revenues, research and development expense was 6.7% in 2003 compared with 7.7% in 2002.

Restructuring Charges

We incurred $1.8 million and $5.7 million of restructuring costs in 2003 and 2002, respectively. The
2003 restructuring costs were incurred in our NeuroCare, Critical Care and Respiratory Technologies
segments.

The restructuring plan in NeuroCare included the termination of 55 employees from general and
administrative, service and manufacturing. The plan was carried out in the third and fourth quarters of
2003 and severance of $0.6 million was expensed and paid. Beginning in 2004, this plan resulted in
annual cost savings of approximately $3.5 million, much of which was reinvested into more productive
areas in NeuroCare, such as sales and research and development.

In 2003 as a result of the acquisition of EME, we initiated a restructuring plan related to our
Critical Care segment, which resulted in the elimination of 48 positions in the areas of sales, finance,
service and research and development. As of January 3, 2004, $0.9 million of retention payments were
expensed and paid for approximately 45 employees. Severance for the remaining employees was
expensed and paid in the first quarter of 2004. Beginning in 2004, this plan resulted in annual cost
savings of approximately $2.0 million.

Restructuring plans in our Respiratory Technologies segment include the closure of a machine
shop and the reduction in the number of customer service positions in Germany. Due to German labor
regulations, certain positions cannot be eliminated immediately. Therefore, 24 positions are being
eliminated over a period of five years. As of January 3, 2004, 7 of these positions had been eliminated.
The total amount of restructuring expense expected to be incurred in connection with this plan is
approximately $2.0 million. As of January 3, 2004, a total of $0.3 million had been incurred related to
this plan. Once this plan is complete, the annual savings from this plan are expected to total
approximately $1.3 million, which will be realized ratably over the next five years as the positions are
terminated.

Restructuring expenses in 2002 included a non-cash charge of $1.1 million to write-down the value
of a vacated facility in our NeuroCare segment. Other restructuring expenses in 2002 included
$2.3 million for the consolidation of manufacturing facilities in New Hampshire and Colorado with our
main NeuroCare manufacturing facility in Wisconsin. Associated with these consolidations were
employee terminations, retention bonuses, employee relocations, recruiting costs and facility closing
costs, as well as inventory and asset relocations. We also incurred restructuring costs of $0.3 million
related to employee terminations in our Medical and Surgical Products segment. Additional
restructuring costs included $0.4 million for the cost of exiting long-term leases in Europe and
$1.1 million for the severance of former executives.
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Provision for Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate was 34.0% in 2003 compared to 37.9% in 2002. The effective tax rate in
2003 was less than the statutory federal income tax rate of 35.0% primarily because of the tax benefit
attributable to U.S. export sales and U.S. research and development tax credits. These benefits were
partially offset by the impact of state income taxes. The effective tax rate in 2002 exceeded the
statutory federal income tax rate of 35.0% primarily because of the impact of state income taxes and
the nondeductible purchased in-process research and development associated with our acquisition of
EME, partially offset by the tax benefit attributable to U.S. export sales. The impact of nondeductible
purchased in-process research and development on our 2002 effective tax rate was 0.9 percentage
points.

Discontinued Operations

On October 3, 2003, we sold substantially all of the assets of Thermedics, which was reported in
the Medical and Surgical Products segment. As part of the sale, we recorded a loss on disposal,
including expenses, of approximately $2.6 million, after taxes in discontinued operations. Discontinued
operations include an after-tax write-down of MDE of $1.0 million and $14.3 million in 2003 and 2002,
respectively.

Segment Information
Respiratory Technologies

Revenues increased $16.9 million to $114.1 million in 2003 from $97.2 million in 2002. The
increase is attributable to a $9.8 million favorable impact from foreign currency and increased revenue
of $4.6 million in our clinical services business. In addition, there were increased sales of nitric oxide
and sleep therapy products. Operating income increased $2.0 million to $14.4 million in 2003 from
$12.4 million in 2002. This increase was due to the increased revenues, partially offset by increased
legal expenses related to our litigation with INO Therapeutics, an inventory write-off of a discontinued
product line, increased incentive compensation and higher installation and warranty expense.

Critical Care

Revenues increased $35.6 million to $132.9 million in 2003 from $97.3 million in 2002. The
increase resulted from the sale of new products, including AVEA, VELA and INFANT FLOW, which
totaled $48.7 million. In addition, increased sales of our earlier model T-Bird ventilators to Asia in the
second quarter due to the SARS outbreak contributed $3.1 million to the increase. Partially offsetting
these increases were lower volume and pricing pressures on some of our mature product lines.
Operating income more than doubled due to the increased volume.

NeuroCare

Revenues decreased $1.9 million to $92.0 million in 2003 from $93.9 million in 2002. This decrease
was a result of lower sales of our EMG and EEG products, partially offset by increased sales of our
audiology and peripheral vascular products. Operating income increased $1.3 million to $5.3 million in
2003 from $4.0 million in 2002. This increase was primarily due to a reduction in restructuring and
research and development expenses as well as savings from efficiencies obtained from our restructuring
efforts. Partially offsetting these increases were lower gross margin due to the revenue decrease and
higher expenses as a result of our incremental investment in the sales and marketing force.

Medical and Surgical Products

Revenues increased $1.9 million to $56.0 million in 2003 from $54.1 million in 2002. This increase
is a result of higher sales in our medical disposable and orthopedic implant businesses. Partially
offsetting these increases were decreased sales of our medical imaging and heart device components.
Operating income decreased $1.4 million to $9.3 million in 2003 from $10.7 million in 2002. The
decrease was primarily due to an inventory write-off for a discontinued product line and lower sales of
higher margin products in our specialty metals business.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004, we had cash and cash equivalents of $122.3 million and
$97.9 million, respectively. At January 1, 2005, approximately $17.3 million of our cash and cash
equivalents was held internationally and may be subject to U.S. income tax if repatriated to the U.S.
Our working capital was approximately $230.4 million and $210.9 million at January 1, 2005 and
January 3, 2004, respectively. On January 24, 2005, we acquired substantially all of the assets of Navion
Biomedical Corporation for a cash purchase price of $3.5 million, of which $0.2 million will be paid in
the first quarter of 2006. On March 1, 2005, we acquired the global medical business of Oxford
Instruments plc for a cash purchase price of approximately $46.0 million. On March 15, 2005, we ™
acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Micro Medical for an aggregate purchase price of
approximately $40.4 million. The purchase price consisted of approximately $36.6 million in cash (net
of cash acquired) and approximately $3.8 million in assumed debt.

Our cash flow from operations decreased by $7.5 million to $38.7 million in 2004 from
$46.2 million in 2003. Cash flow from operations increased by $29.8 million to $46.2 million in 2003
from $16.4 million in 2002. Cash flows from our operating activities are generally the result of net
income, deferred taxes, depreciation and amortization and changes in our working capital. Net income
from continuing operations adjusted to exclude certain non-cash items, such as depreciation and
amortization, was approximately $34.3 million, $42.7 million and $31.0 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The overall impact of changes in certain operating assets and liabilities on total operating
cash flows resulted in net cash inflows of $4.6 million and $7.9 million in 2004 and 2003, respectively,
and a use of cash of $18.1 million in 2002. Discontinued operations used cash of $0.2 million and
$4.4 million in 2004 and 2003, respectively, and provided cash of $3.4 million in 2002.

We used net cash from investing activities of continuing operations of $24.0 million in 2004,
compared to $11.3 million and $29.9 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively. Our expenditures for
property, plant and equipment were $10.6 million during 2004, compared to $6.0 million and
$11.4 million during 2003 and 2002, respectively. Our expenditures for intangible assets were
$10.1 million, compared to $3.9 million and $3.1 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively. We received
proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment of $0.1 million in 2004, compared to
$2.0 million and $2.8 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively. During 2004, we received proceeds from
the sale of intangible assets of $2.2 million. During 2004, we paid $5.6 million to acquire substantially
all of the assets of Taugagreining. During 2003, we made additional payments of $3.5 million related to
the acquisitions of EME and Scimed. During 2002, we paid $18.2 million to acquire all of the
outstanding capital stock of EME and Scimed. Discontinued operations provided cash of $20.5 million
in 2003 compared to used cash of $4.4 million in 2002.

We generated net cash from financing activities of $9.4 million in 2004, compared to $25.1 million
and $14.3 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively. In 2004, we received $8.5 million in proceeds from the
exercise of stock options, compared to $7.6 million and $0.9 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively. In
2004, we received $1.5 million in proceeds from the issuance of common stock pursuant to our
employee stock purchase plan, compared to $2.1 million in fiscal 2003. In June 2003, we issued
3,450,000 shares of common stock in a follow-on public offering. The net proceeds generated by the
offering, after expenses, were $62.7 million. In July 2003, we utilized a portion of these proceeds to
repay the full amount outstanding under our credit facility.

At January 1, 2005, we had a $60.0 million revolving credit facility (the “Facility””) with a syndicate
of six banks, of which $58.4 million was available to be borrowed. Up to $10.0 million of the
$60.0 million is available for standby letters of credit. Under the Facility, there are options under which
we can borrow funds that determine the interest rate charged. These options include borrowings at the
London Interbank Borrowing Rate (“LIBOR”) plus a spread or at the prime rate plus a spread. Under
the LIBOR option, the interest rate depends on the term selected which can be no more than one
year, and is fixed for that term. Under the prime rate option, the interest rate fluctuates based on the
prime rate during the period which any amount is outstanding under that option. We repaid the full
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amount outstanding under the Facility in July 2003. No amounts were outstanding under the Facility as
of January 1, 2005.

The Facility will expire on May 31, 2005. We are currently in the process of obtaining a new credit
Facility and anticipate that a new facility will be in place on or before the expiration date of the
current facility. The amount and other terms of the new credit facility have not yet been finalized.
While we anticipate that we will be able to obtain a new credit facility and that the terms of such
facility will be at least as favorable as the current Facility, there is no guarantee that we will be able to
obtain a new credit facility or that the terms will be attractive to us in financing our business plans.

Our ability to access the current Facility or a new credit facility will depend on complying with the
debt covenants that are part of those agreements, The covenants of our Facility include a maximum
ratio of debt to earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”’) of 2.5, a
minimum ratio of EBITDA to interest expense of 4.0, maximum annual capital expenditures of
$20 million and a minimum level of stockholders’ equity. We expect the new debt covenants to be
similar in nature but anticipate that changes, such as the maximum capital expenditure limit, will be
made in order to consider our needs over the term of the new credit facility.

While we are in compliance with the debt covenants of our Facility and expect to be able to meet
the requirements of the Facility through the expiration date and the requirements of any new credit
facility in the future, failure to satisfy any of the conditions would require us to renegotiate either
credit facility on terms that may not be as favorable or could require us to repay any outstanding
balance. While we would attempt to find alternative sources to fund our operations from other
financial institutions, we cannot assure you that we would be successful, or if we were successful, that
the new credit facility would be on terms that would be attractive to us in financing our business plans.

Our overall capital expenditures in 2005 are expected to approximate $20.0 million. This amount
excludes potential capital expenditures related to the companies we acquired in 2005. Beyond the next
twelve months, our capital requirements will depend on many factors, including the rate of our sales
growth, market acceptance of our new products, research and development spending, the success of our
product development efforts, capital spending policies of our customers, government spending policies
and general economic conditions.

In 2004, we initiated a company-wide restructuring plan to lower our cost structure. We expect this
action to bring expenses in line with the growth in our core businesses and enhance our near and
long-term profitability. As a result of this initiative, we expect to incur a total pre-tax restructuring
charge of $9.5 million to $11.0 million, of which $8.6 million has been recognized and $4.4 million has
been paid in 2004. We expect this initiative to be substantially completed by the end of 2005 and the
remaining amounts to be recognized and paid in 2005.

Our principal source of liquidity at January 1, 2005 consisted of $122.3 million in cash and cash
equivalents, pius $58.4 million available under the Facility. We believe that our available cash and cash
equivalents, cash from operations and cash available under the Facility will be sufficient to finance our
operations, the acquisition of Navion Biomedical Corporation, Oxford Medical and Micro Medical and
capital expenditure requirements and commitments for the foreseeable future. However, it is possible
that we may need to raise additional funds to finance unforeseen requirements or to acquire other
businesses, products or technologies. These funds may be obtained through the sale of equity or debt
securities to the public or to selected investors, or by borrowing money from financial institutions. In
addition, even though we may not need additional funds, we may still elect to sell additional equity or
debt securities or obtain credit facilities for other reasons. There are no assurances that we will be able
to obtain additional funds on terms that would be favorable to us, or at all. If funds are raised by
issuing additional equity securities or convertible debt securities, the ownership percentage of existing
shareholders would be reduced. In addition, equity or debt securities issued by us may have rights,
preferences or privileges senior to those of our common stock.
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations at January 1, 2005, and the effect such
obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flows in future periods (in millions):

Payments Due by Period

Less than More than
Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 years 3.5 years § years
Long-term debt obligations . .. ................. $ — § — $ — § — $ —
Operating lease obligations . .. ................. 64.4 7.6 14.5 10.8 315
Purchase obligations . . . ...................... 242 23.1 1.1 — —
Total contractual obligations .. ................. $88.6  $30.7 $156  $10.8 $31.5

The following table summarizes our commercial commitments at January 1, 2005 (in millions):

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period

Total
Amounts Less than More than
Commercial Commitments Committed 1 year 1-3 years  3-5 years 5 years
Standby letters of credit . .................. $1.6 $1.6 $ — $ — $ —
Total commercial commitments .............. $1.6 $1.6 $ — $ — $ —

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements or relationships with unconsolidated entities
or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred to as structured finance or special purpose
entities, which are typically established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or
other contractually narrow or limited purposes.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to
make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses for each period. These estimates and judgments are based on historical
experience and on various other factors that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances. Some
of those judgments can be subjective and complex and, consequently, actual results may differ from
these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. We regularly evaluate our estimates and
judgments and make adjustments when facts and circumstances dictate.

We believe that the following critical accounting estimates affect the more significant judgments
and estimates used in the preparation of our financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

We derive revenues primarily from the sale of products and to a lesser extent the provision of
services and rental equipment. Where installation either is essential to product functionality or is not
deemed inconsequential or perfunctory, such as equipment sales under contracts that require us to
install the product at the customer location, revenue is recognized when the equipment has been
delivered to and installed at the customer location. Revenues for products sold where installation is not
essential to functionality and is deemed inconsequential or perfunctory, such as revenue from customer
installable products, is recognized upon transfer of title with estimated installation costs accrued.
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Our service revenues are derived from parts, service contracts, training, repairs not under warranty
and research and development for third parties. We sell service contracts on our products when the
warranty period expires. We recognize revenues from these service contracts ratably over the terms of
the contracts due to the lack of historical data available regarding the timing of when the actual
services were provided. In the future, we may compile this information which could cause us to
recognize service revenue over a different period. We recognize revenues from the sale of spare parts
upon transfer of title. We recognize revenues from training and repairs at the time the service is
performed and the customer has accepted the work.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses from the inability of some of
our customers to make required payments. The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on our
historical collections experience, historical write-offs of our receivables, current trends, credit policy and
a percentage of our accounts receivable by aging category. Account balances are charged off against the
allowance after all means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is
considered remote.

Inventory

We value our inventory at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Our determination of net
realizable value takes into account projected sales of the inventory on hand and the age of the
inventory in stock. In addition, we assess the value of older model products when new product
introductions may reduce their net realizable value. If actual future demand or market conditions are
less favorable than those projected by management, additional inventory write-downs may be required.
The provision for write-down of inventory is recorded in cost of revenues.

Gooawill Impairment

We adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 142 effective December 30, 2001. SFAS No. 142 requires
companies to perform a transitional test and an annual test to determine whether there was any
impairment of goodwill. These tests involve determining the estimated fair value of the Company’s
reporting units by measuring the net present value of their future cash flows. If the net present value of
estimated cash flows is less than the book value of the reporting unit we would perform additional
analysis, which could result in the write-down of goodwill.

We determined our reporting units for purposes of assessing goodwill impairment under SFAS
No. 142 by evaluating our four operating segments: Respiratory Technologies, Critical Care, NeuroCare
and Medical and Surgical Products. Each of these operating segments is comprised of several
components. While the components of Respiratory Technologies, Critical Care and NeuroCare have
similar economic characteristics, products and services, production processes, customers and methods of
distribution, the components of the Medical and Surgical Products segment do not. Therefore, the
components have been aggregated at the operating segment level for Respiratory Technologies, Critical
Care and NeuroCare and each of these segments was treated as a reporting unit. Since the components
of Medical and Surgical Products cannot be aggregated, each component was treated as a separate
reporting unit.

As part of the impairment testing, the Company allocated its goodwill to its reporting units.
Goodwill from an acquisition that is specifically associated with a single reporting unit is recorded on
the books of that reporting unit. However, when goodwill from a transaction is associated with multiple
reporting units it is allocated to the reporting units based upon relative revenues at the time of the
acquisition.

We performed the annual test in 2004 and have determined that there is no impairment of
goodwill. In performing this test, we used our internal operating and capital budgets, which are based
on such assumptions as new product introductions, growth in sales of existing products, margin
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improvements, operating cost control, savings from past restructuring efforts, equipment replacement
dates and building capacity needs. We discounted our estimated cash flows using our estimated cost of
capital. If any of our assumptions change, such as an increase of our cost of capital or a decrease in
our forecasted operating results, it could result in an impairment of goodwill, which would require a
charge to earnings.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock options are granted to key employees and non-employee directors. Upon vesting, an option
becomes exercisable, meaning, an employee or director can purchase a share of the Company’s
common stock at a price that is equal to the closing share price on the day of grant.

SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” permits companies either to continue
accounting for stock options under Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting
for Stock Issued to Employees,” or to adopt a fair-value-based method to measure compensation cost.
Under APB No. 25, which we have elected to continue using, there is no compensation cost if, on the
date of grant, the option’s exercise price is equal to or greater than the share price. Under SFAS
No. 123, an option’s fair value is estimated on the date of grant, and the value is expensed evenly over
the vesting period. If we had accounted for stock-based compensation under the SFAS No. 123
fair-value-based method, net income would have been reduced by $4.5 million, $5.3 million and
$4.2 million for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

In order to estimate an option’s fair value under SFAS No. 123, we use the Black-Scholes option
valuation model. The option valuation model requires a number of assumptions, including future stock
price volatility and expected option life (the amount of time until the options are exercised or expire).
Expected option life is based on actual exercise activity from previous option grants. Volatility is
calculated based upon stock price movements over a period of time. Additionally, our share price on
the day of grant influences the option value. The higher the share price, as compared to the grant
price, the more the option is worth. Changes in the option value after the day of grant are not
reflected in expense. Any change in these assumptions could significantly impact the values calculated
by the option valuation model and, consequently, the pro forma effects disclosed under the caption
“Stock-Based Compensation” in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For information on the recent accounting pronouncements impacting our business, see discussion
under the caption “Recent Accounting Pronouncements” in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates,
which could affect our future results of operations and financial condition.

Foreign Currency Risk

We derive approximately 44% of our revenues from customers located outside the United States.
Some of this business is transacted through our foreign subsidiaries, primarily in the local currency that
is considered the functional currency of that foreign subsidiary. Expenses are also incurred in the local
currencies to match revenues earned and minimize exchange rate exposure. The Company generally
views its investment in its foreign subsidiaries as long-term. The effects of a change in foreign currency
exchange rates on the Company’s net investment in foreign subsidiaries are reflected in accumulated
other comprehensive income. A 10% depreciation in functional currency exchange rates relative to the
U.S. dollar would have resulted in a decrease in the Company’s net investment in foreign subsidiaries
of approximately $12.9 million at January 1, 2005.
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Interest Rate Risk

Our cash and cash equivalents are sensitive to changes in interest rates. A change in interest rates
would result in a change in interest income. Our market risk exposure to changes in interest rates is
immaterial.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our Consolidated Financial Statements, management’s report on internal control over financial
reporting and our independent registered public accounting firm’s reports on the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting and on our financial statements and schedule are included in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K beginning on page F-1.

Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the
period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures as of the end of the period
covered by this report are functioning effectively to provide reasonable assurance that the information
required to be disclosed by us in reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is
(i) recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the Securities
and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms and (ii) accumulated and communicated to our
management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow
timely decisions regarding disclosure. A controls system cannot provide absolute assurance, however,
that the objectives of the controls system are met, and no evaluation of controls can provide absolute
assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within a company have been detected.

(b) Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management’s report on internal control over financial reporting and our independent
registered public accounting firm’s report on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting are set forth in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and are incorporated by
reference herein.

(c) Change in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

No change in our internal control over financial reporting occurred during our most recent fiscal
quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information
Not applicable.
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PART 111
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by this item with respect to our directors, our Audit Committee and
audit committee financial expert is incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the
captions entitled “Proposal No. 1. Election of Directors” and “Board of Directors and Corporate
Governance Matters — Audit Committee” in our definitive proxy statement for the 2005 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,

The information required by this item with respect to our executive officers is set forth under the
caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant” in Item 4A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The information required by this item with respect to our compliance with Section 16(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the
caption entitled “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance” in our definitive proxy
statement for the 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

We have adopted a “Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors” and a “Code of
Conduct” applicable to all employees, including all executive officers of the Company. The “Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors” and the “Code of Conduct” are posted on our website.
The Internet address for our website is www.viasyshealthcare.com. The “Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics for Directors” and the “Code of Conduct” may be found as follows:

1. From our main web page, first click “Investors” in the top navigational bar.
2. Next, click on “Corporate Governance” in the left hand navigational bar.

3. Finally, click on “Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors” and/or “Code of
Conduct”.

The Board of Directors will not permit any wavier of any ethics and conduct policy for any
director or executive officer.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the information set forth
under the captions entitled “Board of Directors and Corporate Governance Matters — Compensation of
Directors” and “Executive Compensation” in our definitive proxy statement for the 2005 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to
Reguiation 14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information required by this item with respect to the security ownership of certain beneficial
owners and management is incorporated by reference to the information set forth under the caption
entitled “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in our definitive proxy
statement for the 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
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The following table provides information as of January 1, 2005 with respect to the shares of our
common stock that may be issued under our existing equity compensation plans.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities remaining
available for future issuance

Number of securities to be issued Weighted-average exercise under equity compensation
upon exercise of outstanding  price of outstanding options, plans (excluding securities
Plan Category options, warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
(@ (L) ()

Equity compensation plans approved
by security holders ........... 4,544.910 $15.95 888,312
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders . . . . . — —

Total .............. . .... 4,544,910 $15.95 888,312

Item 13. Certzin Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the information set forth
under the caption entitled “Related Transactions” in our definitive proxy statement for the 2005
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to the information set forth
under the caption entitled “Independent Public Accountants and Related Fees” in our definitive proxy
statement for the 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A of the Securities Act of 1934.
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PART 1V

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statemént Schedules

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

1. Consolidated Financial Statements:

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting .. ... .. F-1
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Internal

Control Over Financial Reporting . . .. .. ..., F-2
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm on Financial

Statements and Schedule .......... ... .. .. . . i e F-3
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004 .. ... F-4
Consolidated Statements of Income for the years ended January 1, 2005,

January 3, 2004 and December 28, 2002 ...... e e e e e F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended January 1, 2005,

January 3, 2004 and December 28,2002 .............. ..., F-6
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the period

from December 29, 2001 to January 1,2005. .. ... ... it F-7
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ......................... F-8

2. Financial Statement Schedule:

Schedule T ~ Valuation and Qualifying Accounts for the years ended

January 1, 2005, January 3, 2004 and December 28,2002 . ............. F-33

All other schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or not required, or because
the required information is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements or Notes thereto.

3. Exhibits:
Exhibit No.  Description
3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, is incorporated by

3.2

33

110.1

+10.2

110.3

reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10/A, filed with
the Commission on September 20, 2001.

Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the
Company, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form 10/A, filed with the Commission on October 24, 2001.

Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit
3.5 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10/A, filed with the Commission on
July 18, 2001.

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of November 29, 2004, by and
between the Company and Randy H. Thurman, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A, filed with the Commission on March 3,
2005.

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of November 29, 2004, by and
between the Company and Martin P. Galvan, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A, filed with the Commission on March 3,
2005.

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of November 29, 2004, by and
between the Company and Edward Pulwer, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A, filed with the Commission on March 3,
2005.
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Exhibit No.

Description

110.4

110.5

*$10.6
10.7

10.8

10.9

+10.10

110.11

$10.12

110.13

+10.14

*10.15

10.16

*21.1
*23.1
*31.1
*31.2
*32.1

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of November 29, 2004, by and
between the Company and Lori J. Cross, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A, filed with the Commission on March 3, 2005.

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of November 29, 2004, by and
between the Company and Mahboob H. Raja, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.5
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A, filed with the Commission on March 3,
2005.

Summary of the Company’s management incentive program.

Plan and Agreement of Distribution between the Company and Thermo Electron
Corporation, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form 10/A, filed with the Commission on October 24, 2001.

Tax Matters Agreement between the Company and Thermo Electron Corporation, is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form 10/A, filed with the Commission on July 18, 2001.

Rights Agreement between the Company and the Rights Agent, is incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10/A, filed with
the Commission on July 18, 2001.

VIASYS Healthcare Inc. Indemnification Agreement between the Company and its
directors and officers, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form 10/A, filed with the Commission on July 18, 2001,
VIASYS Healthcare Inc. Equity Incentive Plan (as amended on May 5, 2004), is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q, filed with the Commission on August 11, 2004.

VIASYS Healthcare Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors, is incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10/A, filed with
the Commission on October 24, 2001.

Letter Agreement, dated as of September 24, 2001, by and between the Company, Randy
H. Thurman and Thermo Electron Corporation, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.9 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10/A, filed with the Commission on
October 24, 2001.

Term Note, dated as of April 19, 2001, by and between the Company and Randy H.
Thurman, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form 10/A, filed with the Commission on July 18, 2001.

Share Sale Agreement, dated as of March 15, 2005, by and between VIASYS Holdings Inc.
and the former stockholders of Micro Medical Limited.

Credit Agreement, dated as of May 31, 2002, by and between the Company, the Banks
Party thereto and certain other parties, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the Commission on March 25, 2003.

List of Subsidiaries of the Company.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
Chief Executive Officer’s Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification.
Chief Financial Officer’s Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification.
1350 Certifications

*  Filed herewith.

t Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an

exhibit to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

Date: March 17, 2005 VIASYS HEALTHCARE INC.
(Registrant)

By: /s/ RANDY H. THURMAN

Randy H. Thurman
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive
Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated, as of
March 17, 2005.

Signature %
By: /s/ RANDY H. THURMAN Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
Randy H. Thurman (Principal Executive Officer)
By: /s/ MARTIN P. GALVAN Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
; (Principal Financial Officer and Accounting
Martin P. Galvan Officer)
By: /s/ RONALD A. AHRENS .
Director
Ronald A. Ahrens
By: /s/ SANDER A. FLAUM .
Director
Sander A. Flaum
By: /s/ KIRK E. GORMAN .
. Director
Kirk E. Gorman
By: /s/ THOMAS W. HOFMANN )
Director
Thomas W. Hofmann
By: /s/ ROBERT W. O’LEARY )
Director
Robert W. O’Leary
By: /s/ FRED B. PARKS, PH.D. .
v Director

Fred B. Parks, Ph.D.
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Management of VIASYS Healthcare Inc. (the “Company”) is responsible for establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Internal control over financial reporting
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management evaluated the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of January 1,
2005. In making this assessment, management used the framework established in Internal Control-
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (“COSO™). As a result of this assessment and based on the criteria in the COSO
framework, management has concluded that, as of January 1, 2005, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting was effective.

The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, Ernst & Young LLP, have audited
management’s assessment of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Their report on
management’s assessment and their report on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting appear on page F-2 in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

/s/ RANDY H. THURMAN

Randy H. Thurman
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer

/s/ MARTIN P. GALVAN

Martin P. Galvan
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of VIASYS Healthcare Inc.:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Report
on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that VIASYS Healthcare Inc. maintained effective
internal contrel over financial reporting as of January 1, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal
Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). VIASYS Healthcare Inc.’s management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s
assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained
in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or
detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject
to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that VIASYS Healthcare Inc. maintained effective
internal control over financial reporting as of January 1, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects,
based on the COSO criteria. Also, in our opinion, VIASYS Healthcare Inc. maintained, in all material
respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of January 1, 2005, based on the COSO
criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated financial statements of VIASYS Healthcare Inc. and
our report dated March 15, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 15, 2005




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULE

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of VIASYS Healthcare Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of VIASYS Healthcare Inc. as of
January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income, cash flows and
changes in stockholders’ equity for each of the three years in the period ended January 1, 2005. Our
audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in Item 15(a). These financial statements
and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the consolidated financial position of VIASYS Healthcare Inc. at January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004,
and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended January 1, 2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also,
in our opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth
therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States), the effectiveness of VIASYS Healthcare Inc.’s internal control over
financial reporting as of January 1, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our
report dated March 15, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 15, 2005
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VIASYS HEALTHCARE INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

January 1, January 3,
2005 2004

(In thousands, except
share and per share

amounts)
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents. . . . ..., . ittt $122,281  § 97,902
Accounts receivable, less allowance for doubtful accounts of $5,113 and $5,955
at January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004, respectively .. ........... ... ... 91,914 95,544
IOVENtOTIES . v v v e et e e e e e e 72,651 66,733
Deferred InCoOme taxes, NEL . . . . . . vttt vt ettt ettt e e 12,689 12,536
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . . . . . . ... oiv i e 4,468 5,489
Total CUurrent ASSelS . . v v vttt ettt e e e e e e 304,003 278,204
Property, Plant and Equipment, net. . . ...... ... ... i i i 27,507 23,791
Goodwill . ... e e e 190,234 182,436
Intangible Assets, met . . .. ... ... e 22,833 15,215
100 1 1= - VLT 3,259 4,679
JOta] AS IS . . v v vttt e e e e e $547,836  $504,325
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Current portion of long-term obligations . . . . .. ....... 0ttt $ 491 § 1,09
Accounts payable . . . ... e e e e e 23,363 20,586
Accrued payroll and related benefits. . . . ....... ... ... L i i 10,091 12,474
Deferred revenue . . ... . e e e e e e e e e 12,104 10,647
Accrued installation and warranty costs . . . . . ... . i i e 6,274 4,911
Accrued COMMUISSIONS « « v v v v v ottt s e e e e e e 3,357 3,835
Income taxes payable . . ... ... ... . . .. — 1,349
Accrued restructuring COStS . . . . v v vt i e e e e 5,776 1,148
Other accrued EXPENSES . . . . vt vttt e e e e e e 12,192 11,283
Total Current Liabilities. . . ... ... ... .. i i i e e e e 73,648 67,329
Deferred Income Taxes, DEt . . o v v v v vt it e it s e et e et e e 6,338 2,947
Other Long-Term Liabilities . . . ... ... . . i i i 2,351 2,392
Total Liabilities . . . .. ... . e e e e e 82,337 72,668

Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized; none issued and
outstanding . . . . ... e e - —
Common stock, $.01 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized; 31,101,239 and 30,421,212
shares issued; 31,095,642 and 30,415,615 shares outstanding at January 1, 2005 and

January 3, 2004, respectively. . . ... ... e 311 303
Additional paid-in capital .. ........ .. ... e 351,756 340,040
Treasury stock, at cost; 5,597 shares at January 1, 2005 and January 3,2004 ... ...... (111) (111)
Retained earnings . . .. ... .. oo it e e e e 81,000 66,169
Accumulated other comprehensive income . ... ... .. ..o e 32,543 25,256

Total Stockholders” Equity . . .. ... .. ot e e 465,499 431,657

Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity . . ... ....... ... . ... ... $547,836  $504,325

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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VIASYS HEALTHCARE INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Year Ended
Jamnary 1, January 3, December 28,
2005 2004 2002
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Revenues:
Product . ....... ... . i e $345,762 $352,831 $306,268
SeIVICE . o vt e 47,440 42,116 36,184
Total TEVENUES . . . ittt e 393,202 394,947 342,452
Cost of Revenues:
Product ... ... i i e 189,903 186,854 158,589
SEIVICE & ot t  e 28,967 25,933 23,036
Total costof revenues. . . ........... ... ... ...... 218,870 212,787 181,625
Gross Margin . . ... ... e 174,332 182,160 160,827
Operating Expenses:
Selling, general and administrative expense .. ........... 124,847 112,856 95,384
Research and development expense . ................. 23,452 26,455 26,459
Restructuring charges . ............. ... ... 9,044 1,797 5,731
Purchased in-process research and development. .. ....... 386 — 900
Legal settlement .. .......... ... ... ... (6,000) — —
Total operating expenses. . ... 151,729 141,108 128,474
Operating InCome . . . ... ..ot 22,603 41,052 32,353
Other Income (Expense):
Interest iNCOME . . . . o vttt e i et e e 1,606 440 193
Interest €XPense . . ...ttt e e (629) (1,096) (1,779)
Other,met. . .. .. i e (69) (1,252) (434)
Total other income (expense) . .................... 908 (1,908) (2,020)
Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes. . . . 23,511 39,144 30,333
Provision for Income Taxes . ......................... (8,475) (13,306) (11,485)
Income from Continuing Operations ................... 15,036 25,838 18,848
Loss from Discontinued Operations (net of income tax benefit
of $128, $665 and 7,821) . ... ... ... ... (205) (4,252) (13,524)
NetINCOME . . oot e et e $ 14,831 $ 21,586 $ 5,324
Earnings (Loss) per Share:
Basic:
Continuing Operations. . . .. ........ooviueennenn... $ 49 5 <% $ M2
Discontinued Operations . .. ..............c.cvvonn.. (.01) (.15) (.52)
$ .48 $ .76 $ .20
Diluted:
Continuing Operations. . . . ........oovueenn e, $ 48 5 .89 $ N
Discontinued Operations . .. .................oou... (.01) (14) (51

$ A7 $ 75 b .20

Weighted Average Shares Outstanding:
BasiC . ..o e e 30,809 28,284 26,080

Diluted.......... .. ... 31,403 28,905 26,603

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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VIASYS HEALTHCARE INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended

January 1, January 3, December 28,
2005 2004 2002

(In thousands)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net income from continuing operations . ... ... .. ... . ..o euntnne ... $ 15,036 $25,838 $18,848
Adjustments to reconcile net income from continuing operations to net cash provided
by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization. . . . ... ... . L e 15,575 12,774 9,870
Gain on sale of fixed assets and intangible assets . . .. ............ .. ... .. (583) (166) —
Provision for write-down of asset . . ... ... . .. .. . L e — — 1,102
Purchased in-process research and development . . . .. .. ........... ... ... 386 —_ 900
Deferred income taxes . . . .. .. oo it e e e 2,261 3,070 (25)
Tax benefit related to stock option exercises . .. ........c. i 1,373 1,203 147
Othernon~cash IteMS . . . . . . .. . ittt it e it e 208 — 184
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effect of acquisitions:
Accountsreceivable . . . ... ... L L e 5,590 (10,592) (3,254)
Inventories. . . . .. ot e e e (8,170) 11,830 (6,819)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . . . . ..., . . . oo 1,245 (2,225) 743
Accounts payable . .. . ... e 1,683 3,380 (4,912)
Other current liabilities . . .. ... .. ... ... ... . 5,127 6,298 (3,551)
Other, Met . . . . .. o e e (872) (762) (321)
Net cash provided by operating activities from continuing operations . ...... 38,859 50,648 12,912
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities from discontinued operations (205) (4,403) 3,438
Net cash provided by operating activities . ... ..................... 38,654 46,245 16,350
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchases of businesses, net of cashacquired . . . ........... ... ... ... ... (5,601) (3,504) (18,194)
Expenditures for property, plant and equipment . . . ... ... ... ... .. 0. (10,601) (5,965) (11,396)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment . . . . . ... ........... ... 53 2,020 2,783
Expenditures for intangible assets . . . . .. ... ... . e e (10,056) (3,851) (3,115)
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets . . . ... ..., ... ... . oo 2,200 — -
Net cash used in investing activities from continuing operations . . . .. ... ... (24,005)  (11,300) (29,922)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities from discontinued operations — 20,468 (4,365)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities . .................. (24,005) 9,168 (34,287)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
(Decrease) increase in current portion of long-term obligations . ... ........... (739)  (47,319) 13,798
Proceeds from stock Option €Xercises . . . . . .o vt v vt i i e e 8,535 7,596 907
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under the employee stock purchase plan . . . 1,497 2,118 -
Net proceeds from issuance of common stock in follow-on offering . . ... ........ — 62,689 —
Purchase of treasury stock . . . . . . ... L e e — — (111)
Ot . . . e e e e e e 128 ®) (336)
Net cash provided by financing activities .. ....................... 9,421 25,076 14,258
Effect of Currency Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents . ........ 309 2,377 3,747
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents ... ........... .. ... 0tuueno.. 24,379 82,866 68
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period . . . . .. ................... 97,902 15,036 14,968
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Endof Period .. ........ ... ... ... ... .... $122,281 $97,902 $15,036

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid during the year for:
85103 1 $ 261 $ 1,023 $ 1,698
INCOME tAXES . & v v v v e e e e e e $ 5,366 $ 8,421 $ 9,412

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.

F-6




VIASYS HEALTHCARE INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated
Additional Other Total
"~ Deferred Paid-in  Treasury Retained Comprehensive Stockholders’
Shares Amount Compensation Capital Stock Earnings Income (Loss) Equity

(in thousands)

Common Stock

Balance at December 29,2001 .. ........ 26,037 $260 $(158)  $263,171 $§ — $39259 $ (2,864)  $299,668
Comprehensive income: R
Netincome ............civvvv.. ’ 5,324 5,324
Foreign currency translation adjustment . . 9,280 9,280
Total comprehensive income . . ... ... 14,604
Amortization of deferred compensation . . . . 158 158

Issuance of common stock under the
employee stock purchase plan and equity

incentiveplan. . ............. ..., 72 1 907 908
Tax benefit related to stock option exercises . 147 147
Purchase of treasury stock . ........... (111) (111)
Issuance of common stock in connection with

the acquisitionof EME . . . . ......... 147 2 2,249 2,251
Balance at December 28,2002.......... 26,256 $263 $ — $266,474 $(111) $44,583 $ 6,416 $317,625
Comprehensive income:

Netincome .................... 21,586 21,586

Foreign currency translation adjustment . . 18,840 18,840

Total comprehensive income . ....... 40,426

Issuance of common stock in connection with

follow-on offering ................ 3,450 35 62,654 62,689
Issuance of common stock under the

employee stock purchase plan and equity

incentiveplan . . . .......... .. .. .. 715 5 9,709 9,714
Tax benefit related to stock option exercises . 1,203 1,203
Balance at Janvary 3,2004 . ........... 30,421 $303 $ — $340,040 $(111) $66,169  $ 25,256 $431,657
Comprehensive income:

Netincome .................... 14,831 14,831

Foreign currency translation adjustment . . 7,287 7,287

Total comprehensive income . ... .. .. 22,118

Issuance of common stock under the
employee stock purchase plan and equity

incentive plan . . . . ......... ... ... 680 8 10,024 10,032
Tax benefit related to stock option exercises . 1,373 1,373
Non-cash stock-based compensation . ... .. 208 208
Other . ... ..., 111 111
Balance at January 1,2005 ............ 31,101 $311 $ — $351,756 $(111) $81,000 $ 32,543 $465,499

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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VIASYS HEALTHCARE INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of Business

VIASYS Healthcare Inc. (the “Company”) develops, manufactures, markets and services medical
devices and products, including respiratory care equipment, neurodiagnostic systems, disposable
products and other specialty products and materials.

The Company operated as a division of Thermo Electron Corporation (“Thermo Electron®) untii
its incorporation as a Delaware corporation in August 1995 under the name Thermo Biomedical Inc.,
as a wholly-owned subsidiary of Thermo Electron. Subsequently, Thermo Electron contributed all of
the assets or stock of its Nicolet Biomedical, Inc., Bird Medical Technologies, Inc., SensorMedics
Corporation, Medical Data Electronics, Inc. (“MDE”) and Bear Medical Systems, Inc. subsidiaries to
the Company. In September 2000, Thermo Electron contributed its MWW, Corpak LLC and
Tecomet, Inc. subsidiaries and substantially all of the assets and liabilities of its Thermedics Polymer
business (“Thermedics”) to the Company. The transfers of these businesses from Thermo Electron
were recorded at historical cost.

In early 2000, Thermo Electron announced that, as a part of a major reorganization, it planned to
spin-off its equity interest in the Company as a dividend to Thermo Electron stockholders. In
January 2001, Thermo Biomedical Inc. changed its name to VIASYS Healthcare Inc. Subsequently,
Thermo Electron received a favorable ruling from the Internal Revenue Service regarding the planned
spin-off. On October 10, 2001, Thermo Electron’s board of directors declared a dividend of all of its
equity interest in the Company. The dividend was distributed on November 15, 2001 to Thermo
Electron stockholders of record on November 7, 2001. The distribution was on the basis of 0.1461 share
of Company common stock for each share of Thermo Electron common stock outstanding.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies used by the Company in the preparation of its
consolidated financial statements follows:

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries, all
of which are wholly-owned. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Fiscal Year

The Company’s fiscal year is a 52 or 53 week period ending on the Saturday nearest to
December 31. Accordingly, fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002 ended on January 1, 2005, January 3, 2004
and December 28, 2002, respectively, and are identified herein as 2004, 2003 and 2002. Fiscal years
2004 and 2002 consisted of 52 weeks, and fiscal year 2003 consisted of 53 weeks.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist principally of demand deposits with financial institutions and
taxable, short-term money market securities. The Company considers all highly liquid investments with
maturities of three months or less at the date of purchase to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash
equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates market,

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. The
Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability
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VIASYS HEALTHCARE INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

of some of its customers to make required payments. The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on
the Company’s historical collections experience, historical write-offs of its receivables, current trends,
credit policy and a percentage of the Company’s accounts receivable by aging category. Account
balances are written off against the allowance after all means of collection have been exhausted and the
potential for recovery is considered remote. Charges for doubtful accounts are included in selling,
general and administrative expense in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Cost is determined using the
“first-in first out” method. Costs include direct materials, direct labor and applicable manufacturing
overhead, and other direct costs.

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews its quantities of inventories on hand and
compares these amounts to the expected usage of each particular product or product line. The
Company records a charge to cost of revenues for the amount required to reduce the carrying value of
the inventories to their estimated net realizable value.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The costs of major
additions and improvements that extend the lives of the assets are capitalized, while maintenance and
repair costs are charged to expense as incurred. Depreciation expense is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets, which are 30 years for
buildings, 2 to 10 years for machinery and equipment, 2 to 5 years for information technology and 3 to
7 years for furniture and equipment. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the
term of the lease or the estimated useful life of the asset. When assets are retired or otherwise
disposed of, the assets and related accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any
gain or loss is included in other, net, in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of identifiable net assets of
acquired businesses. The Company adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS No. 142”), as of
December 30, 2001. Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill and intangible assets having indefinite lives are no
longer amortized but are instead assigned to reporting units and tested for impairment annually or
more frequently if changes in circumstances or the occurrence of events indicate possible impairment.

Pursuant to SFAS No. 142, the Company performs an annual impairment test for goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives. The impairment test for goodwill is a two-step process.
Step one consists of a comparison of the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount,
including the goodwill allocated to each reporting unit. If the carrying amount is in excess of the fair
value, step two requires the comparison of the implied fair value of the reporting unit with the carrying
amount of the reporting unit’s goodwill. Any excess of the carrying value of the reporting unit’s
goodwill over the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill will be recorded as an impairment
loss.

The Company performed its annual SFAS No. 142 goodwill impairment assessment for its
reporting units as of November 27, 2004 and determined that there was no impairment.
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VIASYS HEALTHCARE INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consists of patents, capitalized software development costs, purchased technology
and other intangibles and are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Intangible assets with an
indefinite life, namely certain trademarks, are not amortized. Intangible assets with a definite life are
amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, which range from 2 to
17 years.

Capitalized Software Development Costs

Some of the Company’s products include embedded software which is essential to the products’
functionality. In accordance with SFAS No. 86, “Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to be
Sold, Leased, or Otherwise Marketed,” costs incurred in the research and development of new software
products and enhancements to existing software products are expensed as incurred until technological
feasibility has been established. The Company capitalizes software development costs when the project
reaches technological feasibility and ceases capitalization when the project is ready for release.
Capitalized software development costs are amortized on a product-by-product basis over the greater of
the ratio of current revenues to total anticipated revenues or on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life of the product. Amortization begins when the product is available for general release to the
customer. Unamortized capitalized software development costs at January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004
were $7,421,000 and $7,168,000 respectively, and are included in intangible assets, net, in the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

In accordance with SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived
Assets,” long-lived assets, such as property, plant and equipment and intangible assets subject to
amortization, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recovered. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is
measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash
flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated
future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of
the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets to be disposed of would be separately presented in
the balance sheet and reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell, and
are no longer depreciated.

Accrued Installation and Warranty Costs

The Company offers warranties on certain products for various periods of time. The Company
accrues for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time revenue is recognized. The Company’s
product warranty liability reflects management’s best estimate of probable liability under its product
warranties. Management estimates the liability based on the Company’s stated warranty policies and
practices, the historical frequency of claims, and the cost to replace or repair its products under
warranty. Factors that affect the Company’s warranty liability include the number of units sold, the
length of the warranty, historical and anticipated rates of warranty claims and cost per claim. The
Company periodically assesses the adequacy of its recorded warranty liabilities and adjusts the amounts
as necessary. The Company also accrues for the estimated cost of installation at the time revenue is
recognized for products that require installation for which the installation is not essential to
functionality and is deemed inconsequential or perfunctory.
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VIASYS HEALTHCARE INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income represents all changes in stockholders’ equity except those arising from
transactions with stockholders. Total comprehensive income is presented in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity. Total accumulated other comprehensive
income is displayed as a separate component of stockholders’ equity in the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Accumulated other comprehensive income as of January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004
consists solely of accumulated foreign currency translation adjustments. Foreign currency translation
adjustments are not generally adjusted for income taxes as they relate to indefinite investments in
foreign subsidiaries.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues primarily from the sale of products and to a lesser extent the
provision of services and rental of equipment. Revenues for products that require installation for which
the installation either is essential to functionality or is not deemed inconsequential or perfunctory are
recognized upon completion of installation. Revenues for products sold where installation is not
essential to functionality and is deemed inconsequential or perfunctory are recognized upon transfer of
title with estimated installation costs accrued.

Service revenues are derived from parts, service contracts, training, repairs not under warranty and
research and development for third parties. The Company sells service contracts on products when the
warranty period expires. The Company recognizes revenues from these service contracts ratably over
the terms of the contracts, while the cost is recognized when incurred. Revenues from the sale of spare
parts are recognized upon transfer of title. Revenues from training and repairs are recognized at the
time the service is performed and the customer has accepted the work.

The Company rents products, primarily in the Respiratory Technologies segment, to hospitals and
other customers for periods ranging from two weeks to over a year. The Company recognizes rental
revenues ratably over the terms of the rental contract. Rental revenue was not material in any of the
periods presented and is included in product revenue in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Income.

Cost of Revenues

Cost of revenues includes costs related to the sale of products and to a lesser extent the cost of
providing services and renting equipment. Cost of revenues from the sale of products consists primarily
of the cost of materials, direct labor and manufacturing overhead. Cost of revenues from service
includes the cost of parts, direct labor and other costs directly related to servicing the equipment
covered under a service contract. Cost of revenues from rentals primarily includes the depreciation of
the rental equipment.

Operating Expenses

Selling, general and administrative expense and research and development expense consist
primarily of salaries, commissions, benefits, amortization of intangible assets and other expenses in
support of these activities. Research and development costs are charged to expense when incurred.

Shipping and Handling Cost

The Company classifies shipping and handling costs as a component of cost of revenues.
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VIASYS HEALTHCARE INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Restructuring Charges

Costs associated with restructuring activities initiated on or after December 29, 2002, other than
those activities related to purchase business combinations, are accounted for in accordance with SFAS
No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities” and SFAS No. 112,
“Employers’ Accounting for Postemployment Benefits” (“SFAS No. 112”), where applicable. Costs
associated with restructuring activities initiated prior to December 29, 2002, other than those activities
related to purchase business combinations, are accounted for in accordance with Emerging Issues Task
Force Issue No. 94-3, “Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other
Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a Restructuring),” and SFAS No. 112,
where applicable.

Purchased In-Process Research and Development (IPR&D)

When the Company acquires another entity, the purchase price is allocated, as applicable, between
IPR&D, other identifiable intangible assets, net tangible assets, and goodwill. The amount allocated to
IPR&D represents an estimate of the fair value of purchased in-process technology for research
projects that, as of the date of acquisition, have not reached technological feasibility and have no
alternative future use. The amount of the purchase price allocated to IPR&D is determined by
estimating the future cash flows of each project and discounting the net cash flows back to their
present values. The discount rate used is determined at the time of acquisition, in accordance with
accepted valuation methods, and includes consideration of the assessed risk of the project not being
developed to a stage of commercial feasibility.

Foreign Currency

The financial statements of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries are maintained in their local
currency and are translated into United States (“U.S”) dollars in accordance with SFAS No. 52,
“Foreign Currency Translation.” All assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries are
translated at the exchange rate in effect on the balance sheet date. The resulting translation
adjustments are recorded in stockholders’ equity as a separate component of accumulated other
comprehensive income until such time as the subsidiary is sold or substantially or completely liquidated.
Revenue and expense items are translated at weighted average exchange rates for the year. Transaction
gains (losses) resulting from transactions denominated in foreign currencies and the translation of
intercompany balances, other than intercompany debt deemed to be of a long-term nature, are included
in other, net, in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income and totaled ($697,000),
($1,410,000) and ($438,000) in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Income Taxes

The Company utilizes the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes as prescribed
by SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognized for the expected future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable
income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date. The Company provides a reserve against its deferred tax assets
when, in the opinion of management, it is more likely than not that such assets will not be realized.
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VIASYS HEALTHCARE INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Earnings (Loss) per Share

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share have been calculated in accordance with SFAS No. 128,
“Earnings Per Share.” Basic earnings (loss) per share (“Basic EPS”) is computed based upon the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings (loss) per
share (“Diluted EPS”) is computed based upon the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding adjusted to include the potentially dilutive effect of outstanding stock options and awards.

The following table sets forth the reconciliation of the weighted average number of common shares
used to compute Basic EPS to those used to compute Diluted EPS for 2004, 2003 and 2002:

2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)

Weighted average number of common shares -
outstanding—Basic ................. ... oL, 30,809 28,284 26,080
Dilutive effect of outstanding stock options and awards . . 594 621 523

Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding—Diluted. . . ... ........ .. ... ... ..., 31,403 28,905 26,603

Options to purchase approximately 799,000 shares, 527,000 shares and 805,000 shares were
excluded from the computation of diluted weighted average shares outstanding for 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively, as their effect would have been anti-dilutive.

Stock-Based Compensation

At January 1, 2005, the Company has one stock-based employee compensation plan, which is
described more fully in Note 10. The Company accounts for this plan under the intrinsic value method
of accounting as defined by Accounting Principles Board (“APB”’) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees” (“APB No. 25”), and related interpretations, and complies with the
disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS No. 123%),
as amended by SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure.”
Under APB No. 25, compensation expense is measured as the difference, if any, between the exercise
price of the stock option or award and the market value of the Company’s common stock on the date
of the grant.
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VIASYS HEALTHCARE INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

If the Company had elected to recognize compensation expense for its stock-based employee
compensation plan based on the fair value of the options granted at the grant date as prescribed by
SFAS No. 123, net income and earnings per share would have been reported as follows:

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands, except per share
amounts)
Net income, as reported .. .........ovieninnnnerenennns $14,831 $21,586 $ 5,324
Add: Stock-based compensation expense included in net income,
net of related tax effects. ... ........ ... ... .., 135 —_ —
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under the fair value based method for all awards,
net of related tax effects. . .. ............ ... .. oL (4,540) (5,306) (4,249)
Pro forma net iMCOME . . . . v v vt et e et et ettt e e e e $10,426 $16,280 §$ 1,075
Basic EPS:
Asteported . .. ..ttt e $ 48 § 76 $ 20
Proforma .. ..ovi i e e $ 34 $§ 58 § .04
Diluted EPS: :
ASTeported . ..ot $ 47§ 75 % 20
Proforma ........ ... .. . . . . $ 33 $§ 56 § .04

Because the estimated fair value of stock options is amortized to expense over the vesting period
and additional options may be granted in future years, the above pro forma amounts may not be
representative of the effects on reported net income for future years. For purposes of the pro forma
disclosures above, the weighted average fair value per stock option granted in 2004, 2003, and 2002 was
$6.77, $5.63 and $6.57, respectively. .

The fair value of each option grant was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model with the following weighted average assumptions:

2004 2003 2002
Expected volatility . . ............ ... .. ... ... 350% 340% 34.0%
Risk-free interestrate .. ......... ... ... ... .... 3.4% 3.0% 3.7%
Expected life of options . . . .............. ..t 5 years S years 5 years

Expected dividend yield . .. ..................... — — —

The Black-Scholes option-pricing model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of
traded options, which have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option-pricing
models require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including expected stock price volatility.
Because the Company’s employee stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of
traded options and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair
value estimate, in management’s opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable
single measure of the fair value of its employee stock options.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist mainly of cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, other current assets, accounts payable, deferred revenue and other current liabilities. The
carrying value of these financial instruments approximates their fair value because of their short-term
nature.

The fair value of financial instruments is defined as the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially expose the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash and cash equivalents, which are held at major financial institutions, and accounts
receivable. Cash and cash equivalents held with financial institutions may exceed the amount of
insurance provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation on such deposits. The Company’s
policy is to place its cash and cash equivalents among high quality financial institutions in order to limit
its credit exposure. The Company has not experienced any losses on its deposits of cash and cash
equivalents. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to accounts receivable are limited due to the
large number of customers comprising the Company’s customer base. The Company performs ongoing
credit evaluations of its customers and generally does not require collateral or other security deposits
from its customers. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts based upon the
expected collectibility of all accounts receivable. No single customer represented more than 10% of the
Company’s revenues or accounts receivable balance for any periods presented.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year financial statements to conform to the
current year presentation.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 151,
“Inventory Costs” (“SFAS No. 151”). This statement amends the guidance in Accounting Research
Builetin No. 43, Chapter 4, “Inventory Pricing,” to clarify the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle
facility expense, freight, handling costs, and waste material (spoilage). SFAS No. 151 requires such
abnormal expenses to be recognized in the period in which they are incurred. SFAS No. 151 also
requires that the allocation of fixed production overheads to inventory be based on the normal capacity
of the production facilities. SFAS No. 151 is effective for inventory costs incurred during fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2005. The Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 151 to have a
material impact on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS
No. 123R”). This statement is a revision to SFAS No. 123 and supersedes APB No. 25 and amends
SFAS No. 95, “Statement of Cash Flows.” SFAS No. 123R focuses primarily on accounting for
transactions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment transactions. SFAS
No. 123R requires a public entity to measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an
award of equity instruments based on the fair value of the award at the date of grant. That cost will be
recognized over the period during which an employee is required to provide services in exchange for
the award. SFAS No. 123R is effective for the first interim or annual reporting period that begins after
June 15, 2005. Early adoption is permitted in periods in which financial statements have not yet been
issued. The Company expects to adopt SFAS No. 123R on July 3, 2005.
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
SFAS No. 123R permits public companies to choose between the following two adoption methods:

1. A “modified prospective” method in which compensation cost is recognized beginning with
the effective date (a) based on the requirements of SFAS No. 123R for all share-based
payments granted after the effective date and (b) based on the requirements of SFAS No. 123
for all awards granted to employees prior to the effective date of SFAS No. 123R that remain
unvested on the effective date, or

2. A “modified retrospective” method which includes the requirements of the modified
prospective method described above, but also permits entities to restate based on the amounts
previously recognized under SFAS No. 123 for purposes of pro forma disclosures either (a) all
prior periods presented or (b) prior interim periods of the year of adoption.

The Company plans to adopt SFAS No.123R using the modified prospective method.

Adoption of SFAS No. 123R will not affect the Company’s cash flows or financial position, but it
will reduce reported net income and earnings per share because the Company will be required to
recognize compensation expense for share purchase rights granted under its employee stock option and
employee stock purchase plans, whereas the Company has not been required to record such expense
under current accounting rules. The impact of the adoption of SFAS No. 123R cannot be predicted at
this time because it will depend on levels of share-based payments granted in the future. However,
valuation of employee stock options under SFAS No. 123R is similar to SFAS No. 123, with minor
exceptions. The impact on the Company’s results of operations and earnings per share had the
Company adopted SFAS No. 123, is described in the “Stock-Based Compensation” section of this Note.
SFAS No. 123R also requires the benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation cost
to be reported as a financing cash flow, rather than as an operating cash flow as required under current
literature. While the Company cannot estimate what those amounts will be in the future (because they
depend on, among other things, when employees exercise stock options), the amount of operating cash
flows recognized in prior periods for such excess tax deductions were $1,373,000, $1,203,000 and
$147,000 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, “Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets” (“SFAS
No. 153”). SFAS No. 153 amends the guidance in APB Opinion No. 29, “Accounting for Nonmonetary
Transactions,” to eliminate certain exceptions to the principle that exchanges of nonmonetary assets be
measured based on the fair value of the assets exchanged. SFAS No. 153 eliminates the exception for
nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets and replaces it with a general exception for
exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. A nonmonetary exchange has
commercial substance if the future cash flows of the entity are expected to change significantly as a
result of the exchange. SFAS No. 153 is effective for nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2005. The Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 153 to
have a material impact on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows,

In October 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act (“AJCA’) created a new tax deduction for
computing taxable profits from the sale of products manufactured in the United States. The AJCA also
provides for a special one-time tax deduction of 85 percent of certain foreign earnings that are
repatriated in either an enterprise’s last tax year that began before the enactment date, or the first tax
year that begins during the one-year period beginning on the date of enactment.

In December 2004, the FASB issued Staff Position No. 109-1, “Application of FASB Statement
No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes,to the Tax Deduction on Qualified Production Activities Provided

F-16




VIASYS HEALTHCARE INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

by the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004” (“FSP 109-1”). FSP 109-1 clarifies that the benefit of the
manufacturer’s tax deduction provided by the new tax law constitutes a special deduction and not a
change in tax rate. Consequently, the enactment of AJCA does not affect deferred tax assets and
liabilities existing at the enactment date.

In December 2004, the FASB issued Staff Position No. 109-2, “Accounting and Disclosure
Guidance for the Foreign Earnings Repatriation Provision within the American Jobs Creation Act of
2004” (“FSP 109-2”). FSP 109-2 provides accounting and disclosure guidance with respect to the
repatriation of certain foreign earnings to a U.S. taxpayer as provided for in the AJCA. The Company
has not yet completed its evaluation of the effects of the repatriation provision included in the AJCA,
and accordingly has not adjusted its tax expense or deferred tax liability to reflect the repatriation
provisions of the AJCA.

3. Acquisitions

On July 28, 2004, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of Taugagreining, hf.
(“Taugagreining”), an Icelandic company that developed and marketed electroencephalography
(“EEG”) technology for the diagnosis and monitoring of neurological function, for a cash purchase
price of $5,601,000, including expenditures associated with the acquisition. In addition, the Company
may also be required to pay up to $900,000 in additional future payments based on the achievement of
various performance milestones through December 31, 2006. Any such payments will be accounted for
as additional purchase price.

The allocation of the purchase price has not yet been finalized, however, the Company does not
expect the final allocation of the purchase price to differ materially from the amounts included in the
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company has allocated $3,428,000 of the
purchase price to goodwill, $1,157,000 to intangible assets, $386,000 to purchased in-process research
and development and $630,000 to net tangible assets. The goodwill was assigned to the Company’s
NeuroCare segment. All of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for income tax purposes. The
intangible assets, consisting of purchased technology and a three-year non-compete agreement, are
being amortized on a straight-line basis over lives ranging from 3 to 5 years. The amount allocated to
purchased in-process research and development was expensed on the date of acquisition, because the
product under development had not reached technological feasibility and had no future alternative use.
The amount of the purchase price allocated to purchased in-process research and development and
intangible assets was determined by an independent appraiser.

On December 18, 2002, the Company acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of SciMed,
Limited (“SciMed”), a company based in the United Kingdom that develops, manufactures and
markets advanced Doppler ultrasound equipment for the non-invasive measurement of blood flow, for
a cash purchase price of $3,468,000 (including expenditures associated with the acquisition), of which
$1,841,000 was paid in the third quarter of 2003. In connection with this acquisition, the Company
recorded $1,879,000 of goodwill, which was assigned to the Company’s NeuroCare segment, and
$1,456,000 of intangible assets, consisting of purchased technology, patents and a five-year non-compete
agreement. An independent appraiser was used to determine the fair market value of the intangible
assets acquired.

On October 16, 2002, the Company acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of E.M.E.
(Electro Medical Equipment) Limited (“EME”) for an aggregate purchase price of $20,870,000,
including expenditures associated with the acquisition and net of $2,264,000 of cash acquired. The
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3. Acquisitions (Continued)

purchase price consisted of $17,723,000 in cash, notes payable of $897,000 and 146,535 shares of the
Company’s common stock valued at $2,250,000. EME manufactures, develops and markets devices and
disposables for the non-invasive treatment of newborns with respiratory problems.

The Company has allocated $17,125,000 of the purchase price to goodwill, $858,000 to trademarks,
$3,004,000 to other intangible assets, $900,000 to purchased in-process research and development and
$1,017,000 to net tangible liabilities. The goodwill was assigned to the Company’s Critical Care
segment. The trademarks were deemed to have an indefinite life and are, therefore, not subject to
amortization. The intangible assets, consisting of purchased technology and distribution agreements, are
being amortized on a straight-line basis over lives ranging from 2 to 10 years. The amount allocated to
purchased in-process research and development was expensed on the date of acquisition because the
products under development had not reached technological feasibility and had no future alternative
use. The amount of the purchase price allocated to purchased in-process research and development,
trademarks and intangible assets was determined by an independent appraiser.

In connection with the acquisition of EME, the Company developed a plan to reduce costs and
promote operational efficiencies by eliminating redundant functions and excess capacity through the
closure of two facilities and the elimination of 48 positions in the areas of sales, finance, service and
research and development. In connection with the plan, the Company established reserves in purchase
accounting totaling $1,290,000. As of January 1, 2005, the facilities have been abandoned and all 48
positions have been eliminated. The balance of the reserve at January 1, 2005 reflects lease obligations
associated with the abandoned facilities. The remaining reserves established are included in other
accrued expenses in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

A summary of the reserve activity related to the EME acquisition-related restructuring plan as of
and for the year ended January 1, 2005 is as follows (in thousands):

Initial Reserves

Recorded in Reserves Foreign
Purchase Balance as of Payments Made Reversed Against Currency  Balance as of
Accounting  January 3, 2004  During 2004 . Goodwill Translation January 1, 2005
Severance and employee
related costs ... ........ $ 750 $479 $(185) $(309) $15 $ —
Lease cancellation fees . . . . .. 243 262 (137) — 12 137
Exit and other costs . . . ... .. 297 98 (100) — 2 —
$1,290 $839 $(422) $(309) $_22 $137

The results of these acquisitions are included in the accompanying Consolidated Financial
Statements since their respective dates of acquisition. Pro forma amounts are not presented as the
acquisitions described above would not have had a material effect on the Company’s results of
operations or financial condition for any of the years presented.
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4. Inventories

The components of inventories are as follows:

Rawmaterials. . . ................. ... 0.
Work-in-process . ...........c. ...
Finishedgoods . ... ......... ... .. ... .. ...

5. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consists of the following:

Land ...
Buildings ......... .0
Machinery and equipment . . .................
Information technology . . . ..................
Furniture and fixtures ... ...................
Leasehold improvements . .. .................
Construction-in-progress . ...................

Accumulated depreciation . ..................

January 1, 2005  Japnuary 3, 2004

(In thousands)

. $42,621
. 7,943
.. 22,087

$72,651

January 1, 2005  January 3, 2004

$39,036
6,868
20,829

$66,733

(In thousands)

- $ 990
e 6,892
.. 62,167
. 4,095
o 8,796
. 7,187
. 5,875

96,002
. (68,495)

$ 27,507

$ 990
6,892
59,429
3,818
7,903
8,264

1,485

88,781

(64,990)
$ 23,791

Depreciation expense associated with property, plant and equipment was $6,871,000, $7,111,000

and $7,628,000 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

6. Goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill, by business segment, for the years ended January 1, 2005 and
January 3, 2004, and the changes in those balances are as follows:

Respiratory Medical and
Technologies Critical Care NeuroCare Surgical
Segment Segment Segment Products Segment Tota)
(in thousands)

Balance at December 28,2002 .. .............. $30,089 $80,830  $54,427 $5,149 $170,495
Purchase accounting adjustments . .. .......... —_ 1,968 — — 1,968
Foreign currency translation . ............... 7,820 1,947 206 — 9,973

Balance at January 3,2004 .................. $37,909 $84,745  $54,633 $5,149 $182,436
Goodwill as a result of acquisitions . .......... — — 3,428 — 3,428
Purchase accounting adjustments . . . .......... (99) (49) — — (148)
Foreign currency translation .. .............. 3,018 1,353 147 — 4,518

Balance at January 1,2005 .................. $40,828 $86,049  $58,208 $5,149 $190,234
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7. Intangible Assets

The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization of the Company’s intangible assets as of
January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004 are as follows:

January 1, 2005 January 3, 2004
Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Book Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Book
Amount Amortization  Value Amount Amortization  Value
(in thousands)
Software . ....... ... i $30,048 $(22,627) § 7421  $24,355 $(17,187) $ 7,168
PAtents ............oououieennnennn. 3373 (942) 2,431 1,882 (634) 1,248
Purchased technology . . . . .............. 12,377 (2,266) 10,111 5,335 (920) 4,415
Other intangibles. . ... ......c.uuuo.... 3,821 (951) 2870 2,859 (475) 2,384

$49,619  $(26,786) $22,833  $34,431  $(19,216) $15,215

The gross carrying amount of the Company’s intangible assets that have indefinite lives and are not
subject to amortization as of January 1, 2005 and January 3, 2004 are $1,033,000 and $967,000,
respectively. These assets are comprised of acquired trademarks.

Amortization expense of intangible assets was $5,690,000, $3,843,000 and $2,242,000 in 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively.

The estimated future annual amortization expense for each of the next five succeeding fiscal years
is as follows (in thousands):

Estimated

Amortization
Fiscal Year _ Expense
2005 L e e e e $6,298
2006 . . e e e e $4,927
2007 .. e e e e e $3,719
2008 . . e e e $3,043
2000 . .. e e e e e $1,409

8. Revolving Credit Facility

On May 31, 2002, the Company entered into a three-year syndicated $60,000,000 Senior Revolving
Credit Facility (the “Facility””), which expires in May 2005. Up to $10,000,000 of the $60,000,000 is
available for standby letters of credit. Under the Facility, there are options under which the Company
can borrow funds which determine the interest rate that will be charged. These options include
borrowings at the London Interbank Borrowing Rate (“LIBOR”) plus a spread or at the prime rate
plus a spread. Under the LIBOR option, the interest rate depends on the term selected which can be
no more than one year, and is fixed for that term. Under the prime rate option, the interest rate
fluctuates based on the prime rate during the period over which any amount is outstanding under that
option.

Under the terms of the Facility, the Company is subject to certain debt covenants which limit debt
to a maximum of 2.5 times earnings before interest, taxes and depreciation and amortization
(“EBITDA”), require a minimum EBITDA to interest expense ratio of 4.0, limit aggregate annual
capital expenditures to $20,000,000 and require a minimum stockholders’ equity balance. At January 1,
2005 and January 3, 2004, the Company was in compliance with all such covenants. Certain of the
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8. Revolving Credit Facility (Continued)

Company’s assets are pledged as collateral under the Facility. The Company is required to pay a
quarterly commitment fee at an annual rate of .35% on the unused portion of the Facility.

In July 2003, the Company repaid all amounts outstanding under the Facility with a portion of the
net proceeds from the follow-on offering consummated in June 2003. No amounts are outstanding
under the Facility as of January 1, 2005. At January 1, 2005, $58,374,000 was available to be borrowed
under the Facility, because $1,626,000 of standby letters of credit have been issued under the Facility.

9. Capital Stock

In August 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors and sole stockholder approved an amendment
to the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation to, among other items, authorize 5,000,000 shares of
preferred stock, $.01 par value per share, for issuance by the Company’s Board of Directors without
future stockholder approval. The amendment also increased the number of authorized shares of
common stock, $.01 p‘élr value per share, for issuance from 3,000 shares to 100,000,000 shares. There
was no preferred stock issued or outstanding at January 1, 2005.

The Company has distributed rights under a Stockholder rights plan adopted by the Company’s
Board of Directors to holders of outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock. Each right
entitles the holder to purchase one ten-thousandth of a share (a Unit) of Series B Junior Participating
Preferred Stock, $100 par value, at a purchase price of $75 per Unit, subject to adjustment. The rights
will not be exercisable until the earlier of (i) 10 days following a public announcement that a person or
group of affiliated or associated persons (an Acquiring Person) has acquired, or obtained the right to
acquire, beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the outstanding shares of common stock (the Stock
Acquisition Date), or (ii) 10 business days following the commencement of a tender offer or exchange
offer for 15% or more of the outstanding shares of common stock.

In the event that a person becomes the beneficial owner of 15% or more of the outstanding shares
of common stock, except pursuant to an offer for all outstanding shares of common stock approved by
at least a majority of the members of the Board of Directors, each holder of a right (except for the
Acquiring Person) will thereafter have the right to receive, upon exercise, that number of shares of
common stock that equals the exercise price of the right divided by one-half of the current market
price of the common stock. In the event that, at any time after any person has become an Acquiring
Person, (i) the Company is acquired in a merger or other business combination transaction in which the
Company is not the surviving corporation or its common stock is changed or exchanged (other than a
merger that follows an offer approved by the Board of Directors), or (ii) 50% or more of the
Company’s assets or earning power is sold or transferred, each holder of a right (except for the
Acquiring Person) shall thereafter have the right to receive, upon exercise, the number of shares of
common stock of the acquiring company that equals the exercise price of the right divided by one half
of the current market price of such common stock.

At any time until 10 days following the Stock Acquisition Date, the Company may redeem the
rights in whole, but not in part, at a price of $.001 per right (payable in cash or stock). The rights
expire on November 12, 2011, unless earlier redeemed or exchanged.
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10. Stock Option Plan

In September 2001, the Company adopted the Equity Incentive Plan (the “Plan”). The Plan
permits the Company’s Board of Directors to grant incentive stock options to employees of the
Company and non-qualified stock options, restricted stock, performance stock and other stock-based
incentive awards to officers, directors, employees and consultants of the Company. In February 2002,
the Board of Directors amended the Plan and received approval at the Annual Meeting of
Stockholders on May 9, 2002 to increase the total number of shares available for issuance under the
Plan from 4,680,000 to 6,680,000. The exercise price for incentive stock options granted under the Plan
may not be less than 100% of the fair market value of the Company’s common stock at the date of
grant. Options issued under the Plan are generally exercisable in three equal annual installments
commencing one year from the date of grant and expire if not exercised within ten years from the date
of grant. At January 1, 2005, approximately 888,000 shares remain available for future grant under the
Plan.

A summary of the Company’s stock option activity is as follows:

Number of
Shares Weighted Average
(in thousands) Exercise Price

Options outstanding at December 29, 2001 ............... 3,863 $14.24
Granted . ... . e 702 18.06
Exercised .......... i e (73) 12.74
Cancelled orexpired ............iiiiiny 271) 15.14
Options outstanding at December 28,2002 ............... 4,221 $14.84
Granted ... ... i e e e e e e e 1,642 16.08
Exercised ......... ... . i (557 13.47
Cancelled orexpired ......... ...t (521) 14.50
Options outstanding at January 3,2004 . . ................ 4,785 $15.44
Granted .. ... ... e 1,034 18.46
Exercised . ...... ...t e (599) 14.27
Cancelledorexpired .......... ... ..., (675) 17.10
Options outstanding at January 1,2005.................. 4,545 $15.95
Options exercisable at year end:

December 28,2002 .. ... .. ... . e 1,363 $14.07
January 3,2004 . . ... .. 1,977 $14.74
January 1,2005 . ... ... ... A 2,680 $15.04

The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding and exercisable at
January 1, 2005 (shares in thousands):

Options Outstanding

Weighted Average
Number of Remaining Number of

Options Exercisable

Shares Contractnal Life Weighted Average  Shares  Weighted Average
Range of Exercise Prices Outstanding (in years) Exercise Price  Exercisable Exercise Price
$992—$1423 .. ... ... ... 2,606 6.8 $14.13 2,127 $14.17
$15.26—$2027 .. ... ... . 1,795 8.7 $17.97 532 $18.19
$2343—$2390 .. ... ... 144 8.6 $23.53 21 $23.90
$9.92—$2390 . ................. 4,545 7.6 $15.95 2,680 $15.04
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11. Employee Benefit Plans
Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In October 2001, the Company adopted an employee stock purchase plan in which substantially all
of the Company’s full-time employees became eligible to participate effective July 1, 2002. Under this
plan, employees may contribute up to 10% of their compensation toward the purchase of the
Company’s common stock at the lower of 85% of the fair market price on the first or last day of each
offering period. Proceeds received from the issuance of shares are credited to stockholders’ equity in
the fiscal year that the shares are issued. Under the terms of the plan, a total of 650,000 shares of
common stock have been reserved for issuance to employees. At January 1, 2005, approximately
410,000 shares remain available for purchase under the plan.

401(k) Savings Plan

The Company has a 401(k) savings plan that covers substantially all of its U.S. employees.
Participants in the savings plan may elect to contribute, on a pretax basis, a certain percent of their
salary to the plan. The Company matches a certain percentage of each participant’s contributions as
per the provisions of the plan. The expense under the plan related to the Company’s matching
contribution was $2,512,000, $2,464,000 and $2,529,000 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

12. Restructuring

In recent years, the Company has initiated a series of restructuring activities to reduce costs,
achieve synergies and streamline operations.

2004 Restructuring Plan

In the third quarter of 2004, the Company initiated a company-wide restructuring plan to lower its
cost structure. The principal components of the plan include reducing worldwide headcount by
approximately 220 employees, transitioning the Respiratory Technologies’ U.S. manufacturing
operations from Yorba Linda, California to the Company’s Critical Care facility in Palm Springs,
California, combining Critical Care’s U.S. commercial operations with Respiratory Technologies’ U.S.
commercial operations in a newly leased facility in Yorba Linda, California, and the closure of a facility
in Bilthoven, the Netherlands. The plan involves the termination of employees in Germany, the
Netherlands, the United Kingdom and the United States. The total amount of restructuring expense
expected to be incurred in connection with this plan is between $9,500,000 and $11,000,000. As of
January 1, 2005, approximately 200 of the targeted employees had been severed. The Company expects
all components of the plan to be substantially completed by the end of fiscal year 2005.
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12. Restructuring (Continued)

A summary of the restructuring activity associated with the 2004 Restructuring Plan is as follows
(in thousands):

Employee Employee
Severance and Retention Facility Other
Related Expenses  Payments  Closure Costs Costs Total
Balance at January 3,2004 . ...............  J— $ — $ — $ — & —
Costsaccrued (@) . ......covvveeninenn.. 8,248 216 6 137 8,607
Payments . ............oouueeeinnn... (4,284) (22) (6) (137)  (4,449)
Foreign currency translation. . ............ 278 — — — 278
Balance at January 1,2005 ................ $ 4,242 $194 $ — $§ — $4436

(a) Reflects costs of $7,108 in Respiratory Technologies, $453 in Critical Care, $788 in NeuroCare,
$227 in Medical and Surgical Products and $31 in the corporate office.

2003 Restructuring Plans

Throughout 2003, the Company initiated three restructuring programs. The following is a summary
of these programs: '

EME Restructuring Plan

In 2003, as a result of the acquisition of EME, the Company initiated a restructuring plan related -
to its Critical Care segment, which resulted in the elimination of 48 positions in the areas of sales,
finance, service and research and development. As of January 1, 2005, a total of $911,000 of retention
payments had been expensed and paid in connection with this plan, of which $5,000 was expensed in
2004. All expenses related to this restructuring plan have been paid as of January 1, 2005.

NeuroCare Restructuring Plan

On August 6, 2003, the Company commenced a plan to restructure its NeuroCare segment. The
restructuring plan included the termination of 55 general and administrative, service and manufacturing
positions. The plan was carried out in the third and fourth quarters of 2003. The total amount of
restructuring expense incurred in connection with this plan was approximately $551,000, all of which
was expensed and paid in 2003.

German- Restructuring Plan

In the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company commenced plans to close a machine shop and reduce
the number of customer service positions at a Respiratory Technologies’ facility in Germany. Due to -
German labor regulations, certain positions cannot be eliminated immediately. As a result of this plan,
24 positions are being eliminated over a period of five years. As of January 1, 2005, 14 of these
positions had been eliminated and approximately $276,000 of severance has been paid. Severance
expense for the remaining 10 employees will continue to be recorded ratably over their remaining
employment term. The total amount of restructuring expense expected to be incurred in connection
with this plan is approximately $2,000,000. As of January 1, 2005, a total of approximately $1,169,000 of
restructuring expense had been incurred in connection with this plan.
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12. Restructuring (Continued)

A summary of the restructuring activity associated with the 2003 Restructuring Plans is as follows
(in thousands):

NeuroCare German
EME Restructuring Restructuring Restructuring
Plan Plan Plan
Employee Employee Employee
Retention Severance and Severance and
Payments Other Costs Related Exp Related Expenses  Total
Balance at December 28,2002 . ............... $ — $— $§ — $ — § —
Costsaccrued .......c.. it 899 7 551 304 1,761
Payments.................... e (848) 7 (551) (129) (1,535)
Foreign currency translation . ............... (¢ = — 5 (46)
Balance at January 3,2004 .. ................. $ — $— $ — $ 180 $ 180
Costsaccrued . ... ....... .. ... 5 — — 865 870
o s T 65 - — (147) (152)
Foreign currency translation ................ — = — 98 98
Balance at January 1,2005 . .................. $§ — §$— $§ — $ 996 $ 996

2002 and 2001 Restructuring Plans

Throughout 2002 and 2001, the Company initiated various restructuring programs. As a result of
these efforts, the Company incurred costs to close and consolidate facilities, retain certain employees
and terminate approximately 250 employees. The facilities affected by the these actions included the
Company’s New Hampshire and Colorado facilities, which were consolidated with the Company’s
NeuroCare operations in Wisconsin. In addition, the Company vacated several sales and service offices,
mainly in Germany and Austria, and consolidated those operations into one facility in Germany.

A summary of the restructuring activity associated with the 2002 and 2001 Restructuring Plans is as
follows (in thousands):

Employee Employee
Severance and Retention Facility Other
Related Expenses Payments Closure Costs  Costs Total
Balance at December 29,2001, .................... $ 1,769 $ 320 $ 233 $313 $2,635
Costsaccrued (@) . ... ...ov v 2,905 — 2,272 554 5,731
Non-cash write-down of New Hampshire facility . . . .. .. — — (1,102) — (1,102)
Payments ........... ... ... i (4,026) (320) (708)  (573) (5,627)
Foreign currency translation. . . .................. 340 — — — 340
Balance at December 28,2002, ... ................. $ 988 $ — $§ 695 $294 $1,977
Costsaccrued . ............ ..o, 36 — — — 36
Payments ............ ... . . i (822) — (351) (46) (1,219)
Foreign currency translation. . . .................. 191 — an — 174
Balance at January 3,2004 . .......... ..., $ 393 $ — $ 327 $248 § 968
Reversals and Adjustments to Restructuring Charges (b) . (342) — 3) (88) (433)
Payments ............ ... i (40) — (37) (164) (241)
Foreign currency translation. ... ................. 22 — 24 4 50
Balance at January 1,2005 ... ........ ... ... ..... $ 33 $ — $§ 311 § — § 344

(a) Reflects costs of $526 in Respiratory Technologies, $233 in Critical Care, $3,776 in NeuroCare, $308 in
Medical and Surgical Products and $888 in the corporate office.

(b) Reflects reversals to restructuring costs of $345 in Respiratory Technologies and $88 in the corporate office.
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12. Restructuring (Continued)

The balance of this reserve at January 1, 2005 is comprised primarily of lease obligations
associated with the abandoned facilities less estimated sublease incomes. These amounts will be paid
over their respective lease terms the longest of which extends until 2014. The reversal to restructuring
charges in 2004 of $433,000 resulted mainly from a favorable judgment received with respect to an
employee’s severance payout.

13. Income Taxes

The components of income from continuing operations before income taxes are as follows (in
thousands):

2004 2003 2002
DOMESHC . .+ v e e e et e e et $34718 $29,106 $24,122
O (11,207) 10,038 6,211

$ 23511 $39,144 $30,333

The components of the provision for income taxes are as follows (in thousands):

2004 2003 2002
Current:
Federal .. ... .. e i e $ 4053 §$ 5399 § 8,143
State . . e e e 1,659 1,352 1,296
Foreign . ... ... i e 502 3,485 2,071
Total current. . .. .. .. e e e 6,214 10,236 11,510
Deferred:
Federal ....... . . . i e 5,059 2,492 (716)
) 7 1 1= 410 227 133
Foreign .. ... i e e (3,208) 351 558
Totaldeferred . . ........ ... . i, 2,261 3,070 (25)
Total provision for income taxes . .. ............cccvuu... $ 8475 §$13,306 $11,485

The provision for income taxes differs from the provision calculated by applying the statutory
federal income tax rate of 35% to income from continuing operations before income taxes due to the
following (in thousands):

2004 2003 2002

Federal Statutory Rate . . .. ................. ... $ 8,229 $13,700 $10,617
Increases (Decreases) Resulting From:

State income taxes, net of federaltax ................. 1,345 1,026 929

Exportsalesbenefit .......... ... ... ... ... ... (1,983) (1,750) (634)

Effect of foreign operations . ............ ... ... 621 324 455

Nondeductible expenses . . .......... ... v, 301 315 243

Other .. i (38) (309) (125)

$ 8475 813,306 $11,485
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13. Income Taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets consist of the
following (in thousands):

2004 2003
Deferred Tax Assets (Liabilities):

Reserves and accruals . .............c. v, $ 4,134 § 4,032
Inventory basis difference . . .. ...... ... . . L 4,837 5,736
Net operating loss and credit carryforwards . . ............. 3,347 3,615
Accrued compensation . . ... i e 1,526 1,217
Depreciation and amortization . ...............cou.uu.. (6,450) (3,264)
Deferred credits and amortization. . .................... 1,224 2,110
Prepaid expenses . . ... ... . . ... (716) —
Other, met .. ... i e (550) (534)

7,352 12,912
Less: Valuation allowance. . .......................... (1,001) (3,323)

$ 6351 §$9,589

The valuation allowance relates to uncertainty surrounding the realization of foreign tax net
operating loss carryforwards. At January 1, 2005, the Company had foreign net operating loss
carryforwards of approximately $8,400,000. Approximately $5,000,000 of the net operating loss
carryforwards do not expire. The remainder expires at various times over the next 5 years. Deferred
taxes have not been provided on approximately $8,000,000 of cumulative undistributed earnings of
foreign subsidiaries that could be subject to taxation if remitted to the U.S. because the Company plans
to keep these amounts permanently invested overseas. The Company, however, is currently evaluating
the effects of the repatriation provision included in the AJCA, which was signed into law on
October 22, 2004. The Company has not made a decision to repatriate any earnings and consequently
the income tax effects of any potential repatriation cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.

14. Discontinued Operations

In September 2002, the Company announced its plan to exit the patient monitoring business by
divesting MDE and in September 2003, the Company announced its plan to sell certain assets of
Thermedics. Thermedics manufactured polyurethanes for medical and industrial applications. These
decisions were made as a result of the determination that MDE and Thermedics did not fit into the
Company’s long-term strategy of focusing and investing resources in the Respiratory Technologies,
Critical Care, NeuroCare and Medical and Surgical Products segments. The consolidated financial
statements have been restated to account for MDE and Thermedics as discontinued operations. MDE
and Thermedics were previously part of the Medical and Surgical Products segment.

On April 3, 2003, the Company sold MDE to Invivo Corporation for $9,257,000. The Company
recorded in 2003 and 2002 respectively, an after-tax charge of $958,000 ($1,511,000 pre-tax) and
$14,285,000 ($22,513,000 pre-tax), to write-down the assets of MDE to their estimated net realizable
value less the costs to sell. The total goodwill included in determining the loss was $27,000,000.

On October 3, 2003, the Company sold Thermedics to Noveon, Inc. for $14,632,000 in cash. In
connection with the sale, the Company provided for an after-tax loss on disposal, including expenses,
totaling $2,600,000. Included in this loss was $2,459,000 of goodwill.
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14. Discontinued Operations (Continued)
The operating results of the MDE and Thermedics discontinued operations are as follows:

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)
REVEMUES . .\ vttt it e e e e e $ — $12,513 § 27,860
Loss before income taxes. . .. .......c.cvuvnen.. $(333) $(4,917) $(21,345)
NELIOSS « + v v e eveee e e e $(205) $(4.252) $(13,524)

15. Commitments and Contingencies
Commitments

The Company leases certain office, warehouse and manufacturing space under various operating
lease arrangements. Future annual minimum rent payments under operating leases having initial or
remaining noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year at January 1, 2005 are as follows (in
thousands):

Fiscal Year

2005 L e e e e e e e $ 7,597
2006 . .. e e e e 7,462
2007 . e e e e e 7,006
2008 . e e e e 5,800
2000 L. e e e e e 5,057
Thereafter . . . ... ... i e e 31,521

Total rent expense under operating leases was $7,104,000, $5,372,000 and $4,623,000 in 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively.

Contingencies

On May 13, 2004, the Company settled litigation with INO Therapeutics, LLC (“INO
Therapeutics”), AGA AB and The General Hospital Corporation regarding the use and sale of nitric
oxide gas and devices. Following the dismissal of the litigation, the Company received $7,500,000 in the
second quarter of 2004. This included $6,000,000 in connection with the dismissal of the litigation,
which is included in legal settlement in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Income. The
other $1,500,000 received resulted from the Company’s submission to INO Therapeutics of a research
and development plan in connection with a co-development agreement in the pulmonary infection/
inflammation field, which is included in service revenue in the accompanying Consolidated Statements
of Income.

In July 1999, the Company commenced a lawsuit against a former employee and a related
corporation for patent infringement and other actions. The defendants in this case counter-sued,
claiming, among other things, trade libel, abuse of process, unfair competition, false advertising, breach
of contract and violations of antitrust laws. In March 2002, the parties entered into an agreement,
which settled all outstanding lawsuits between the companies and related parties. Under the agreement
both companies have access to certain technologies and rights used in the companies’ ventilators and
the Company will be paid $4,000,000 in licensing fees over the three years ending March 2005. The
licensing fees are being recognized ratably over a four-year period. As of January 1, 2005, all amounts
due under this agreement have been paid to the Company, $1,000,000 of which is included in deferred
revenue in the accompany Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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15. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

The Company is also involved in various other legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of
business. While there can be no assurances as to the ultimate outcome of any litigation involving the
Company, management does not believe any pending legal proceeding will result in a judgment or
settlement that will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

16. Related-party Transactions
Operating Lease

The Company leased office space from a former affiliate, which is controlled by Thermo Electron,
under an operating lease arrangement that expired in 2004. Rent expense under this lease was
$743,000, $735,000 and $686,000 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Transition Services Agreement

In connection with the spin-off, the Company and Thermo Electron entered into a transition
services agreement. The agreement provides that Thermo Electron would provide the Company with
certain administrative services through June 29, 2002. The Company paid a fee under this agreement
equal to 0.4% and 0.1% of the Company’s consolidated revenues for quarters ending March 30, 2002
and June 29, 2002, respectively, plus out-of-pocket and third-party expenses. The Company was charged
$457,000 in 2002 for the services provided under this agreement.

Advance to Chief Executive Officer

In 2001, the Company advanced its chief executive officer $500,000, which is being forgiven ratably
over the four years following execution of his employment agreement, assuming continued employment
or in certain other circumstances. The balance of the advance was $47,000 at January 1, 2005.

17. Segment and Geographic Information
Segment Information

The Company has aggregated its business units into four reportable segments: Respiratory
Technologies, Critical Care, NeuroCare and Medical and Surgical Products. The Respiratory
Technologies segment develops, manufactures, markets and services products for the diagnosis and
treatment of respiratory, pulmonary and sleep-related disorders. The Critical Care segment develops,
manufactures, markets and services products to treat respiratory insufficiency caused by illness, injury
or premature birth. The NeuroCare segment principally develops, manufactures, markets and services a
comprehensive line of neurodiagnostic, vascular and audiology systems. The Medical and Surgical
Products segment develops, manufactures and markets disposable medical products and specialty metal
components for orthopedics, medical imaging equipment and cardio-vascular implants. In classifying
operations into a particular segment, the Company aggregates businesses with similar economic
characteristics, products and services, production processes, customers and methods of distribution.
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17. Segment and Geographic Information (Continued)

Summarized financial information concerning the Company’s reportable segments is shown in the
following table.

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)
Revenues:
Respiratory Technologies . ........ ... ..o, $115,944 $114,128 §$ 97,225
Critical Care .. ...t e i e 132,285 132,897 97,296
NeuroCare . ..... .ottt ittt it 85,056 91,964 93,880
Medical and Surgical Products . .................... ... ... 59,917 55,958 54,051

$393,202 $394,947 $342,452

Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes:
Operating Income (Loss):

Respiratory Technologies. . . ............ .. ... .. ... ... $ 7,301 $ 14373 §$ 12,435
Critical Care . ........ ittt e, 16,754 24,836 12,346
NeuroCare . . .. .o e e e e (229) 5,298 3,967
Medical and Surgical Products. . ............ ... ... ... 10,040 9,316 10,707
Corporate (2) . . . ...t e e (11,263)  (12,771) (7,102)
Operating Income . . ........ .. . i 22,603 41,052 32,353
Other Income (Expense), net . . ...t .. 908 (1,908)  (2,020)
Income from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes . ... ... $ 23,511 §$ 39,144 $ 30,333
Total Assets:
Respiratory Technologies .. ..., $128,593 $125,168 $105,820
Critical Care .. ... .. i e e e e 151,321 158,049 148,284
NeuroCare ... .ottt e e e e e 119,608 103,550 108,933
Medical and Surgical Products ............. ... ... ... ... 43,310 33,626 29,340
Corporate (b) .......... o 105,004 83,932 13,562
Assets of Discontinued Operations .. ...................... — — 35,561

$547,836 $504,325 $441,500

Depreciation and Amortization:

Respiratory Technologies . ... .......cvureninennnennnn... $ 6274 $§ 3925 § 4,434
Critical Care . ... .. ittt e e 2,640 3,095 1,732
NeuroCare . ... v ittt e e e e e e 3,825 3,041 1,604
Medical and Surgical Products .. ............... ... ... .... 2,329 2,201 1,899
COTPOTate . . .ttt e e 507 512 201

$ 15575 $ 12,774 $ 9,870

Capital Expenditures:

Respiratory Technologies . ............. ... ..., $ 3884 § 885 § 5785
Critical Care . ... ...t et e e 1,256 1,530 470
NeuroCare .. ... ...ttt 1,229 536 1,259
Medical and Surgical Products . ............... ... ... . .. 3,320 2,496 3,054
Corporate . . ... .ottt e e 912 518 828

$ 10,601 $ 5965 § 11,396

(a) Primarily general and administrative expenses.
(b) Primarily cash and cash equivalents and deferred tax assets.
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Geographic Information
The following table summarizes revenues and long-lived assets by geographic area. Revenues are

based on the location in which the sale is settled. Long-lived asset data (which consists of property,
plant and equipment, goodwill, intangible assets and other assets) is based on physical location.

2004 2003 2002
(In thousands)

Revenues:
United States .. .. i ittt e e e $220,238 $221,265 $201,369
International . ... ... i e 172,964 173,682 141,083
Total Revenues. . ... ... it i e s e $393,202 $394,947 $342,452
Long-Lived Assets:
United States ... .o v vt ittt et e e $163,443 $149,913 $172,076
International:
GeIMANY . . .ttt et e e e e 51,214 47,887 32,434
United Kingdom. . .. ....... ... i, 29,176 28,238 22,369
Other .. e e e — 83 181
Total Long-Lived Assets . ............c.uiiiieennnn.. $243,833  $226,121 $227,060

There was no country outside of the U.S. in which revenues exceeded 10% of the Company’s total
revenues in 2004, 2003 or 2002.

18. Summarized Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
Summarized quarterly financial results for the year ended January 1, 2005 are as follows:

For the Quarter Ended
April 3, July 3, October 2, January 1,

2004 2004(1) 2004 2005
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Revenues. . . ..ot e e $95,589 395,354 $91,578 $110,681
Gross Margin. . ... vvii i $41,857 $43,329 $40,727 § 48,419
Income (Loss) from Continuing Operations . ... ......... $ 2,678 $ 7,545 $(2,164) § 6,977
Discontinued Operations . ........... ... ..., — — — (205)
Net Income (LosS) . ... vvv e i $ 2678 $ 7545 $(2,164) § 6,772
Earnings (Loss) per Share (2):
Basic:
Continuing Operations. . . ... ........c..vuvne.... $ 09 $§ 25 §$ (07) § 23
Discontinued Operations . ...................... — — — (.01)
$ 09 $§ 25 § (07) § 22
Diluted:
Continuing Operations. . . ...........cououevue... $ 09 $§ 24 § (07) $ .23
Discontinued Operations . ...................... — — — (.01

$ 09 $ 24 $ (07) $ 22
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18. Summarized Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited) (Continued)
Summarized quarterly financial results for the year ended January 3, 2004 are as follows:

For the Quarter Ended
March 29, June 28, September 27, January 3,

2003 2003 2003 2004
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Revenues . ..o iv i e $93,683  $99,825 $87,131 $114,308
Gross Margin . ... ..o vt i e e $43,440 $47,125 $38,631 $ 52,964
Income from Continuing Operations . .............. $ 6,144 $ 6,637 $ 4,538 $ 8519
Discontinued Operations . . . .......cvviiuev s (1,199) (71) (2,226) (756)
NetIncome . ... ittt $ 4945 $ 6,566 $ 2,312 $ 7,763
Earnings (Loss) per Share (2):
Basic:
Continuing Operations . .. ................... $ 23 $ 25 § 15 $ 28
Discontinued Operations .. .................. (.04) — (.07) (.02)
, $ 19 § .25 $ .08 $ 26
Diluted:
Continuing Operations ... ................... $ 23 ¢ 25 § 15 § 27
Discontinued Operations . ................... (.04) (.01 (.07) (.02)

$ 19 § 24 $ .08 $ 25

(1) In the second quarter of fiscal 2004, the Company recognized one-time legal settlement gains of
$3,870, on an after-tax basis, in connection with its settlement with INO Therapeutics (See
Note 15).

(2) Earnings (loss) per share are computed independently for each of the quarters presented.
Therefore, the sum of the quarterly earnings (loss) per share will not necessarily equal the total for
the year.

19. Subsequent Events

On January 24, 2005, the Company acquired substantially all of the assets of Navion Biomedical
Corporation, a company that developed, manufactured and marketed a device used to facilitate the
placement of peripherally inserted central catheters and central venous catheters, for a cash purchase
price of $3,500,000, of which $175,000 will be paid in the first quarter of 2006.

On March 1, 2005, the Company acquired the medical division of Oxford Instruments plc (“Oxford
Medical”) for a cash purchase price of approximately $46,000,000, subject to certain working capital
adjustments. Oxford Medical is based in the United Kingdom and manufactures, develops, designs and
markets medical diagnostic and monitoring products as well as related disposables and accessories.
Neurophysiology comprises the largest of Oxford Medical’s several business components.
Neurophysiology’s principal product lines include electromyography (“EMG”) equipment and EMG
needles and neurological disposables. The business also contains an obstetrics range of antenatal and
fetal monitors and an ambulatory cardiology range of products.

On March 15, 2005, the Company acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of Micro Medical
Limited, a company based in the United Kingdom that develops, manufactures and markets a range of
respiratory diagnostic products, for an aggregate purchase price of approximately $40,400,000, subject
to certain working capital adjustments. The purchase price consisted of approximately $36,600,000 in
cash (net of cash acquired) and approximately $3,800,000 in assumed debt. In addition, the Company
may also be required to pay additional consideration upon the achievement of certain criteria.
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VIASYS HEAITHCARE INC.
SCHEDULE II — VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Additions
Balance at  Charged to
Beginning  Costs and Accounts Balance at
Description of Year Expenses Written Off Other(a) End of Year

(in thousands)
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Year Ended January 1,2005.............. $5,955 $ 528 $(1,491) %121 $5,113
Year Ended January 3,2004 .. ............ $6,113 § 464 $(1,272)  $650 $5,955
Year Ended December 28,2002 ........... $7,050 $2,066 $(3,379)  $376 $6,113

(a) Reflects primarily the effects of foreign currency translation.
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Exhibit No.

VIASYS HEALTHCARE INC.
EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

31

3.2

33

110.1

110.2

110.3

110.4

110.5

*$10.6
10.7

10.8

10.9

110.10

+10.11

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, is incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10/A, filed with
the Commission on September 20, 2001.

Certificate of Amendment of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the
Company, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form 10/A, filed with the Commission on October 24, 2001,

Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit
3.5 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10/A, filed with the Commission on
July 18, 2001.

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of November 29, 2004, by and
between the Company and Randy H. Thurman, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.1
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A, filed with the Commission on March 3,
2005.

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of November 29, 2004, by and
between the Company and Martin P. Galvan, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A, filed with the Commission on March 3,
2005.

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of November 29, 2004, by and
between the Company and Edward Pulwer, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to
the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A, filed with the Commission on March 3,
2005.

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of November 29, 2004, by and
between the Company and Lori J. Cross, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.4 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A, filed with the Commission on March 3, 2005.
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of November 29, 2004, by and
between the Company and Mahboob H. Raja, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.5
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A, filed with the Commission on March 3,
2005.

Summary of the Company’s management incentive program.

Plan and Agreement of Distribution between the Company and Thermo Electron
Corporation, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form 10/A, filed with the Commission on October 24, 2001.

Tax Matters Agreement between the Company and Thermo Electron Corporation, is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form 10/A, filed with the Commission on July 18, 2001.

Rights Agreement between the Company and the Rights Agent, is incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10/A, filed with
the Commission on July 18, 2001.

VIASYS Healthcare Inc. Indemnification Agreement between the Company and its
directors and officers, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form 10/A, filed with the Commission on July 18, 2001.
VIASYS Healthcare Inc. Equity Incentive Plan (as amended on May 5, 2004), is
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form
16-Q, filed with the Commission on August 11, 2004.
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Exhibit No.

Description

+10.12

+10.13

+10.14

*10.15

10.16

*21.1
*23.1
*31.1
*31.2
*32.1

VIASYS Healthcare Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors, is incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10/A, filed with
the Commission on October 24, 2001.

Letter Agreement, dated as of September 24, 2001, by and between the Company, Randy
H. Thurman and Thermo Electron Corporation, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.9 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10/A, filed with the Commission on
October 24, 2001.

Term Note, dated as of April 19, 2001, by and between the Company and Randy H.
Thurman, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form 10/A, filed with the Commission on July 18, 2001.

Share Sale Agreement, dated as of March 15, 2005, by and between VIASYS Holdings Inc.
and the former stockholders of Micro Medical Limited.

Credit Agreement, dated as of May 31, 2002, by and between the Company, the Banks
Party thereto and certain other parties, is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed with the Commission on March 25, 2003.
List of Subsidiaries of the Company.

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Chief Executive Officer’s Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification.

Chief Financial Officer’s Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification.

1350 Certifications

*  Filed herewith.

¥  Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement required to be filed as an
exhibit to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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VIASYS HEALTHCARE INC.
227 Washington Street, Suite 200
Conshohocken, PA 19428

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
TO BE HELD MAY 10, 2005

To our stockholders:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the “Annual Meeting”)
of VIASYS Healthcare Inc. (the “Company”) will be held at The Philadelphia Marriott West,
111 Crawford Avenue, West Conshohocken, Pennsylvania, on Wednesday, May 10, 2005, at 8:30 a.m.
local time, for the following purposes:

1. To elect three members to the Board of Directors.

2. To transact such other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting or any
adjournments thereof.

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on March 22, 2005, the record date, are
entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the Annual Meeting or any adjournments thereof.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Matthur Y. Bonritt

Matthew M. Bennett
Secretary

April 8, 2005

YOU ARE CORDIALLY INVITED TO ATTEND THE ANNUAL MEETING. WHETHER OR NOT
YOU PLAN TO ATTEND THE ANNUAL MEETING, YOU ARE URGED TO COMPLETE, DATE
AND SIGN THE ENCLOSED PROXY CARD AND RETURN IT PROMPTLY IN THE ENCLOSED,
SELF-ADDRESSED ENVELOPE.




VIASYS HEALTHCARE INC.

227 Washington Street, Suite 200
Conshohocken, PA 19428

PROXY STATEMENT

This Proxy Statement is being furnished to the stockholders of VIASYS Heaithcare Inc., a
Delaware corporation (the “Company”), in connection with the 2005 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
of the Company, to be held on May 10, 2005, and any adjournments thereof (the “Annual Meeting”).
The Annual Meeting will be held at The Philadelphia Marriott West, 111 Crawford Avenue, West
Conshohocken, Pennsylvania at 8:30 a.m. local time. This Proxy Statement and the enclosed proxy card
are being mailed to stockholders on or about April 8, 2005.

Execution and return of the enclosed proxy card is being solicited by and on behalf of the Board
of Directors of the Company (the “Board”). The costs incidental to the solicitation and obtaining of
proxies, including the cost of reimbursing banks and brokers for forwarding proxy materials to their
principals, will be paid by the Company. Proxies may be solicited, without extra compensation, by
officers and employees of the Company, both in person and by mail, telephone, telefax and other
methods of communication. The Company may employ an outside firm to assist in the solicitation of
proxies, and the cost, if any, for such services will be paid by the Company.

VOTING AT THE ANNUAL MEETING
Record Date; Proxies; Vote Required

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on March 22, 2005 (the “Record Date”) are
entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting or any adjournments thereof. As of March 22, 2005, the
Company had outstanding 31,149,093 shares of common stock, $.01 par value (the “Common Stock”).
The presence, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority of the votes entitled to be cast at the
Annual Meeting will constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Each stockholder is entitled
to one vote for each share of Common Stock owned of record by such stockholder on the Record Date
with respect to each matter to be voted on at the Annual Meeting.

All shares entitled to vote and represented by properly executed proxies received prior to the
Annual Meeting and not revoked will be voted as instructed on those proxies. If no instructions are
indicated, the shares will be voted by the proxy agents as recommended by the Board. A stockholder
may revoke his or her proxy at any time before it is exercised by written notice to the Secretary of the
Company, by delivery of a later-dated signed proxy or by voting in person at the Annual Meeting.

Election as a director requires a plurality of the votes present in person or represented by proxy
and entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. With respect to any other matter that may properly be
brought before the Annual Meeting, the affirmative vote of a majority of votes cast by the stockholders
entitled to vote thereon is required to take action unless a greater percentage is required by the
Company’s Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation as amended (the “Charter”) or
Amended and Restated By-laws (the “By-laws”).

With regard to the election of directors, votes may be cast in favor of all nominees, authority may
be withheld for all nominees or votes may be cast for all nominees except as specified. Votes that are
withheld will be excluded entirely from the vote and will have no effect. For the purpose of
determining the number of votes cast for approval of other matters to be voted on at the Annual
Meeting, only those cast in favor of or against are included. Abstentions may be specified on any
proposals other than the election of directors and will be counted as shares that are present for
purposes of determining a quorum, but will have the effect of a negative vote. With regard to proposals
other than the election of directors, broker non-votes will not be counted as shares that are present for
purposes of determining a quorum and will have no effect on the outcome of such proposals, if any.
“Broker non-votes” occur when a nominee holding shares for a beneficial owner does not vote on a
particular proposal because the nominee does not have discretionary voting power on that item and has
not received instructions from the beneficial owner.




SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth as of March 22, 2005 certain information with respect to the
beneficial ownership of Common Stock (the only voting class outstanding) (i) by each of the Named
Executive Officers, (ii) by each director, (iii) by each person known to the Company to own beneficially
five percent or more of its outstanding Common Stock and (iv) by all executive officers and directors
as a group.

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner(1) Beﬁ:tli%‘il;:yof)?vziﬁiifa) Bzxi:fii?;l?yf (C)lv?;slid
Randy H. Thurman ............. ... ... . e, 1,219,650(3) 3.8
LoriJ.Cross .. ..ovv i e 39,996(4) *
Martin P Galvan . .......... ... . ... . i 202,220(5) *
MahboobH. Raja ............ ... ... ... . ..., 56,874(6) *
Edward Pulwer ......... ... ... . .. ... oL 131,116(7) *
Ronald A. Ahrens ........... . ity 42,249(8) *
Sander A. Flaum . . ....... ... ..t 1,765(9) *
Kitk E. GOrman. . ... .o i ittt it et it it et e e 7,738 *
Robert W. O'Leary. . . ... oot ittt iieiiee s 43,413(10) *
Fred B.Parks, Ph.D....... ... ..o, 1,265(11) *
Royce & Associates, LLC . ... ... ..ttt 4,042,600(12) 13.0
Shapiro Capital Management Company, Inc. ............. 3,370,770(13) 10.8
Iridian Asset Management LLC . ..................... 2,933,922(14) 9.4
Wellington Management Company, LLP ................ 2,548,394(15) 8.2
Barclays Global Investors, NA . ... ................... 1,753,835(16) 5.6
Artisan Partners Limited Partnership. ... ............... 1,731,400(17) 5.6
All Directors and Officers as a Group (18 persons) ........ 2,119,287(18) 6.4

*  Less than one percent (1%)

(1) Except as otherwise indicated, the address of each person named in the table is: ¢/o VIASYS
Healthcare Inc., 227 Washington Street, Suite 200, Conshohocken, Pennsylvania 19428.

(2) Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules of the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) and generally includes voting or investment power with respect to
securities. Shares of Common Stock subject to options, warrants and convertible notes currently
exercisable or convertible, or exercisable or convertible within 60 days of March 22, 2005 are
deemed outstanding for computing the percentage of the person holding such securities but are
not deemed outstanding for computing the percentage of any other person. Except as indicated by
footnote, and subject to community property laws where applicable, the person named in the table
has sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of Common Stock shown as
beneficially owned by them.

(3) Includes options to purchase 1,206,650 shares of Common Stock.
(4) Represents options to purchase 39,996 shares of Common Stock.

(5) Includes options to purchase 196,660 shares of Common Stock.




(6)
(7
(8)
(€)
(10)

(11)
(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

Includes options to purchase 54,380 shares of Common Stock.
Includes options to purchase 128,830 shares of Common Stock.
Includes options to purchase 35,249 shares of Common Stock.
Includes options to purchase 3,765 shares of Common Stock.

Includes options to purchase 36,514 shares of common Stock. All of the shares are owned by the
O’Leary Family Trust, of which Mr. O’Leary is a beneficial owner.

Represents options to purchase 1,265 shares of common stock.

Based on a Schedule 13G/A, filed on February 3, 2005 with the SEC by Royce & Associates, LLC,
a registered investment advisor (“Royce”), with respect to beneficial ownership of
4,042,600 shares. Royce has sole voting and sole dispositive power over these shares. The principal
business address of Royce is 1414 Avenue of the Americas, New York, NY 10019.

Based on a Schedule 13G, filed on February 15, 2005 with the SEC by Shapiro Capital
Management Company, Inc., a registered investment advisor (“Shapiro Capital Management”) and
Samuel R. Shapiro with respect to beneficial ownership of 3,370,770 shares. Shapiro Capital
Management has sole voting power over 2,935,220 of these shares, shared voting power over
435,550 of these shares and has sole dispositive power over all of these shares. Mr. Shapiro is the
President, a Director and majority shareholder of Shapiro Capital Management, in which capacity
he exercises dispositive power over these shares. Although Mr. Shapiro owns no shares for his
individual account, he is deemed to have beneficial ownership of the shares by virtue of his
affiliation with Shapiro Capital Management. The principal business address of Samuel R. Shapiro
and Shapiro Capital Management is 3060 Peachtree Road, Suite 1555 N.W.,, Atlanta,

Georgia 30305.

Based on a Schedule 13G/A, filed on February 8, 2005 with the SEC by Iridian Asset
Management LLC (“Iridian”), The Governor and Company of the Bank of Ireland (the “Bank of
Ireland”), IBI Interfunding (“IBI”), Banclreland/First Financial, Inc. (“Banclreland”) and BIAM
(US) Inc. (“BIAM”) (collectively, the “Bank of Ireland Reporting Persons™) with respect to
beneficial ownership of 2,933,922 shares. Each of the Bank of Ireland Reporting Persons share
voting and dispositive power over all of these shares. Iridian is an investment advisor and has
direct beneficial ownership of the shares of Common Stock in the accounts which it manages.
BIAM, as the controlling member of Iridian, may be deemed to possess beneficial ownership of
the shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by Iridian. Banclreland, as the sole shareholder
of BIAM, may be deemed to possess beneficial ownership of the shares of Common Stock
beneficially owned by BIAM. IBI, as the sole shareholder of Banclreland, may be deemed to
possess beneficial ownership of the shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by Banclreland.
Bank of Ireland, as the sole shareholder of IBI, may be deemed to possess beneficial ownership of
the shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by IBI. The principal business address of Bank of
Ireland and IBI is Head Office, Lower Baggot Street, Dublin 2, Ireland. The principal business
address of BanclIreland and BIAM is Liberty Park #15, 282 Route 101, Amherst,

New Hampshire 03110. The principal business address of Iridian is 276 Post Road West, Westport,
Connecticut 06880.

Based on a Schedule 13G/A, filed on February 14, 2005 with the SEC by Wellington Management
Company, LLP, a registered investment advisor (“Wellington”), with respect to beneficial
ownership of 2,548,394 shares. Wellington has shared voting power over 1,979,494 of these shares
and shared dispositive power over all of the shares. The principal business address of Wellington
is 75 State Street, Boston, Massachusetts 02109.



(16) Based on a Schedule 13G filed on February 14, 2005 with the SEC by Barclays Global Investors,
NA (“Barclays”), Barclays Global Fund Advisors (‘“Barclays Global”), Barclay Global
Investors, Ltd., Barclays Global Investors Japan Trust and Banking Company Limited, Barclays
Life Assurance Company Limited, Barclays Bank plc, Barclays Capital Securities Limited, Barclays
Capital Inc., Barclays Private Bank & Trust (Isle of Man) Limited, Barclays Private Bank and
Trust (Jersey) Limited, Barclays Bank Trust Company Limited, Barclays Bank (Suisse) SA,
Barclays Private Bank Limited, Bronco (Barclays Cayman) Limited, Palomino Limited and HYMF
Limited {collectively, the “Barclay Reporting Persons”), with respect to beneficial ownership of
1,753,835 shares. Barclays has sole voting power over 782,264 of these shares and sole dispositive
power over 935,303 of these shares. Barclays Global has sole voting power over 815,345 of these
shares and sole dispositive power over 818,532 of these shares. The principal business addresses of
the Barclay Reporting Persons are as follows: Barclays Global Investors, NA and Barclays Global
Fund Advisors: 45 Fremont Street, San Francisco, California 94105; Barclay Global Investors, 1.td.,
1 Royal Mint Court, London EC3N 4HH England; Barclays Global Investors Japan Trust and
Banking Company Limited, Ebisu Prime Square Tower 8th Floor, 1-1-39 Hiroo Shibuya-ku, Tokyo
150-0012 Japan; Barclays Life Assurance Company Limited, Unicorn House Sth Floor, 252
Romford Road, Forest Gate, London 37 9JB England; Barclays Bank plc and Barclays Bank Trust
Company Limited: 54 Lombard Street, London EC3P 3AH England; Barclays Capital Securities
Limited, 5 The Borth Colonnade, Canary Wharf, London E14 4BB England; Barclays Capital Inc.,
200 Park Ave., New York, New York 10166; Barclays Private Bank & Trust (Isle of Man) Limited,
4th Floor, Queen Victoria House, Isle of Man, IM99 IDF England; Barclays Private Bank and
Trust (Jersey) Limited, 39/41 Broad Street, St. Helier, Jersey, Channel Island JE4 8PU; Barclays
Bank (Suisse) SA, 10 rue d’Italie, CH-1204 Geneva, Switzerland; Barclays Private Bank Limited,
59/60 Grosvenor Street, London WIX 9DA England; Bronco (Barclays Cayman) Limited,
Palomino Limited and HYMF: Limited Walker House Mary Street, PO. Box 908 GT, George
Town, Grand Cayman (Cayman Islands).

(17) Based on a Schedule 13G filed on January 26, 2005 with the SEC by Artisan Partners Limited
Partnership (“Artisan”), Artisan Investment Corporation (‘Artisan Corporation”), Andrew A.
Ziegler and Carlene Murphy Ziegler (collectively, the “Artisan Reporting Persons’), with respect
to beneficial ownership of 1,731,400 shares. Each of the Artisan Reporting Persons shares voting
and dispositive power over all of these shares. Artisan is a registered investment advisor. Artisan
Corporation is the general partner of Artisan and Mr. and Ms. Ziegler are the principal
stockholders of Artisan Corporation. The principal business address of the Artisan Reporting
Persons is 875 East Wisconsin Avenue, Suite 800, Milwaukee, Wisconsin 53202,

(18) Includes options to purchase 2,053,662 shares of Common Stock.




PROPOSAL No. 1 — ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Company’s Charter provides that the Board shall consist of not less than three directors, with
the exact number to be determined in the manner prescribed in the By-laws of the Company. The
Board is classified into three classes with staggered terms, Class I, Class II and Class III. No one class
is to have more than one director more than any other class. If a fraction is contained in the quotient
arrived at by dividing the authorized number of directors by three then, if such fraction is one-third,
the extra director shall be a member of Class I, and if such fraction is two-thirds, one of the extra
directors shall be a member of Class I and one of the extra directors shall be a member of Class II,
unless otherwise provided by resolution of the Board.

The Company recently discovered that it had labeled its director classes incorrectly in its prior
proxy statements. Specifically, the Company’s Class I directors should have been its Class II directors,
its Class II directors should have been its Class III directors and its Class III directors should have
been its Class I directors. Each member of each Class was correctly referenced and the information set
forth below correctly labels each of the Company’s Classes and states its membership.

As of February 16, 2005, the Board consisted of seven directors, Randy H. Thurman, Chairman,
Ronald A. Ahrens, Sander A. Flaum, Kirk E. Gorman, Thomas W. Hofmann, Robert W. O’Leary and
Fred B. Parks, Ph.D. The directorships expiring this year are the Class II directorships, presently filled
by Messrs. Flaum, Hofmann and Gorman. Based upon the recommendation of the Nominating and
Governance Commiittee, the Board has nominated Messrs. Flaum, Hofmann and Gorman for election
as directors at the Annual Meeting to serve until the 2008 annual meeting of stockholders, until such
director’s successor has been elected and qualified or until their earlier resignation, death or removal.
Each nominee is currently a director of the Company.

Each nominee has expressed his willingness to serve as a director if elected, and the Company
knows of no reason why any nominee would be unable to serve. The persons named as proxy agents in
the enclosed proxy card intend (unless instructed otherwise by a stockholder) to vote for the election of
Messrs. Flaum, Hofmann and Gorman. If a nominee is unable to serve as a director, the proxy agents
intend to vote for any alternative nominee designated by the Board. Alternatively, the Board may
decide to reduce the number of directors.

The Board of Directors unanimously recommends a vote FOR each nominee.

Set forth below is certain information with respect to each individual currently serving as a director
of the Company, including each nominee.




Class II—Directors with Terms Continuing Through the 2008 Annual Meeting
Sander A. Flaum Age: 67

Mr. Flaum has served as a director of the Company since November 2003. Mr. Flaum is currently
Managing Partner of Flaum Partners, Inc., a consultancy focused on transformational thinking for the
Pharmaceutical and Biotech Industries. Mr. Flaum retired as Chairman of Euro RSCG Life in
December 2003; prior to that he was Chairman and CEO of Robert A. Becker Euro RSCG. Mr. Flaum
also serves as Adjunct Professor of Management at Fordham University Graduate School of Business
and acts as Chairman of the Fordham Leadership Forum, which he founded in 1999. Mr. Flaum also
served 18 years with Lederle Laboratories (“Lederle”) (now Wyeth). During his tenure with Lederle,
Mr. Flaum served in several capacities, including Marketing Director, Ethical and Biologic Products.
Mr. Flaum directed 58 product launches during his distinguished career. Mr. Flaum is also a director of
Fisher College of Business at The Ohio State University, Fordham University Graduate School of
Business, and the Monterey Institute of International Studies.

Kirk E. Gorman Age: 54

Mr. Gorman has served as a director of the Company since February 2005 and previously from
November 2001 to December 2003. Since October 1, 2003, Mr. Gorman has served as Senior Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of Jefferson Health System, the largest hospital system in
metropolitan Philadelphia. From 1992 to 2003, Mr. Gorman served as Senior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer of Universal Health Services, Inc. Mr. Gorman is also a director of IASIS Healthcare
Corporation.

Thomas W. Hofmann Age: 53

- Mr. Hofmann has served as a director of the Company since April 2004. Since December 2001,
Mr. Hofmann has served as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Sunoco, Inc., and
held the title of Vice President and Chief Financial Officer from July 1998 to December 2001.

Mr. Hofmann is also a director of Sunoco Logistics Partners L.P.

Class [—Nominees for Terms Continuing Through the 2007 Annual Meeting

Robert W. O’Leary Age: 61

Mr. O’Leary has served as a director of the Company since June 2001. Since June 2002,
Mr. O’Leary has served as Chairman of the Board of Valeant Pharmaceuticals International, and held
the title of Chief Executive Officer from June 2002 to January 2005. Since March 2001, Mr. O’Leary
has also been the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of The Sagamore Group, a firm specializing in
spin-offs and corporate reorganizations. From July 2000 to October 2000, Mr. O’Leary was President
and Chief Executive Officer of PacifiCare Health Systems, Inc., a managed health services company.
From 1995 to July 2000, Mr. O’Leary was the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Premier, Inc., a
strategic alliance of not-for-profit health care and hospital systems. From 1990 to 1995, Mr. O’Leary
was the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of American Medical International, Inc., a world-wide
hospital management company. Mr. O’Leary is also a director of Smiths Group PLC and Thermo
Electron Corporation.




Randy H. Thurman Age: 55

Mr. Thurman has served as Chief Executive Officer since April 2001 and became Chairman of the
Board upon our spin-off in November 2001. Since July 2004, Mr. Thurman has also served as
President. From 1996 to April 2001, Mr. Thurman served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
Strategic Reserves LLC, a privately held company providing funding and strategic direction to
healthcare technology companies. From 1993 to 1996, Mr. Thurman was Chairman and CEO of
Corning Life Sciences, Inc., which was a global leader in clinical laboratory testing, pharmaceutical
research and esoteric reference testing. Concurrent with the aforementioned positions, Mr. Thurman
served as Chairman of the Board of Enzon Pharmaceuticals, Inc. from 1994 to 2001. From 1984 to
1993, Mr. Thurman held various positions at Rhone-Poulenc Rorer Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a global
pharmaceutical company, ultimately as its President. Mr. Thurman also serves as Lead Director of
Valeant Pharmaceuticals International and as a director of Closure Medical Corporation.

Class IlI—Directors with Terms Continuing Through the 2006 Annual Meeting

Ronald A. Ahrens Age: 65

Mr. Ahrens has served as a director of the Company since November 2001 and was named Lead
Director in May 2004. Mr, Ahrens, a retired senior executive, has served as an advisor to Merck &
Company, Inc., a pharmaceutical company, since 1995. From 1991 to 1995, Mr. Ahrens served as the
President of Merck Consumer Healthcare Group Worldwide. Mr. Ahrens retired as Chairman of the
Board of Directors of Closure Medical Corporation in June 2004. Mr. Ahrens is also a director of
TEMPTIME Corporation, a medical technology company.

Fred B. Parks, Ph.D. Age: 57

Dr. Parks has served as a director of the Company since April 2004. Since May 2003, Dr. Parks
has served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Urologix, Inc. From 1999 to 2003, Dr. Parks
was employed by Philips Medical Systems-Cleveland (formerly Marconi Medical). From 1998 to 1999,
Dr. Parks served as President, COO and Board member for St. Jude Medical, Inc., a medical device
company focusing on implantable cardiovascular products. From 1976 to 1997, Dr. Parks was employed
by EG&G, Inc. (now PerkinElmer, Inc.), where he served as President, COO and board member.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MATTERS

The Board of Directors held eight meetings during the Company’s last fiscal year ended January 1,
2005. The Board of Directors currently has a Compensation Committee, an Audit Committee and a
Nominating and Governance Committee. During the last fiscal year, no current director attended fewer
than 75% of the total number of meetings of the Board and the committees of which he was a
member.

The Company operates within a comprehensive plan of corporate governance for the purpose of
defining independence, assigning responsibilities, setting high standards of professional and personal
conduct and assuring compliance with such responsibilities and standards. The Company regularly
monitors developments in the area of corporate governance.

Director Independence

The standards relied upon by the Board of Directors in affirmatively determining whether a
director is “independent,” in compliance with the rules of the New York Stock Exchange (the
“NYSE”), are comprised, in part, of those objective standards set forth in the NYSE rules.

The Board of Directors, in applying the above-referenced standards, has affirmatively determined
that the Company’s current “independent” directors are: Ronald A. Ahrens, Sander A. Flaum, Kirk E.
Gorman, Thomas W. Hofmann, and Fred B. Parks, Ph.D.




Compensation of Directors

In 2003, the Company retained an outside firm to advise the Compensation Committee and the
full Board with respect to ensuring that the Company’s director compensation remained competitive. In
September 2003, after review and approval by the Compensation Committee, the Board approved the
proposed changes which were presented by this firm. The director compensation proposals that were
approved by the Board and became effective in the fourth quarter of 2003, and remained in effect for
2004, include the following:

* An annual retainer of $25,000 in cash (payable quarterly) or, if a director elects in lieu of
the cash retainer payment, options to purchase $75,000 of the Company’s common stock,
calculated based on the market price of the Company’s common stock on the date the
options are granted (the “Market Price”). The exercise price for the options is based on the
Market Price. The options vest in three annual installments, commencing on the first
anniversary of the date of grant;

* Annual retainer of $5,000 in cash for each Committee chair (payable quarterly) or, if a
director elects in lieu of the cash retainer payment, options to purchase $15,000 of the
Company’s common stock, calculated based on the Market Price. The exercise price for the
options is based on the Market Price. The options vest in three annual installments,
commencing on the first anniversary of the date of grant;

* Discontinuation of Board and Committee meeting fees;
* Annual equity grant to each director of 3,000 stock units; and
* Initial equity grant to each new director of 7,500 stock units.

In 2004, Messrs. Flaum, O’Leary and Parks elected to receive their annual retainers for service as
a director in stock options.

Audit Committee

The members of the Audit Committee are Thomas W. Hofmann, who serves as Chairman,
Sander A. Flaum and Kirk E. Gorman. The Board of Directors has determined that all of the members
of the Audit Committee meet the independence and financial literacy requirements of the NYSE listing
standards and applicable SEC rules. The Board has determined that Messrs. Hofmann and Gorman
possess accounting or related financial management expertise, within the meaning of the listing
standards of the NYSE, and are audit committee financial experts within the meaning of the applicable
SEC rules. The Audit Committee held fourteen meetings during the Company’s last fiscal year. Emnst &
Young LLP (“E&Y”), the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, reports directly to
the Audit Committee.

The authority of the Audit Committee, as set forth in more detail in its Charter, includes selecting,
evaluating and, where appropriate, replacing the accountants to be engaged as the Company’s
independent registered public accounting firm, reviewing the fees received by and relationships between
the independent registered public accounting firm and the Company, reviewing the results of the audit
and other services provided by the independent registered public accounting firm and reviewing with
the independent registered public accounting firm and the Company’s financial and accounting
personnel the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s accounting and financial controls.

Copies of the Charter can be obtained free of charge from the Company’s website,
www.viasyshealthcare.com, or by contacting the Company at the address appearing on the first page of
this proxy statement to the attention of the Secretary.

The Audit Committee, consistent with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the rules adopted
thereunder, meets with management and the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm
prior to the filing of officers’ certifications with the SEC to receive information concerning, among




other things, significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls over financial
reporting.

The Audit Committee has established the following procedures for: (i) the receipt, retention and
treatment of complaints received by the Company regarding financial, accounting, internal accounting
controls or auditing matters; and (ii) the confidential, anonymous submission by the Company’s
employees of concerns regarding questionable financial, accounting, internal accounting controls or
auditing matters.

* The Company has published on its website a toll-free telephone number for receiving
complaints regarding financial, accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters.

* The toll free number is answered and monitored by an independent third party, and the
members of the Audit Committee have direct access to this independent third party, if
necessary.

* All complaints regarding financial, accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing
matters received on the toll-free telephone number are sent directly to the Audit
Committee.

* The Audit Committee may request special treatment, including the retention of outside
counsel or other advisors, for any complaint addressed to it.

The Company’s internal audit group reports periodically throughout the year directly to the Audit
Committee.

Compensation Committee

The members of the Compensation Committee are Ronald A. Ahrens, who serves as Chairman,
Sander A. Flaum and Fred B. Parks, Ph.D. The Board of Directors has determined that the members
of the Compensation Committee meet the independence requirements of the NYSE listing standards.
Further, each member of the Compensation Committee is a “Non-Employee Director” as defined in
Rule 16b-3 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and an “outside director” as defined for
purposes of Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. The Compensation
Committee has authority, as delegated by the Board, in matters relating to compensation for corporate
officers and administration of the Company’s incentive plans. The Compensation Committee held four
meetings during the Company’s last fiscal year.

The Compensation Committee operates under a formal charter adopted by the Board of Directors
that governs its duties and standards of performance. Copies of the Charter can be obtained free of
charge from the Company’s website, www.viasyshealthcare.com, or by contacting the Company at the
address appearing on the first page of this proxy statement to the attention of the Secretary.

Nominating and Governance Committee

The members of the Nominating and Governance Committee are: Ronald A. Ahrens and Sander
A. Flaum. The Board of Directors has determined that both members of the Nominating and
Governance Committee meet the independence requirements of the NYSE listing standards. The
responsibilities of the Nominating and Governance Committee include making recommendations to the
Board on Board organization and procedures, performing evaluations of the Board and individual
directors and making director nominations. The Nominating and Governance Committee held two
meetings during the Company’s last fiscal year.

The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee considers candidates for Board
membership suggested by its members, other Board members and outside search firms on occasion, as
well as management and stockholders. A stockholder who wishes to recommend a prospective nominee
for consideration by the Board must follow the procedures described in this proxy statement under the
caption “Procedures for Nominating or Recommending for Nomination Candidates for Director.” Once




the Nominating and Governance Committee has identified prospective nominees, background
information is elicited about the candidates, following which they are investigated, interviewed and
evaluated by the Committee, which then reports to the Board of Directors. No distinctions are made as
between internally recommended candidates and those recommended by stockholders.

The Nominating and Governance Committee operates under a formal charter adopted by the
Board of Directors that governs its duties and standards of performance. Copies of the Charter can be
obtained free of charge from the Company’s website, www.viasyshealthcare.com, or by contacting the
Company at the address appearing on the first page of this proxy statement to the attention of the
Secretary.

Corporate Governance Guidelines

The Company has adopted a set of Corporate Governance Guidelines, including specifications for
director qualification and responsibility. Copies of the guidelines can be obtained free of charge from
the Company’s website, www.viasyshealthcare.com, or by contacting the Company at the address
appearing on the first page of this proxy statement to the attention of the Secretary.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors; Code of Conduct

The Company has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors and a Code of
Conduct applicable to employees, including all officers of the Company. Violations of the Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors may be reported to one or more of the Company’s General
Counsel, the Chairman of the Board, the Chairman of the Audit Committee or the Chairman of the
Nominating and Governance Committee of the Board. Violations of the Code of Conduct may be
reported to the Compliance Officer and the Audit Committee. Copies of the codes can be obtained
free of charge from the Company’s website, www.viasyshealthcare.com, or by contacting the Company
at the address appearing on the first page of this proxy statement to the attention of the Secretary.

Directors’ Attendance at Annual Meetings of Stockholders

It has been and is the policy of the Board of Directors to expect that all directors attend annual
meetings of stockholders, except where the failure to attend is due to unavoidable circumstances or
conflicts discussed in advance by the director with the Chairman of the Board. All of the then-current
members of the Board of Directors attended the Company’s 2004 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Non-Management Directors

Pursuant to the NYSE listing standards, the non-management directors of the Board met three
times in 2004. The non-management directors will continue to meet at regularly scheduled executive
sessions without management participation and, annually, will elect one director to act as the Lead
Director for each non-management meeting. Ronald A. Ahrens is currently serving a one-year term as
Lead Director. Among other responsibilities, the Lead Director leads executive sessions of the Board
(without members of management present) that occur at every in-person meeting of the Board and at
other times as directors may desire. He also works with the Chairman to set the Board agenda and
determine the appropriate materials to be provided to the directors.

Communication With the Board of Directors

Any person who wishes to communicate with the Board of Directors, including the Lead Director
of the non-management directors or the non-management directors as a group, may direct a written
request addressed to such directors in care of General Counsel, at the address appearing on the first
page of this proxy statement. The General Counsel will periodically forward such communications to
the intended Board member or members, as appropriate.
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REPORT OF THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Compensation Committee is currently comprised of three independent directors. As members
of the Compensation Committee, it is our responsibility to determine with management the most
effective total executive compensation strategy based on the Company’s business and consistent with
stockholders’ interests. Our principal responsibilities include reviewing the Company’s overall
compensation practices, recommending compensation for all executives including the Chief Executive
Officer and key employees and making recommendations to the Board of Directors with respect to
major compensation and benefit programs. :

The compensation packages for our executive officers are designed to attract and retain top quality
management and to encourage them to contribute to both the Company’s short-term and long-term
goals. In addition, the Committee considers compensation packages received by executives of similar
companies as part of the process.

Presently, the basic components of the Company’s compensation packages for executive officers
include the following:

* Base Salary;

* Bonuses;

* Stock Options; and
* Benefits.

Each executive officer’s compensation package contains a mix of these components and is intended
to provide a level of compensation competitive in the industry. The Company periodically reviews the
compensation packages of its senior executives to ensure that its compensation levels and benefits are
commensurate with those offered to senior executives at companies of comparable size and
development in similar industries, as appropriate. In determining salaries, the Compensation
Committee also takes into account individual experience, performance and specific expertise beneficial
to the Company. Actual compensation levels may be greater or less than average competitive levels in
surveyed companies based upon annual and long-term Company performance as well as individual
performance. All of our executive officers have employment agreements, which include severance
payments in the event of termination of the executive’s employment without cause and in certain
additional circumstances. See “Employment Agreements.”

With respect to base salaries of the Named Executive Officers, during 2004 the Compensation
Committee accepted the Chairman’s recommendation that the base salaries of Mr. Thurman,
Ms. Cross, Messrs. Galvan, Raja and Pulwer be increased by $50,000, $13,250, $19,110, $9,848 and
$95,000 to $600,000, $278,250, $292,110, $256,076 and $300,000, respectively. With respect to
Messrs. Galvan and Raja and Ms. Cross the increase was an annual performance raise based upon
approval by the Compensation Committee following the recommendation of the Chief Executive
Officer. With respect to Mr. Thurman, the increase was an annual performance raise based upon
approval by the Board of Directors following the recommendation of the Compensation Committee.
With respect to Mr. Pulwer, the increase was an annual performance raise and additional compensation
based on a market rate adjustment due to a significant increase in responsibility for his assumption of
the role of Executive Vice President and Group President, Respiratory Care.

Bonuses are awarded under the Company’s Management Incentive Program (the “Program”). The
Program is comprised of three performance measures: Company performance measured in earnings per
share (“EPS”), strategic business unit (“SBU”’) performance measured in budgeted operating income
for each business unit and individual performance measured by achievement of approved objectives.
Each year, EPS and SBU targets as well as individual performance objectives are approved. In
accordance with the Program, actual incentive payouts may range from 0% at below minimum
performance, 100% (or one times bonus target) at target performance and 200% (or two times bonus
target) at or above maximum performance. A percentage of each individual’s bonus eligibility is tied to
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the applicable measures described above and weighted based upon the relative importance of each of
the performance factors to the individual’s job. In addition, each year a minimum EPS target is
established which, if not achieved, will result in no bonus awards for the year. In 2004, the minimum
EPS target was not met, and, consequently, the Company did not award any bonuses. The Board has
approved the EPS and SBU targets for 2005 under the Program. In addition, the Board has approved
the 2005 individual performance objectives for the Chief Executive Officer, who in turn, approves
individual performance objectives for each of the Named Executive Officers for 2005.

The goal of granting stock options and other equity-based awards is to align the long-term interests
of each officer with the interests of our stockholders and to provide long-term incentives for the
individual officer to remain with us. All employees, including executive officers, are eligible for
discretionary grants, which are generally based on either individual or corporate performance. In
November 2004, the Board granted to Messrs. Thurman, Galvan and Raja options to purchase 104,000,
26,500 and 14,500 shares of Common Stock, respectively. In November 2004, the Board granted
Ms. Cross options to purchase 25,000 shares of Common Stock. In September 2004, the Board granted
Mr. Pulwer options to purchase 50,000 shares of Common Stock for his assumption of the role of
Executive Vice President and Group President, Respiratory Care. Each of these grants vests one third
each year until fully vested, beginning on the first anniversary of the date of grant.

Benefits offered to our executive officers serve as a safety net of protection against the financial
catastrophes that can result from illness, disability or death. Benefits offered to our executive officers
~ are substantially the same as those offered to all of our non-executive employees.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Ronald A. Ahrens, Chairman
Sander A. Flaum
Fred B. Parks, Ph.D.

March 9, 2005
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth certain information regarding compensation earned by the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and the four other most highly paid executive officers for the three
year period ended January 1, 2005 (the “Named Executive Officers”).

Long Term
Compensation
Awards
Annual Compensation "~ Securities
Other Annual Underlying All Other
Name and Principal Position Year Salary($) Bonus($) Compensation($)(1) Options Compensation($)(2)
Randy H. Thurman ......... 2004 613,462 — 137,500 104,000 9,225
Chairman, President and 2003 540,386 546,400 137,500 250,000 9,000
Chief Executive Officer 2002 500,000 — 137,000 130,000 —
LoriJ.Cross .............. 2004 275,447 100,000(3) — 25,000 8,731
Group President, NeuroCare 2003 30,577 45,000 — 120,000 1,376
2002 - — — — —_
Martin P. Galvan ........... 2004 299,670 — — 26,500 9,225
Senior Vice President, 2003 271,461 190,991 — 80,000 4,344
Chief Financial Officer, 2002 233,847 — ' — ' 20,000 —
Director, Investor Relations
Mahboob H. Raja(4) ........ 2004 254,428 —_ —_ 14,500 25,811
Group President, 2003 205,658 127,155 — 37,700 21,648
International 2002 153,382 — — — 16,966
Edward Pulwer ............ 2004 250,288 — — 50,000 9,225
Executive Vice President 2003 204,039 119,515 —_ 22,000 8,827
and Group President, 2002 173,500 — —_ 25,000 9,000

Respiratory Care

(1) $125,000 of this amount represents the amount of loan forgiveness on the $500,000 promissory
note that was entered into between the Company and Mr. Thurman in April 2001 (the “Note”)
(see “Employment Agreements” and “Related Transactions™) and $12,500 of this amount
represents the amount of Mr. Thurman’s annual car allowance.

(2) Other than Mr. Raja, for whom the amounts disclosed represent Company contributions under the
Company’s British Pension scheme, the amounts disclosed represent Company contributions under
the Company’s 401(k) Plan on behalf of the Named Executive Officer.

(3) Represents amount received as a bonus when Ms. Cross executed her employment agreement with
the Company.

(4) Mr. Raja’s compensation numbers have been converted from British pounds to U.S. dollars for
purposes of this presentation.
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Stock Options

The following table sets forth certain information concerning grants of stock options made during
2004 to the Named Executive Officers.

Option Grants in Last Fiscal Year

Individual Grants
Percent of Total

Potential Realized Value at

Options Assumed Annual Rates of Stock

A A Price Appreiation o Opton

Underlying Last Fiscal Price  Expiration Terms($)
Name Options Granted Year ($/Sh) Date 5% . 10%
Randy H. Thurman . . . ............ 104,000(1) 10.17% 17.52 11/10/14 1,145,896 2,903,926
LoriJ.Cross .........c.cvuun... 25,000(1) 244% 17.52 11/10/14 275,456 698,059
Martin P Galvan. ................ 26,500(1) 25%% 17.52 11/10/14 291,983 739,943
MahboobH. Raja .. .............. 14,500(1) 1.42% 17.52 11/1014 159,764 404,874
Edward Pulwer .. ................ 50,000(2) 489% 1635 (9/22/14 514,121 1,302,884

(1) The options were granted on November 10, 2004 and vest one third each year until fully vested, beginning on
the first anniversary of the date of grant.

(2) The options were granted on September 22, 2004 and vest one third each year until fully vested, beginning on
the first anniversary of the date of grant.
Option Exercises and Fiscal Year-End Values

The following table summarizes the value of vested and unvested options for the Named Executive
Officers at January 1, 2005. Year-end values are based upon a price of $19.00 per share, which was the
closing market price of a share of Common Stock on December 31, 2004, the last trading day of our
fiscal year.

Aggregate Fiscal Year-End Option Values

Number of Securities

Underlying Unexercised Value of
Shares Options at Fiscal Year Unexercised in-the-Money
Acquired on Value End Options at Fiscal Year End
Name Exercise  Realized($) Exercisable Unexercisable Exercisable($) Unexercisable($)
Randy H. Thurman ........... — — 1,079,983 314,017 4,758,158 988,962
LoriJ.Cross................ — — 39,996 105,004 —_ 37,000
Martin P Galvan . . ........... — — 169,996 86,504 788,750 323,970
Mahboob H. Raja . . .......... 1,043 11,556 41,814 39,636 170,640 83,720
EdwardPulwer . ............. — —_ 121,497 ‘ 73,003 545,637 227,908
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Employment Agreements

On November 29, 2004 and effective as of November 15, 2004, the Company entered into
amended and restated employment agreements (the “Restated Employment Agreements”) with each of
the following named executive officers: Randy H. Thurman, Chairman, President and Chief Executive
Officer; Martin P, Galvan, Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Director, Investor
Relations; Lori J. Cross, Group President, NeuroCare; Edward Pulwer, Executive Vice President and
Group President, Respiratory Care; and Mahboob H. Raja, Group President, International.

The principal revisions applicable to the Restated Employment Agreements with Messrs. Thurman,
Galvan, Pulwer and Raja and Ms. Cross include: (i) broadening of vesting provisions to include all
types of equity grants instead of only stock options; (ii) clarification that the term of the agreement
automatically renews for a two-year or three-year period, as applicable, unless written notice is given,
instead of a shorter renewal term; and (iii) addition of a requirement that the executive execute a
release upon separation of employment as a condition to receiving severance benefits.

The following revisions are also applicable to each of the Restated Employment Agreements with
Messrs. Pulwer and Raja and Ms. Cross: (i) in the event of non-renewal of employment, provision of
severance in the amount of up to six months base salary, prorated bonus and base salary through the
last day of the remaining employment term; (ii) in the event of termination without cause, the prorated
bonus benefit is no longer paid in addition to the other benefits; and (iii) upon a change of control and
in the event an officer’s employment agreement is not renewed upon the expiration of the initial
employment term or renewal period in which the change of control occurs, provision of the benefits
otherwise provided in the case of termination without cause.

Each of the Restated Employment Agreements with Messrs. Thurman and Galvan consolidates the
provisions of the executive retention and employment agreements which Messrs. Thurman and Galvan
each previously entered into with the Company and eliminates inconsistencies between the employment
and retention agreements. In addition, Mr. Thurman’s Restated Employment Agreement provides that:
(i) in the event of a change in control, each equity grant held by Mr. Thurman that has not already
vested shall immediately vest and (ii) following termination of employment as Chief Executive Officer,
subject to some exceptions, Mr. Thurman shall continue employment for three years in a capacity
mutually agreed to with the Board.

The Restated Employment Agreements set forth the basic terms of employment for each Named
Executive Officer, including base salary, bonus and benefits to which each Named Executive Officer is
entitled during the term of employment and in the event that employment is terminated for various
reasons. Each Named Executive Officer’s annual base salary as defined in his or her respective
Restated Employment Agreement is as follows: Mr. Thurman: $600,000; Ms. Cross: $278,250;

Mr. Galvan: $292,110; Mr. Pulwer: $300,000; and Mr. Raja: £140,155. The Restated Employment
Agreements are described in further detail below.

Restated Employment Agreements with Messrs. Thurman and Galvan

The Restated Employment Agreements with Messrs. Thurman and Galvan provide for a three-year
term and a two-year term, respectively, and each term automatically renews for successive three-year or
two-year terms unless written notice is given by either party at least 90 days prior to the expiration of
the applicable term.

Under their Restated Employment Agreements, Messrs. Thurman and Galvan are each eligible for
certain annual cash incentive bonuses and other benefits and shall each participate in (i) the
Company’s annual cash incentive program with target bonuses of 100% and 60% of his base salary,
respectively, or such other amounts as may be determined by the Board or the appropriate committee
or individual and (ii) any other incentive programs established by the Company for its senior level
executives. The Board has similar discretion with respect to any prorated annual bonuses granted in the
event of termination due to death, disability, termination by Messrs. Thurman or Galvan for good
reason or non-renewal of employment by the Company.
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In addition, as provided for in Mr. Thurman’s prior employment agreement, his Restated
Employment Agreement provides that as long as Mr. Thurman is employed by the Company on
April 19, 2005, the Company will credit him with the payment of $125,000, which is equal to the
outstanding balance of the Note that was entered into between the Company and Mr. Thurman in
April 2001.

Benefits Provided Upon Termination of Employment

Each of the Restated Employment Agreements with Messrs. Thurman and Galvan also provide for
certain benefits in the event of termination of employment. In the event that employment is terminated
due to death or permanent disability, each equity grant held by Messrs. Thurman or Galvan shall
immediately vest and, to the extent subject to an exercise period, shall remain exercisable for one year
(but not beyond the expiration of the otherwise applicable exercise period), and Messrs. Thurman and
Galvan or his estate, as the case may be, would each be entitled to receive his prorated annual cash
incentive bonus and a lump sum payment of his base salary through the date of his death or the
long-term disability program elimination period, as the case may be. In addition, Mr. Thurman, or his
estate, would be entitled to receive a lump sum cash payment equal to two times his current base salary
and to have the unpaid principal balance of the Note forgiven.

In the event that employment is terminated due to disability, Messrs. Thurman and Galvan would
each also be entitled to receive disability benefits in accordance with any long-term disability program
then in effect for the Company’s senior executives and, at the Company’s expense, continuing medical
and dental coverage for up to 18 months.

In the event that Messrs. Thurman or Galvan terminate employment for good reason, as defined
in each of Messrs. Thurman’s or Galvan’s Restated Employment Agreements, or employment is
terminated by the Company without cause, each equity grant held by Messrs. Thurman or Galvan shall
immediately vest and, to the extent subject to an exercise period, shall remain exercisable for a period
of one year after the 31% day following receipt of a notice of termination for good reason or without
cause by the Company or the executive (but not beyond the expiration of the otherwise applicable
exercise period). In addition, each of Messrs. Thurman and Galvan would be entitled to: his prorated
annual cash incentive bonus; a lump sum payment of his base salary through the 31 day following
receipt of a notice of termination for good reason or without cause by the Company or the executive;
and a lump sum payment in an amount equal to, in the case of Mr. Thurman, 200% of the sum of
(i) his annual base salary then in effect and (ii) his most recent short and long term cash incentive
bonus and, in the case of Mr. Galvan, 150% of the sum of (i) his annual base salary then in effect and
(ii) his most recent short and long term cash incentive bonus. Each of Messrs. Thurman and Galvan
would also be entitled, at the Company’s expense, to outplacement services of up to $40,000 and
$20,000, respectively, and continuing medical and dental coverage for up to 18 months at the
Company’s expense. In addition, Mr. Thurman would be entitled to have the unpaid principal balance
of the Note forgiven.

In the event that Messrs. Thurman or Galvan terminate employment for any reason other than
death, disability, good reason, the expiration of the current employment term, written notice of
non-renewal of employment, or in connection with a change in control or the Company terminates his
employment for cause, each equity grant held by him that has vested prior to or on either the 31% day
following receipt by the Company of a notice of termination from Messrs. Thurman or Galvan without
good reason or the 31% day following receipt by Messrs. Thurman or Galvan of a notice of termination
from the Company for cause, to the extent subject to an exercise period, shall remain exercisable for a
period of 90 days (but not beyond the expiration of the otherwise applicable exercise period). Any
equity grant that has not vested as of the 31% day following receipt by the Company of a notice of
termination from Messrs. Thurman or Galvan without good reason or the 31 day following receipt by
Messrs. Thurman or Galvan of a notice of termination from the Company for cause shall immediately
cease to vest and shall be cancelled. In addition, each of Messrs. Thurman and Galvan would be
entitled to receive a lump sum payment of his base salary through the 31* day following receipt by the
Company of a notice of termination from Messrs. Thurman or Galvan without good reason or the 31
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day following receipt by Messrs. Thurman or Galvan of a notice of termination from the Company for
cause, but would not be entitled to any additional benefits, severance or other compensation.

In the event that employment is terminated due to non-renewal of employment by the Company,
each of Messrs. Thurman and Galvan would be entitled to receive a lump sum payment of 100% and
50%, respectively, of his base salary; a lump sum payment of his base salary through the last day of the
remaining employment term; and his prorated annual cash incentive bonus.

Benefits Provided Upon a Change in Control

If a change in control, as defined in each of Messrs. Thurman’s or Galvan’s Restated Employment
Agreement, occurs and either such executive’s employment is terminated within the 18 month period
following a change in control, Messrs. Thurman or Galvan each shall be entitled to a lump sum
payment of the following: his base salary through the 31% day following receipt by Messrs. Thurman or
Galvan of a notice of termination from the Company; his annual bonus paid for the most recently
completed fiscal year prorated through the 31* day following receipt by Messrs. Thurman or Galvan of
a notice of termination from the Company; the amount of any compensation previously deferred, with
accrued interest or earnings, and accrued vacation pay; 300% in the case of Mr. Thurman, and 150% in
the case of Mr. Galvan, of the sum of his highest annual base salary and bonus in any rolling 12-month
period during the five-year period prior to the change in control; and any other amounts or benefits
required to be paid under any plan, program, policy or agreement of the Company. In addition, at the
Company’s expense, Messts, Thurman and Galvan shall each receive continuing medical and dental
coverage for a period of up to 3 years and 18 months, respectively and, for purposes of determining
eligibility of Messrs. Thurman and Galvan for retiree benefits, shall each be considered as employees
for a period of three years following the 31* day following receipt by Messrs. Thurman or Galvan of a
notice of termination from the Company.

In the event of a change in control, each equity grant held by Mr. Thurman that has not already
vested shall immediately vest and, to the extent subject to an exercise period, shall remain exercisable
until the 31% day following receipt by Messrs. Thurman of a notice of termination from the Company
specified in the relevant equity compensation plan or equity grant instrument; provided, however, that
the accelerated vesting shall not be contingent upon the termination of Mr. Thurman’s employment.

In the case of Mr. Thurman, the change of control benefits described above shall also be payable
if a change in control occurs and his employment is terminated within six months prior to a change in
control and he can reasonably demonstrate that such termination was at the request of a third party
who has taken steps reasonably calculated to effect a change in control or otherwise arose in
connection with or in anticipation of a change in control.

Other Termination Provisions

Messrs. Thurman and Galvan or his estate, as the case may be, shall also be entitled to the
balance of any incentive awards, expense reimbursements, and other benefits, if any, in accordance with
the plans, programs, contracts or agreements he has with the Company. To the fullest extent permitted
by applicable law, the Company’s obligation to pay or provide benefits to Messrs. Thurman or Galvan
under his respective Restated Employment Agreement shall be conditioned upon his execution of a
general release in favor of the Company.

During employment and for a period of one year following termination of employment for any
reason, Messrs. Thurman and Galvan have each agreed not to compete with the Company or solicit its
employees or customers, In addition, following termination of employment as Chief Executive Officer,
other than termination for cause at any time during the initial or subsequent employment terms or
without good reason during his initial employment term, Mr. Thurman shall continue to be employed
for three years in a capacity mutually agreed to with the Board. During this period, the Company will
pay Mr. Thurman an annual salary of $100,000 for the first year, $75,000 for the second year and
$50,000 for the third year, and Mr. Thurman will be eligible to receive employee benefits during the
three-year period.
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Restated Employment Agreements with Messrs. Edward Pulwer and Mahboob H. Raja and Ms. Lori J. Cross

Each of the Restated Employment Agreements with Messrs. Pulwer and Raja and Ms. Cross
provides for a two-year term that automatically renews for successive two-year terms unless written
notice is given by either party at least 90 days prior to the expiration of any term.

Under their Restated Employment Agreements, Messrs. Pulwer and Raja and Ms, Cross shall each
participate in (a) the Company’s management incentive plan with target bonuses of 50%, or such other
amounts as may be determined by the Board or the appropriate committee or individual and (b) any
other incentive programs established by the Company for its senior level executives.

Ms. Cross’ Restated Employment Agreement also provides for a stipend in the amount of $100,000
to be paid on November 1, 2005 provided that she remains actively employed with the Company on
that date, and an initial stock option valuation guarantee payment (the “Payment”). Ms. Cross is
entitled to the Payment if the aggregate intrinsic value of the vested portion of the initial stock option
grant of 120,000 shares of stock granted to Ms. Cross on November 13, 2003 (the “Option”) is less
than $425,000 on her employment termination date, as defined in her Restated Employment
Agreement, and Ms. Cross is terminated prior to November 1, 2006 for any of the following reasons: by
the Company without cause; by Ms. Cross due to the Company’s material breach of any obligation
under her Restated Employment Agreement; or as a result of Ms. Cross’ death or disability. The
Payment, if earned will equal an amount equal to the difference between $425,000 and the aggregate
intrinsic value of the vested portion of the Option on the termination date, as defined in her Restated
Employment Agreement. The following adjustments shall be made to the calculation of the payment
amount: the value of any stock options, stock grants or other forms of equity compensation granted
prior to November 1, 2006 shall be added to the aggregate intrinsic value amount and any realized gain
from any exercises of the Option prior to the termination date, as defined in her Restated Employment
Agreement, will be added to the aggregate intrinsic value of the vested portion of the Option.

Ms. Cross will not be eligible for the Payment if the aggregate intrinsic value at any time from
November 1, 2003 to November 1, 2006 exceeds $425,000.

Benefits Provided Upon Termination of Employment

Each of the Restated Employment Agreements with Messrs. Pulwer and Raja and Ms. Cross,
respectively, provide for certain benefits in the event of termination of employment. In the event that
employment is terminated due to death or disability, each equity grant held by Messrs. Pulwer or Raja
or Ms. Cross shall immediately vest and to the extent subject to an exercise period, shall remain
exercisable for one year (but not beyond the expiration of the otherwise applicable exercise period),
and each of Messrs. Pulwer and Raja and Ms. Cross or his or her estate, as the case may be, would be
entitled to rsceive the following: his or her prorated annual cash incentive bonus and a lump sum
payment of his or her base salary through the date of his or her death or through the end of the
long-term disability program elimination period, as the case may be. In the event that employment is
terminated due to disability, each of Messrs. Pulwer and Raja and Ms. Cross also would be entitled to
receive disability benefits in accordance with any long-term disability program then in effect for
comparable executives.

In the event that Messrs. Pulwer or Raja or Ms. Cross terminates his or her employment for any
reason other than death, disability, the expiration of the current employment term or written notice of
non-renewal of employment, or the Company terminates his or her employment for cause, each equity
grant held by him or her that has vested prior to or on the 30th day following receipt by the Company
of a notice of termination of employment from Messrs. Pulwer or Raja or Ms. Cross or the day he or
she receives a notice of termination from the Company, as applicable, to the extent subject to an
exercise period, shall remain exercisable for a period of 90 days (but not beyond the expiration of the
otherwise applicable exercise period). Any equity grant that has not vested as of the 30th day following
receipt by the Company of a notice of termination of employment from Messrs. Pulwer or Raja or
Ms. Cross or the day he or she receives a notice of termination from the Company, as applicable, shall
immediately cease to vest and shall be cancelled. In addition, Messrs. Pulwer and Raja and Ms. Cross
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would each be entitled to receive a lump sum payment of his or her base salary through the 30th day
following receipt by the Company of a notice of termination of employment from Messrs. Pulwer or
Raja or Ms. Cross or the day he or she receives a notice of termination from the Company, as
applicable, but would not be entitled to any benefits, severance or other compensation.

In the event that employment is terminated by the Company without cause, each equity grant held
by Messrs. Pulwer or Raja or Ms. Cross that has vested prior to or on the 30th day following receipt by
Messrs. Pulwer or Raja or Ms. Cross of a notice of termination without cause from the Company, to
the extent subject to an exercise period, shall remain exercisable for a period of 90 days after the 30th
day following receipt by Messrs. Pulwer or Raja or Ms. Cross of a notice of termination without cause
from the Company (but not beyond the expiration of the otherwise applicable exercise period). Any
equity grant that has not vested as of the 30th day following receipt by Messrs. Pulwer or Raja or
Ms. Cross of a notice of termination without cause from the Company shall immediately cease to vest
and shall be cancelled. In addition, Messrs. Pulwer and Raja and Ms. Cross would be entitled to
receive a lump sum payment of his or her base salary through the 30th day following receipt by
Messrs. Pulwer or Raja or Ms. Cross of a notice of termination without cause from the Company and a
lump sum payment equal to the sum of his or her base salary and the most recent cash incentive bonus
paid or the target bonus available under the Company’s management incentive plan then in existence,
whichever is higher.

In the event that employment is terminated due to non-renewal by the Company, each of
Messrs. Pulwer and Raja and Ms. Cross would be entitled to receive a lump sum payment of his or her
unpaid base salary through the last day of the remaining employment term; his or her prorated annual
cash incentive bonus; and, at the Company’s discretion and in a lump sum payment, either three
months of his or her base salary, if the Company requests that he or she discontinue employment for
the remainder of the term; or six months of his or her base salary if the Company requests that he or
she continue to serve for the remainder of the term, subject to the Company’s right to terminate for
cause.

Benefits Provided Upon a Change in Control

If employment is terminated due to non-renewal of employment by the Company following a
change in control, as defined in each of Messrs. Pulwer’s and Raja’s and Ms. Cross’ respective Restated
Employment Agreements, but only upon expiration of the initial employment term or renewal period in
which a change of control occurs, each of Messrs. Pulwer and Raja and Ms. Cross would be entitled to
receive the benefits granted in the case of termination without cause rather than non-renewal benefits
and the termination date through which benefits would be paid would be the last day of the remaining
employment term. In addition, the equity grants held by each of Messrs. Pulwer and Raja and
Ms. Cross shall be treated in accordance with the Company’s equity incentive plan, his or her stock
option agreement and the Restated Employment Agreement. In the event that the employment of
Messrs. Pulwer or Raja or Ms. Cross is terminated within 12 months following a Change in Control, he
or she would be entitled to the greater of the benefits under either his or her employment agreement
or the Company change of control plan, if any, but would not be eligible for benefits provided under
both.

Other Termination Provisions

In the case of any of the foregoing terminations, to the extent not previously paid or provided or
otherwise contrary to the terms and conditions of his or her employment agreement, each of
Messrs. Pulwer and Raja and Ms. Cross or his or her estate, as the case may be, shall also be entitled
to the balance of any incentive awards, expense reimbursements, and other benefits, if any, in
accordance with the plans, programs, contracts or agreements he or she has with the Company.
Additional benefits not unconditionally due under applicable law, with respect to any of the foregoing
terminations, shall be conditioned upon the execution of a general release within 10 days of the
applicable termination date. During employment and for a period of one year following termination of
employment for any reason, Messrs. Pulwer and Raja and Ms. Cross have each agreed not to compete
with the Company or solicit its employees or customers. However, in the case of Mr. Pulwer,
restrictions shall not apply to certain post-termination activity that occurs in California.
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REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee oversees the Company’s financial reporting process on behalf of the Board
and operates pursuant to a formal written Charter. In accordance with the Charter, the Audit
Committee completed its annual review of the adequacy of the Charter during fiscal year 2004 and
made a minor adjustment to its Charter to clarify existing language. All of the members of the Audit
Committee are independent directors. In addition, the Audit Committee annually selects the
Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, subject to any action taken by the Board of
Directors. For 2004, the Audit Committee selected Ernst & Young LLP (“E&Y”) as its independent
registered public accounting firm.

Management is responsible for the Company’s internal controls and the financial reporting process,
including its system of internal controls, and for preparing the Company’s financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The Company’s
independent registered public accounting firm is responsible for auditing those financial statements and
issuing a report thereon. The Audit Committee’s responsibility is to monitor and oversee these
processes.

In this context, the Audit Committee has met and held discussions with management and E&Y
both separately and together. In fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, the Audit Committee reviewed
with management the audited financial statements for 2004, and discussed with management the
quality, not just the acceptability, of the accounting principles, the reasonableness of significant
judgments and the clarity of disclosures in the financial statements. The Audit Committee reviewed
with E&Y, who are responsible for expressing an opinion on the conformity of the Company’s audited
financial statements with generally accepted accounting principles, their judgments as to the quality, not
just the acceptability, of the Company’s accounting principles and such other matters as are required to
be discussed with the committee under generally accepted auditing standards. The Audit Committee
discussed with E&Y the matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61
(Communication with Audit Committees). Furthermore, the Audit Committee has received the written
disclosures and the letter from E&Y that are required by Independence Standards Board Standard
No. 1 (Independence Discussions with Audit Committees), and the Audit Committee has discussed with
E&Y their firm’s independence from the Company and its management. The Audit Committee
determined that the provision of certain services other than audit services by E&Y was compatible with
maintaining E&Y’s independence.

The Committee has discussed with E&Y the overall scope and plans for their audits. The
Committee meets with E&Y, with and without management present, to discuss the results of their
examinations, the evaluations of the Company’s internal controls and the overall quality of the
Company’s financial reporting.

In its oversight function, the Committee relies on the representations of management and the
Company’s independent registered public accounting firm and thus does not have an independent basis
to determine that management has maintained appropriate accounting and financial reporting
principles or policies or appropriate internal controls and procedures, that the Company’s financial
statements are presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States, that the audit of the Company’s financial statements has been carried out in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States or that the Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm is in fact “independent.”

Based upon the Committee’s discussions with management and E&Y and the Committee’s review
of the representations of management and the report of E&Y to the Committee, the Committee
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recommended that the Board include the audited financial statements in the Company’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the year ended January 1, 2005 for filing with the SEC.

March 8, 2005

21

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Thomas W. Hofmann, Chairman
Sander A. Flaum
Kirk E. Gorman




INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM AND RELATED FEES

The Audit Committee has appointed E&Y, the Company’s independent registered public
accounting firm for the fiscal year ended January 1, 2005, to continue as the Company’s independent
registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2005. One or more
representatives of E&Y will be present at this year’s Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The
representatives will have an opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and will be
available to respond to appropriate questions.

The aggregate fees billed to the Company for professional services rendered for the years 2004 and
2003 were as follows:

Audit Fees

Fees for audit services totaled approximately $2,139,400 in 2004 and approximately $780,000 in
2003, including fees associated with the annual audits and the reviews of the Company’s quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q.

Audit-Related Fees

Fees for audit related services totaled $182,300 in 2004 and $397,200 in 2003. Audit related
services in 2004 consisted of due diligence in connection with potential acquisitions and an audit of our
employee benefit plan. Audit related services in 2003 consisted of due diligence in connection with
potential acquisitions, the public offering completed in June 2003 and an audit of our employee benefit
plan.

Tax Fees
Fees for tax services, including tax consulting, totaled $9,900 in 2004 and $3,670 in 2003.

Pre-approval Policies and Procedures

The Audit Committee has established policies and procedures for pre-approving fees paid for
services provided by the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm. The Audit
Committee pre-approves the audit fees for the year. The approval process for other services is based
on the estimated cost of the service being provided. For significant fees, the process requires the Audit
Committee to discuss the services to be provided in order to make an approval determination. The
Audit Committee also pre-approves minor fees for recurring items such as technical accounting or tax
consulting services that are not expected to exceed a minimal level. The Audit Committee Chairman
has the authority to approve minor fees for all other items. The actual services provided are reviewed
on an annual basis.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

Set forth below is a line graph comparing the yearly cumulative total stockholder return on the
Common Stock with the yearly cumulative total return of the S&P Smallcap 600 Index and the S&P
600 Healthcare Equipment Index for the period beginning on November 7, 2001, the day the Common
Stock commenced trading on the NYSE, and ending on December 31, 2004, the last trading day of our
fiscal year. The comparison assumes $100 was invested on November 7, 2001 in the Common Stock and
each of the foregoing indices and also assumes reinvestment of all dividends.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
200

150

100

OIIP>rrOo

IV R R e e R .
0
07Nov01 29Dec01 28Dec02 02Jan04 31Dec04
YEARS ENDING
—i— VIASYS HEALTHCARE INC. — —A— — S&P SMALLCAP 600 INDEX
---@----- S&P 600 HEALTHCARE EQUIPMENT INDEX
November 7, December 29, December 28, January 2, December 31,
2001 2001 2002 2004 2004
VIASYS HEALTHCARE INC. ............ $100.00 $128.21 $95.98 $131.06 $123.22
S&P SMALLCAP 600 INDEX ............ $100.00 $111.88 $94.59 $131.65  $161.20
S&P 600 HEALTHCARE EQUIPMENT
INDEX . ... it i $100.00 $101.32 $90.11 $121.78  $144.66
OTHER MATTERS

The Board does not know of any other matter that may be brought before the Annual Meeting.
However, if any such other matters are properly brought before the meeting, it is the intention of the
proxy agents to vote the shares represented thereby in accordance with the recommendation of the
Board on such matters.

SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, requires the Company’s
directors and executive officers, and persons who own more than ten percent of the Company’s
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Common Stock, to file with the SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership
of the Company’s Common Stock.

To the Company’s knowledge, based solely on a review of the copies of such reports furnished to
the Company and representations of these persons that no other reports were required, during the year
ended January 1, 2005, all of the Company’s directors, executive officers and greater than ten percent
stockholders complied with all Section 16(a) filing requirements except as follows: Fred B. Parks, Ph.D.
filed a Form 4 to report a May 5, 2004 option grant and stock unit grant after the due date of the form
and Sander A. Flaum filed a Form 4 to report a November 10, 2004 option grant after the due date of
the form.

RELATED TRANSACTIONS

In April 2001, the Company loaned Mr. Thurman a total of $500,000, which bears interest at an
annual rate of six percent. On April 19, 2005, the Company will credit Mr. Thurman with payment of
$125,000 of the principal amount of the loan, which is equal to the outstanding balance of the loan;
provided that, Mr. Thurman is still employed by the Company on such date. In the event that
Mr. Thurman’s employment is terminated due to death or disability, by him for good reason or by the
Company without cause, the unpaid principal balance of the loan would be forgiven. The terms of the
loan have not been amended since its issuance to Mr, Thurman.

ADVANCE NOTICE PROCEDURES

In accordance with the Company’s By-laws, notice relating to nominations for directors or
proposed business to be considered at the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders must be given no
earlier than February 9, 2006 or later than March 11, 2006. The notice must meet certain other
requirements set forth in the By-laws. Stockholders may request a copy of the By-law provisions
discussed above from the Secretary, c/o VIASYS Healthcare Inc., 227 Washington Street, Suite 200,
Conshohocken, Pennsylvania 19428. These requirements do not affect the procedures for submitting
stockholder proposals for inclusion in the proxy statement, nor do they apply to questions a stockholder
may wish to ask at the meeting.

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

Stockholders may submit proposals on matters appropriate for stockholder action at annual
meetings in accordance with regulations adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission. Any
proposal that an eligible stockholder desires to have presented at the 2006 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders concerning a proper subject for inclusion in the proxy statement and for consideration at
the annual meeting will be included in our proxy statement and related proxy card if we receive it no
later than December 9, 2005.

PROCEDURES FOR NOMINATING OR RECOMMENDING FOR NOMINATION
CANDIDATES FOR DIRECTOR

The Nominating and Governance Committee will consider director nominees recommended by
stockholders who submit the following information in writing to the Secretary c¢/o VIASYS
Healthcare Inc., 227 Washington Street, Suite 200, Conshohocken, Pennsylvania 19428 by no earlier
than February 9, 2006 or later than March 11, 2006:

*» the candidate’s name, age, business address and, if known, residence address;
* the candidate’s principal occupation or employment;

* the class and number of shares of stock of the Company that are beneficially owned by the
candidate; and
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* any other information concerning such person that must be disclosed as to nominees in proxy
solicitations pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

The nominating stockholder must also include the following information:
* their name and address, as they appear on the Company’s books;

* the class and number of shares of stock of the Company that are owned, beneficially and of
record, by such stockholder;

* a description of all arrangements or understandings between such stockholder and each
proposed nominee and any other person or persons (including their names) pursuant to which
the nomination(s) are to be made by such stockholder; and

* a representation that such stockholder intends to appear in person or by proxy at the meeting to
nominate the person(s) named in the notice.

The nominating stockholder must also include the following information about the beneficial
owner, if any, on whose behalf the nomination is being made:

* such beneficial owner’s name and address;

* the class and number of shares of stock of the Company that are beneficially owned by such
beneficial owner; and

* a description of all arrangements or understandings between such beneficial owner and each
proposed nominee and any other person or persons (including their names) pursuant to which
the nomination(s) are to be made.

In addition, to be effective, the stockholder’s notice must be accompanied by the written consent
of the proposed nominee to serve as a director if elected. The Company may require any proposed
nominee to furnish such other information as may reasonably be required to determine the eligibility of
such proposed nominee to serve as a director of the Company.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Matthur U Bomritt

Matthew M. Bennett
Secretary

Dated: April 8, 2005

Upon written request to the Secretary, c/o VIASYS Healthcare Inc., 227 Washington Street, Suite 200,
Conshohocken, Pennsylvania 19428, the Company will provide, without charge, to any stockholder
solicited hereby, a copy of its Annual Report on Form 10-K, including the financials and the schedules
thereto.
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in Memorium
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Dr. David Golde, a VIASYS Director, passed away in 2004. His passing is a great loss to
his family, to the scientific and medical community that he served and to the many of us
who knew David as a friend. My family and | had known David and his family for many
years, and I had the privilege of serving on several boards with David. David's life was
marked by extraordinary scientific contributions, dedicated service to his patients and
immense loyalty to his friends and family. David also served as physician-in-chief for
Memorial Sloan Kettering Cancer Center for nearly a decade. While David is no longer
with us, his life will serve as a role model and his contributions to the healthcare industry
will serve as his legacy for many years. He is deeply missed but never forgotten.

Randy H. Thurman
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VIASYS Healthcare Inc.
Summary Facts

Listed on the NYSE in 2001 - VAS

A global leader in Respiratory Care
+ Pulmonary Function Diagnostics
« Criticat Care
« Sleep Diagnostics and Therapy
+ Respiratory Clinical Services
» Respiratory Consumables and Supplies

A global leader in Neurovascular Care

« Neurodiagnostics and Monitoring : EEG, EMG,
EP 1OM, LTM

« Neurovascular Supplies, including EMG needles
» Peripheral Vascular Diagnostics and Imaging
» Cerebrovascular Monitoring : TCD
« information Management Soluticns
« Neurovascular Clinical Services

Medical Supplies and Services
« Enteral Feeding
» Airway Devices
» Medical Access Systems
« Global Customer Service
« VIASYS Clinical Services

Orthopedic Implants
» Reconstructive Implants
» Trauma Products
s Cardiovascular Components
» Cranio-Maxillo Facial Surgery

Global operations in over 100 countries
« |nternational network of distribution pariners
« Direct sales and service in selected countries

For further details, please visit our website at:
www.viasyshealthcare.com




